
Agenda           
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

September 18, 2019 
 

California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity  Regular Board Meeting 

September 18, 2019  Page | 1 

 

California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity 
 

Board of Directors 
 

President, Lindsay Woods 
Vice President, Dean Wetter 

Secretary, Colin Miller 
 

Directors 
 

Ms. Lorena Cervantes 
Mr. Jim Friedl 

Mr. Larry Mazzuca 
Mr. Mathew Fuzie 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

10:00 a.m.- Wednesday, September 18, 2019 
 

Arden Park Recreation and Park District 

Room A 

1000 La Sierra Drive 

Sacramento, CA 95864 

(916) 483-6069 

 
In compliance with the Brown Act, this meeting is being conducted by teleconference from:  

403 W. Hillcrest Drive, Thousand Oaks, CA 91360 
 

Each teleconference location is open to the public and any member of the public has an opportunity 

to address the Board from a teleconference location in the same manner as if that person attended 

the regular meeting location.  The Board will control the conduct of the meeting and determine the 

appropriate order and time limitations on public comments from teleconference locations. 

 

Note: Agenda posting and meeting are done in accordance with Ralph M. Brown Act 
Government Code ∮ 54954.2 and 54953 

 



Agenda           
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

September 18, 2019 
 

California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity  Regular Board Meeting 

September 18, 2019  Page | 2 

1. CALL TO ORDER   
   

2. INTRODUCTIONS  
   

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 This time is reserved for members of the public to address the Board relative to matters 

of the CAPRI not on the agenda.  No action may be taken on non-agenda items unless 
authorized by law.   
 
Welcome to our Board of Directors Meeting.  The Board encourages public 
participation.  If you desire to address the Board on any CAPRI related matter or item on 
the Agenda, you are asked to please fill out one of the speaker forms in the back of the 
meeting room and turn it in to the Executive Director.  When called upon, please come 
forward, and state your name and address before addressing the Board.  Please limit your 
comments to 3 minutes per speaker. 
 
Please note that if you address the Board on items NOT on the Agenda, the Brown Act 
does not allow discussion of such items.  Therefore, the Board may only do the following:  
refer the matter to staff, ask for additional information, request a report back, or give a 
very limited factual response. 

 

   
4. CLOSED SESSION CLAIMS  

 Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.1, the Board must report in open session 
any action taken, or lack thereof, taken in closed session. 

 

 4.1 Worker’s Compensation – Existing Litigation Pursuant to Government 
Code § 54956.9(d)(1) 

 

 

 Judd v. Rancho Simi Recreation & Park District 
 Mike v. Hayward Recreation & Park District 
 Vannucci v. Hayward Recreation & Park District 
 Claims Settled since last Board Meeting 

 

 4.2 Liability & Property – Existing Litigation Pursuant to Government 
Code § 54956.9(d)(1) 

 

 

 Hendershot v. Cordova Recreation & Park District 
 Moss v. Rancho Simi Recreation & Park District 
 Velez v. Isla Vista Recreation & Park District 
 Liability Report $5K Meeting Summary 

 

 4.3 Public Employee Evaluation – Performance Review Pursuant to 
Government Code § 54957 

 

  Executive Director  



Agenda           
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

September 18, 2019 
 

California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity  Regular Board Meeting 

September 18, 2019  Page | 3 

5. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION  
 Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.1, the Board must report in open session 

any action taken, or lack thereof, taken in closed session. 
 

6. CONSENT ITEMS   
 The following items are expected to be routine and non-controversial and will be acted 

upon by the Board at one time without discussion, unless a Board member requests that 
an item be removed from the consent agenda and held for discussion. 

  

 6.1 Approval of CAPRI Board Minutes   
   July 24, 2019   
 6.2 LAIF Regular Monthly Statement – August 2019   
 6.3 Warrant Listings for the months April 2019- June 2019   
 6.4 Statement of Net Position   
 6.5 Statement of Revenue and Expenses Budget to Actual   
 6.6 Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Change in Net Position   

7. PULLED CONSENT ITEMS   

8. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS   
 The CAPRI Board of Directors will review and discuss taking appropriate action 

or inaction with respect to the following matters:   
 8.1 Liability Claims Management Review   
 

 
 The Board shall review and discuss the CAPRI liability claims 

management process. 
 

 
 8.2 Property Claims Management Review   
 

 
 The Board shall review and discuss the CAPRI property claims 

management process. 
 

 
 8.3 District Visitation Criteria & Scoring System Review   
 

 

 The Board shall review and discuss the District Visitation criteria 
and Scoring system and provide Staff input as to any changes to 
consider in advance of the upcoming District XVII Cycle. 

 
 

 8.4 W/C Program Dividend Distribution Review   
 

 

 The Board shall review and consider whether it is appropriate to 
distribute dividends to the membership in the Workers’ 
Compensation Program and direct Staff accordingly. 

 
 

 8.5 Liability & Property Program Dividend Distribution Review   
 

 

 The Board shall review and consider whether it is appropriate to 
distribute dividends to the membership in the Liability & Property 
Program and direct Staff accordingly. 

 
 



Agenda           
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

September 18, 2019 
 

California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity  Regular Board Meeting 

September 18, 2019  Page | 4 

 8.6 Resolution No. 3-2019 - Off Duty, Out of State Peace Officer Injury   
 

 

 The Board shall review and discuss whether to adopt a resolution 
relating to the workers’ compensation coverage for injuries 
sustained by peace officers while off duty, out of state as 
permitted by AB 1749 and California Labor Code Section 
3600.2(b). 

 

 

9. SPECIAL REPORTS   

 CAPRI consultants will report on the following topics:   
 9.1 Insurance Market Update – Alliant Insurance Services   

10. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/STAFF REPORTS   

 The Executive Director and Staff will report on the following topics:   
 10.1 District Visits Update    
 10.2 CAPRI Office Update   
 10.3 ADA Compliance Assessment Program Update   
 10.4 Nurse Triage Program Update   
 10.5 MPN Program Update   
 10.6 Member Withdrawal Update   
 10.7 CAPRI Member Trainings Update   
 10.8 CAPRI Ratings Questionnaire Refresh Update   
 10.9 CAPRI Website Refresh Update   
 10.10 News of Note   

11. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS   

 11.1. Board Member Comments    

12. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS   
 This section is reserved for items identified by Board members and Staff as 

matters for future Board business. 
  

 TARGET DATE –NOVEMBER 2019/FEBRUARY 2020   
 12.1 2020/2021 WC Allocation Formula   
 12.2 New CAPRI Board Member Orientation Packet   
 12.3 Board Manual Review   
 12.4 CAPRI Bylaws Revisions   
 12.5 Membership Property Appraisal Plan   
 12.6 Results of ADA Compliance Initial Assessments   



Agenda           
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

September 18, 2019 
 

California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity  Regular Board Meeting 

September 18, 2019  Page | 5 

 12.7 Approval of WC Final Payroll   
 12.8 2020 CAPRI BOD Meeting Calendar   
 12.9 2020 CAPRI BOD Officers Election   
 12.10 Liability, Property, & WC Loss Trends   

13. ANNOUNCEMENTS   
 The next CAPRI Board of Directors meeting will be held November 22, 2019 

in La Quinta, CA.   

14. ADJOURNMENT   
 
Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act 
If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, you should contact CAPRI at (916) 722-5550.  Notification at 
least 72 hours prior will enable CAPRI to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. 



CAPRI Board of Directors Regular Meeting Minutes – July 24, 2019 

Page | 1 

CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

CAPRI Offices 

6341 Auburn Blvd. Citrus Heights, CA 95621 

July 24, 2019 

MINUTES 

1. CALL TO ORDER:

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held on July 24, 2019 at the offices of

CAPRI, 6341 Auburn Blvd. Suite A, Citrus Heights, 95621 CA at 10:00 a.m.

Members Present: President Woods, Vice President Wetter, Secretary Colin Miller, Director

Mathew Fuzie and Director Jim Friedl, Director Cervantes and Director Larry Mazzuca

CAPRI Staff: Mr. Matthew Duarte, Ms. Carlee Weston, and Mr. Kirk Andre.

Absent: None

Others Present: Mr. Byrne Conley (Gibbons & Conley), Mr. Doug Wozniak (Alliant Insurance),

Mr. Chuck Torretta (George Hills), Mr. Derek Burkhalter (Bickmore), Mr. Erik Peterson (NPA),

Ms. Dori Zumwalt (York Risk Services), and Ms. Lesley Murphy (PFM).

2. INTRODUCTIONS:

None.

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS:

None.

4. CLOSED SESSION:

The Board convened to Closed Session at 10:02 a.m. regarding the following matters:

➢ Risse v. Fulton-El Camino Recreation & Park District

➢ Scott v. Fair Oaks Recreation & Park District

➢ Shenson v. Pleasant Hill Recreation & Park District

➢ Cruz v. Livermore Area Recreation & Park District

➢ Freitas v. Durham Recreation & Park District

➢ Claims resolved over $5,000.00 since last Board meeting

➢ Two (2) potential cases with significant exposure to litigation

Page 6 of 157



CAPRI Board of Directors Regular Meeting Minutes – July 24, 2019 

Page | 2 

5. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION:

The Board reconvened to Open Session at 11:36 a.m. pursuant to Government Code Section

54957.1, the Board must report in open session any action taken, or lack thereof, taken in

closed session.

No Reportable Action. 

6. CONSENT AGENDA:

6.1  CAPRI Board Minutes 

➢ June 13, 2019

MOTION: 

Secretary Miller made a motion to approve the consent items #6.1 – Board Minutes 

as presented in the agenda packet. Director Friedl seconded the motion.  

Ayes:  Woods, Wetter, Miller, Friedl, Fuzie, Cervantes, and Mazzuca.  

Nays:  None 

Abstain:  None  

7. PULLED CONSENT ITEMS:

None.

8. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS:

8.1 WC Program Review & Update 

Ms. Dori Zumwalt of York Risk Services presented on the performance of the CAPRI 

Workers’ Compensation program. Included in the presentation was an evaluation of 

current trends, a review of recent claims history, and a discussion about the 

upcoming transition to Nurse Triage services.  

8.2 MPN Participation Review 

The Board reviewed the current MPN Program participation, considered the two 

requests for exemption as well as discussed possible action to be taken regarding the 

remaining non-participating members.  

(1) MOTION:

Director Friedl made a motion to approve the exemption from the MPN Program 

participation for Mendocino Recreation and Central Plumas Recreation. Director 

Cervantes seconded the motion. 

Page 7 of 157



CAPRI Board of Directors Regular Meeting Minutes – July 24, 2019 

Page | 3 

Ayes:  Woods, Wetter, Miller, Friedl, and Fuzie, Cervantes, and Mazzuca.  

Nays:  None 

Abstain:  None  

(2) MOTION:

Director Fuzie made a motion to direct Staff to further contact the non-participating 

member Districts informing them that in the event of non-compliance by December 31, 

2019, the Districts would be subject to a 20% increase on their 2020-2021 premiums. 

Vice President Wetter seconded this motion. 

Ayes:  Woods, Wetter, Miller, Friedl, Fuzie, Cervantes, and Mazzuca.  

Nays:  None 

Abstain:  None  

8.3 CAPRI Workers’ Compensation Claims Management Manual Review 

The Board reviewed and discussed the proposed Workers’ Compensation Claims 

Management Manual.  

(1) MOTION:

Director Fuzie made a motion to approve the proposed Workers’ Compensation 

Claims Management Manual for dissemination to CAPRI membership. Vice President 

Wetter seconded this motion. 

Ayes:  Woods, Wetter, Miller, Friedl, Fuzie, Cervantes, and Mazzuca.  

Nays:  None 

Abstain:  None  

8.4 NPA Return-To-Work Services Program Review 

Erik Peterson from NPA Return-To-Work Services presented on the performance 

of the Return to Work program offered by CAPRI. 

8.5 WC Premium Allocation Formula Review 

Derek Burkhalter with Bickmore Actuarial presented options as it relates to the 

Workers’ Compensation Premium Allocation formula.  Staff will continue working 

with Bickmore to develop and obtain specific proposed formulas for future Board 

review and consideration. 

8.6 Member Notice of Intent to Withdraw from WC Program 

Executive Director Duarte provided the Board an update on Auburn Area Recreation 

and Park District’s written request to withdraw from the CAPRI Workers’ Compensation 

program effective November 1, 2019.  

Page 8 of 157



CAPRI Board of Directors Regular Meeting Minutes – July 24, 2019 

Page | 4 

MOTION: 

Vice President Wetter made a motion to authorize the Executive Director to process 

the mid-year withdrawal and to determine the appropriate prorated amount for the 

partial remaining year of coverage. Director Fuzie seconded this motion.  

Ayes:  Woods, Wetter, Miller, Friedl, Fuzie, Cervantes, and Mazzuca.  

Nays:  None 

Abstain:  None  

8.7 ADA Compliance Assessment Program Proposal Review 

The Board discussed and reviewed the proposed terms of the ADA Compliance 

contract with DAC, as it relates to an ADA assessment program. 

MOTION: 

Director Fuzie made a motion to authorize Executive Director Matthew Duarte to 

execute the contract with DAC. Director Mazzuca seconded this motion.  

Ayes:  Woods, Wetter, Miller, Friedl, Fuzie, Cervantes, and Mazzuca.  

Nays:  None 

Abstain:  None  

8.8 Consideration of Contract Extension with Gilbert & Associates 

 The Board discussed renewal of a contract with Gilbert & Associates for the provision 

of accounting services. 

MOTION: 

Vice President Wetter made a motion to authorize the Executive Director to execute 

the engagement letter with Gilbert and Associates accounting services for the period 

starting July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020 and the following two fiscal years thereafter 

subject to mutual agreement and 30 day’s notice. Director Mazzuca seconded this 

motion. 

Ayes:  Woods, Wetter, Miller, Friedl, Fuzie, Cervantes, and Mazzuca.  

Nays:  None 

Abstain:  None  

8.9 Resolution No. 2-2019 – Name Update 

The Board discussed and considered adopting a formal resolution confirming the 

change of organization name in or about late 2006. 

Page 9 of 157



 

CAPRI Board of Directors  Regular Meeting Minutes – July 24, 2019 

Page | 5 

 
   
 

MOTION: 

Vice President Wetter made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 2-2019. Director 

Cervantes seconded this motion.  

 

Ayes:  Woods, Wetter, Miller, Friedl, Fuzie, Cervantes, and Mazzuca.  

Nays:  None 

Abstain:  None  

 

8.10 Proposed 2019-2020 Budget Review 

The Board reviewed and discussed the proposed 2019-2020 Budget for CAPRI. 

 

MOTION: 

Director Cervantes made a motion to adopt the proposed 2019-2020 CAPRI Budget. 

Director Fuzie seconded this motion.  

 

Ayes:  Woods, Wetter, Miller, Friedl, Fuzie, Cervantes, and Mazzuca.  

Nays:  None 

Abstain:  None  

 

9. SPECIAL REPORTS: 

 

9.1 Investment Status Reports – Public Financial Management 

Ms. Lesley Murphy of PFM provided an in-depth report as to the status of CAPRI’s 

investments.  

 

9.2 Insurance Market Update – Alliant Insurance Services 

Mr. Doug Wozniak gave a brief updated regarding the insurance market.  

 

10. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/STAFF REPORTS: 

 

10.1 District Visits Update 

The Board of Directors had no additional comments or questions on this writeup. 

 

10.2 CAPRI Office Update 

The Board of Directors had no additional comments or questions on this writeup. 

 

10.3 CAPRI BOD Meeting Locations  

The Board of Directors had no additional comments or questions on this writeup. 

 

10.4 CAPRI FY19-20 Final Premium Allocations 

The Board of Directors had no additional comments or questions on this writeup. 

 

Page 10 of 157



 

CAPRI Board of Directors  Regular Meeting Minutes – July 24, 2019 

Page | 6 

 
   
 

10.5 New Member GMs Update  

The Board of Directors had no additional comments or questions on this writeup. 

 

10.6 New Articles of Note   

The Board of Directors had no additional comments or questions on this writeup. 

 

11.  BOARD MEMBER REPORTS: 

 

11.1 Board Member Comments 

No additional comments 

 

12. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: 

The Board would like to see the addition of “District Visits” to a future agenda.  

 

13. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

The next CAPRI Board of Directors meeting will be held September 18, 2019 at 10:00a.m. 

at the Arden Park Community Center at 1000 La Sierra Drive, Sacramento, CA 95864. 

 

14. ADJOURNMENT: 

The Board adjourned the meeting at 3:21 p.m. 

 

 

______________________________________  

Colin Miller, 

CAPRI Board of Directors Secretary 

Page 11 of 157



      Local Agency Investment Fund 
      P.O. Box 942809
      Sacramento, CA 94209-0001
      (916) 653-3001    

September 09, 2019

LAIF Home
PMIA Average Monthly
Yields

CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND 
RECREATION INSURANCE 
ADMINISTRATOR 
6341 AUBURN BOULEVARD, SUITE A 
CITRUS HEIGHTS, CA  95621-5203

Account Number: 35-34-007

August 2019 Statement

Tran Type Definitions

Account Summary

Total Deposit: 0.00 Beginning Balance: 191,166.73

Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance: 191,166.73

Page 12 of 157

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/laif/index.asp
http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/avg_mn_ylds.asp
https://laifms.treasurer.ca.gov/Transaction%20Types%20Regular.htm


 1
1
:0

9
 A

M

 0
9
/1

0
/1

9

 A
c
c
ru

a
l 

B
a
s
is

 C
a
li

fo
rn

ia
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

P
a
rk

 a
n

d
 R

e
c
re

a
ti

o
n

 I
n

d
e
m

n
it

y

 T
ra

n
s

a
c

ti
o

n
s

 b
y
 A

c
c

o
u

n
t

 A
s
 o

f 
J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 

2
0
1
9

T
y
p

e
D

a
te

N
u

m
A

d
j

N
a
m

e
M

e
m

o
C

la
s
s

C
lr

S
p

li
t

D
e
b

it
C

re
d

it
B

a
la

n
c
e

B
a
n

k
 o

f 
W

e
s
t 

- 
M

a
s
te

r 
R

e
g

is
te

r
2
,4

1
4
,8

3
6
.9

0

C
he

ck
04

/0
1/

20
19

98
56

Yo
rk

 R
is

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

Pr
ef

un
di

ng
: T

ei
xe

ira
 - 

D
O

L 
01

/1
5/

18
 C

.R
. M

ed
ic

al
√

W
or

ke
rs

' C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

la
im

s
25

,0
00

.0
0

2,
38

9,
83

6.
90

C
he

ck
04

/0
1/

20
19

98
57

Yo
rk

 R
is

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

Pr
ef

un
di

ng
: T

ei
xe

ira
 - 

D
O

L 
09

/0
8/

13
 C

.R
. M

ed
ic

al
√

W
or

ke
rs

' C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

la
im

s
25

,0
00

.0
0

2,
36

4,
83

6.
90

C
he

ck
04

/0
1/

20
19

98
58

Yo
rk

 R
is

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

Pr
ef

un
di

ng
: H

ar
ris

on
 - 

D
O

L 
09

/2
5/

81
 C

.R
. M

ed
ic

al
√

W
or

ke
rs

' C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

la
im

s
42

6,
04

8.
22

1,
93

8,
78

8.
68

C
he

ck
04

/0
1/

20
19

98
59

Yo
rk

 R
is

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

Pr
ef

un
di

ng
: H

ar
ris

on
 - 

D
O

L 
09

/2
5/

81
 C

.R
.(B

ox
er

 &
 G

er
so

n)
√

W
or

ke
rs

' C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

la
im

s
20

0,
00

0.
00

1,
73

8,
78

8.
68

C
he

ck
04

/0
1/

20
19

98
60

Yo
rk

 R
is

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

Pr
ef

un
di

ng
: H

ar
ris

on
 - 

D
O

L 
09

/2
5/

81
 C

.R
.(A

.G
.L

.I.
C

.)
√

W
or

ke
rs

' C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

la
im

s
78

3,
79

8.
83

95
4,

98
9.

85

C
he

ck
04

/0
1/

20
19

98
61

Yo
rk

 R
is

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

Pr
ef

un
di

ng
: H

ar
ris

on
 - 

D
O

L 
09

/2
5/

81
 C

.R
.(A

m
et

ro
s)

√
W

or
ke

rs
' C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

C
la

im
s

29
3,

93
6.

00
66

1,
05

3.
85

Tr
an

sf
er

04
/0

2/
20

19
Fu

nd
s 

Tr
an

sf
er

 - 
fo

r H
ar

ris
on

 c
la

im
 (Y

or
k 

In
su

ra
nc

e)
 

 
 

 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 - 

Pr
op

er
ty

√
C

la
im

s 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
1,

70
4,

78
3.

05
2,

36
5,

83
6.

90

C
he

ck
04

/0
3/

20
19

98
62

Yo
rk

 R
is

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

W
C

 F
un

di
ng

 R
eq

: 0
3/

16
/1

9 
- 0

3/
31

/1
9

√
W

or
ke

rs
' C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

C
la

im
s

81
,0

17
.3

8
2,

28
4,

81
9.

52

C
he

ck
04

/0
3/

20
19

98
63

C
AP

R
I

Fu
nd

in
g 

R
eq

: 0
4/

03
/1

9 
(M

ar
ch

) -
 c

k#
30

37
-3

05
4

√
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 B
an

k 
& 

Tr
us

t
33

,2
32

.0
8

2,
25

1,
58

7.
44

C
he

ck
04

/0
5/

20
19

98
64

Be
rth

a 
Pe

ar
so

n
R

ei
m

bu
rs

e 
- t

ra
ve

l t
o 

Ar
de

n 
Pa

rk
√

Tr
av

el
/M

ee
tin

g
11

.4
8

2,
25

1,
57

5.
96

C
he

ck
04

/0
5/

20
19

98
65

M
U

FG
 U

ni
on

 B
an

k,
 N

.A
.

Ac
ct

# 
67

36
30

49
80

 - 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

01
9

√
Ba

nk
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

ha
rg

es
84

9.
00

2,
25

0,
72

6.
96

C
he

ck
04

/0
5/

20
19

98
66

PF
M

 A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
LL

C
In

v#
SM

A-
M

02
19

-1
04

33
3 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

9
√

In
ve

st
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
s

2,
29

3.
09

2,
24

8,
43

3.
87

C
he

ck
04

/0
5/

20
19

98
67

M
at

th
ew

 B
 D

ua
rte

R
ei

m
bu

rs
e 

- T
ra

ve
l &

 h
ea

lth
pl

an
√

R
ei

m
bu

rs
e 

- T
ra

ve
l &

 h
ea

lth
pl

an
1,

83
5.

03
2,

24
6,

59
8.

84

C
he

ck
04

/0
5/

20
19

98
68

Se
ar

ch
Pr

os
Bi

lli
ng

 - 
03

/1
7/

19
 - 

03
/3

0/
19

 (C
oy

le
)

√
Pa

rt-
Ti

m
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

75
4.

00
2,

24
5,

84
4.

84

C
he

ck
04

/0
5/

20
19

98
69

Ja
m

es
 M

ar
ta

 &
 C

om
pa

ny
Au

di
t f

or
 7

/1
/1

7 
-6

/3
0/

18
 - 

In
v#

12
41

8
√

Fi
na

nc
ia

l A
ud

it
3,

50
0.

00
2,

24
2,

34
4.

84

C
he

ck
04

/0
5/

20
19

98
70

C
.A

.R
.P

.D
.

R
eg

is
tra

tio
ns

 - 
BO

D
 (L

or
en

a 
& 

C
ol

in
)

√
C

AR
PD

 E
xp

en
se

s
53

0.
00

2,
24

1,
81

4.
84

C
he

ck
04

/0
5/

20
19

98
71

R
el

ia
nc

e 
St

an
da

rd
 L

ife
 In

su
ra

nc
e

Bi
ll 

Pe
rio

d:
 A

pr
 2

01
9 

C
as

e#
9-

06
01

5-
00

01
√

Li
fe

 In
su

ra
nc

e
38

.0
0

2,
24

1,
77

6.
84

C
he

ck
04

/0
5/

20
19

98
72

Sa
cr

am
en

to
 C

ou
nt

y 
U

til
iti

es
Ac

ct
#5

00
02

36
89

32
 B

ill
 C

yc
le

: 0
2/

15
/1

9 
- 0

4/
14

/1
9

√
U

til
iti

es
11

3.
70

2,
24

1,
66

3.
14

C
he

ck
04

/0
5/

20
19

98
73

Fo
ot

hi
ll 

Fi
re

 &
 W

ire
In

v#
 4

07
94

 - 
3 

m
os

 A
dv

an
ce

d 
Fi

re
 A

la
rm

 m
on

ito
rin

g
√

Bu
ild

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

/R
ep

ai
rs

17
4.

00
2,

24
1,

48
9.

14

C
he

ck
04

/0
5/

20
19

98
74

Ar
ca

de
 C

re
ek

 O
ffi

ce
 P

ar
k 

O
w

ne
rs

' A
ss

n
C

AM
S 

& 
D

ep
 to

 R
es

er
ve

s 
- A

pr
il 

20
19

√
C

AM
 &

 P
ro

ge
ct

 R
es

er
ve

s
71

3.
71

2,
24

0,
77

5.
43

C
he

ck
04

/0
5/

20
19

98
75

Li
nd

sa
y 

W
oo

ds
R

ei
m

bu
rs

e 
- B

O
D

 M
tg

 0
3/

19
/1

9 
(S

ac
)

√
Bo

ar
d 

M
ee

tin
g/

Tr
av

el
24

.9
4

2,
24

0,
75

0.
49

C
he

ck
04

/0
5/

20
19

98
76

H
es

pe
ria

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

an
d 

Pa
rk

 D
is

tri
ct

R
ei

m
bu

rs
e 

- B
O

D
 M

tg
 0

3/
19

/1
9 

(S
ac

)
√

Bo
ar

d 
M

ee
tin

g/
Tr

av
el

29
2.

51
2,

24
0,

45
7.

98

C
he

ck
04

/0
5/

20
19

98
77

Pi
tn

ey
 B

ow
es

 G
lo

ba
l F

in
an

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s
(L

ea
se

 e
qu

ip
) B

ill
in

g:
 0

4/
10

/1
9 

- 0
7/

09
/1

9
√

Po
st

ag
e 

an
d 

D
el

iv
er

y
20

9.
64

2,
24

0,
24

8.
34

C
he

ck
04

/0
5/

20
19

98
78

SM
U

D
Ac

ct
. 1

20
95

85
 B

ill
in

g 
02

/2
0/

19
 - 

03
/2

0/
19

√
U

til
iti

es
34

3.
75

2,
23

9,
90

4.
59

C
he

ck
04

/0
5/

20
19

98
79

G
eo

rg
e 

H
ill

s 
C

om
pa

ny
In

v#
10

14
94

1 
- B

ill
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
 (F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
19

)
√

C
la

im
s 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

16
,3

07
.2

6
2,

22
3,

59
7.

33

C
he

ck
04

/0
5/

20
19

98
80

Ba
nk

 o
f t

he
 W

es
t /

 M
as

te
rC

ar
d

M
. D

ua
rte

 - 
St

at
em

en
t 0

2/
15

/1
8 

- 0
3/

14
/1

9
√

Ba
nk

 o
f t

he
 W

es
t C

C
 - 

M
at

t
99

7.
57

2,
22

2,
59

9.
76

C
he

ck
04

/0
5/

20
19

98
81

C
ov

er
al

l N
or

th
 A

m
er

ic
a

In
v#

 1
10

02
81

50
5 

(A
pr

il 
20

19
)

√
Bu

ild
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
/R

ep
ai

rs
19

9.
00

2,
22

2,
40

0.
76

C
he

ck
04

/0
5/

20
19

98
82

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 A

m
er

ic
an

 W
at

er
Bi

lli
ng

 P
er

io
d:

 F
eb

 2
2 

- M
ar

 2
1,

 2
01

9
√

U
til

iti
es

11
6.

09
2,

22
2,

28
4.

67

C
he

ck
04

/0
5/

20
19

98
83

Pu
rc

ha
se

 P
ow

er
St

at
em

en
t D

at
e:

 0
3/

22
/1

9 
(M

et
er

 P
os

ta
ge

 re
fil

l)
√

Po
st

ag
e 

an
d 

D
el

iv
er

y
52

1.
22

2,
22

1,
76

3.
45

C
he

ck
04

/1
1/

20
19

98
85

G
ib

bo
ns

 &
 C

on
le

y
In

v 
#1

9M
ar

 2
94

√
Le

ga
l F

ee
s

3,
91

5.
50

2,
21

7,
84

7.
95

C
he

ck
04

/1
1/

20
19

98
86

G
ilb

er
t A

ss
oc

ia
te

s,
 In

c.
22

43
0 

En
g 

In
v 

#3
25

50
8 

(M
ar

ch
 2

01
9)

√
Fi

na
nc

ia
l A

cc
ou

nt
in

g
2,

82
0.

00
2,

21
5,

02
7.

95

C
he

ck
04

/1
1/

20
19

98
87

Yo
rk

 R
is

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

W
C

 F
un

di
ng

 R
eq

: 0
4/

01
/1

9 
- 0

4/
30

/1
9

√
C

la
im

s 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
17

,6
31

.0
8

2,
19

7,
39

6.
87

C
he

ck
04

/1
1/

20
19

98
88

Pa
tri

ck
 C

ab
ul

ag
an

R
ei

m
bu

rs
e 

- D
is

tri
ct

 v
is

its
 (L

ak
e 

C
uy

am
ac

a)
√

Tr
av

el
/M

ee
tin

g
1,

03
8.

94
2,

19
6,

35
7.

93

C
he

ck
04

/1
1/

20
19

98
89

G
eo

rg
e 

H
ill

s 
C

om
pa

ny
In

v#
10

15
15

8 
- B

ill
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
 (M

ar
ch

 2
01

9)
√

C
la

im
s 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

17
,8

39
.6

6
2,

17
8,

51
8.

27

D
ep

os
it

04
/1

1/
20

19
D

ep
os

it
√

U
nd

ep
os

ite
d 

Fu
nd

s
16

,7
50

.0
0

2,
19

5,
26

8.
27

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
04

/1
2/

20
19

Q
ui

ck
Bo

ok
s 

Pa
yr

ol
l S

er
vi

ce
C

re
at

ed
 b

y 
Pa

yr
ol

l S
er

vi
ce

 o
n 

04
/1

1/
20

19
√

Pa
yr

ol
l

10
,4

11
.9

4
2,

18
4,

85
6.

33

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
04

/1
5/

20
19

ef
t

C
al

PE
R

S 
45

7 
Pl

an
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n

√
PE

R
S 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

40
.0

0
2,

18
4,

81
6.

33

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
04

/1
5/

20
19

ef
t

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t D

ev
el

op
m

en
t D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
93

2-
04

44
-4

√
Pa

yr
ol

l L
ia

bi
lit

ie
s

64
2.

90
2,

18
4,

17
3.

43

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
04

/1
5/

20
19

ef
t

PE
R

S
√

PE
R

S 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
2,

08
4.

74
2,

18
2,

08
8.

69

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
04

/1
5/

20
19

ef
t

U
ni

te
d 

St
at

es
 T

re
as

ur
y

68
-0

08
44

81
√

Pa
yr

ol
l L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s
1,

78
1.

28
2,

18
0,

30
7.

41

C
he

ck
04

/1
6/

20
19

98
90

Yo
rk

 R
is

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

Pr
ef

un
di

ng
 R

eq
: A

lb
rig

ht
 D

O
L 

01
/1

1/
19

 (h
os

pi
ta

l)
√

W
or

ke
rs

' C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

la
im

s
15

,2
11

.3
4

2,
16

5,
09

6.
07

C
he

ck
04

/1
6/

20
19

98
91

Yo
rk

 R
is

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

Pr
ef

un
di

ng
: D

ic
ke

rs
on

 D
O

L:
05

/1
1/

06
 (n

ur
si

ng
 h

om
e)

√
W

or
ke

rs
' C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

C
la

im
s

15
,7

14
.0

0
2,

14
9,

38
2.

07

C
he

ck
04

/1
6/

20
19

98
92

Yo
rk

 R
is

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

Pr
ef

un
di

ng
: S

pa
ul

di
ng

 D
O

L:
 0

8/
22

/1
7 

(C
.R

. M
ed

ic
al

)
√

W
or

ke
rs

' C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

la
im

s
15

,5
40

.0
0

2,
13

3,
84

2.
07

C
he

ck
04

/1
6/

20
19

98
93

C
AP

R
I

Fu
nd

in
g 

R
eq

: 0
4/

16
/1

9 
(2

) p
re

fu
nd

s
√

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 B

an
k 

& 
Tr

us
t

24
6,

57
2.

50
1,

88
7,

26
9.

57

C
he

ck
04

/1
7/

20
19

98
94

BI
ck

m
or

e 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l

In
v#

27
00

9 
- A

ct
ua

ria
l R

ev
ie

w
 2

01
9-

20
√

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s
6,

20
0.

00
1,

88
1,

06
9.

57

C
he

ck
04

/1
7/

20
19

98
95

Ka
is

er
 P

er
m

an
en

te
ID

# 
94

97
39

60
4 

- M
ay

 2
01

9 
Pr

em
iu

m
√

M
ed

ic
al

65
9.

61
1,

88
0,

40
9.

96

C
he

ck
04

/1
7/

20
19

98
96

Se
ar

ch
Pr

os
Bi

lli
ng

 - 
03

/3
1/

19
 - 

04
/0

6/
19

 (C
oy

le
)

√
Pa

rt-
Ti

m
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

37
7.

00
1,

88
0,

03
2.

96

C
he

ck
04

/1
7/

20
19

98
97

Yo
rk

 R
is

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

Fu
nd

in
g 

R
eq

ue
st

: 0
4/

01
/1

9 
- 0

4/
15

/1
9

√
U

m
qu

a 
Ba

nk
 - 

W
or

ke
rs

' C
om

p 
54

32
12

2,
14

1.
14

1,
75

7,
89

1.
82

D
ep

os
it

04
/1

7/
20

19
D

ep
os

it
√

W
or

ke
rs

' C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

la
im

s
21

8,
29

9.
19

1,
97

6,
19

1.
01

C
he

ck
04

/1
8/

20
19

98
98

C
AP

R
I

Fu
nd

in
g 

R
eq

: 0
4/

18
/1

9 
ck

s#
30

70
-3

08
9

√
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 B
an

k 
& 

Tr
us

t
10

2,
89

2.
38

1,
87

3,
29

8.
63

C
he

ck
04

/1
9/

20
19

98
99

C
AP

R
I

Fu
nd

in
g 

R
eq

: 0
4/

09
/1

9 
(A

pr
il)

 &
 3

 p
re

fu
nd

s
√

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 B

an
k 

& 
Tr

us
t

25
7,

25
6.

65
1,

61
6,

04
1.

98

C
he

ck
04

/2
2/

20
19

EF
T

C
al

PE
R

S
U

nf
un

de
d 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 P
ay

m
en

t
√

PE
R

S 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
12

1.
71

1,
61

5,
92

0.
27

C
he

ck
04

/2
2/

20
19

EF
T

C
al

PE
R

S
U

nf
un

de
d 

Li
ab

ili
ty

√
PE

R
S 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

4,
40

9.
76

1,
61

1,
51

0.
51

 P
a
g

e
 1

 o
f 

4

Page 13 of 157



 1
1
:0

9
 A

M

 0
9
/1

0
/1

9

 A
c
c
ru

a
l 

B
a
s
is

 C
a
li

fo
rn

ia
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

P
a
rk

 a
n

d
 R

e
c
re

a
ti

o
n

 I
n

d
e
m

n
it

y

 T
ra

n
s

a
c

ti
o

n
s

 b
y
 A

c
c

o
u

n
t

 A
s
 o

f 
J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 

2
0
1
9

T
y
p

e
D

a
te

N
u

m
A

d
j

N
a
m

e
M

e
m

o
C

la
s
s

C
lr

S
p

li
t

D
e
b

it
C

re
d

it
B

a
la

n
c
e

C
he

ck
04

/2
2/

20
19

99
00

Yo
rk

 R
is

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

Pr
ef

un
di

ng
: R

at
ne

r D
O

L:
 0

8/
22

/1
2 

(C
.R

. M
ed

ic
al

)
√

W
or

ke
rs

' C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

la
im

s
40

,0
00

.0
0

1,
57

1,
51

0.
51

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
04

/2
9/

20
19

Q
ui

ck
Bo

ok
s 

Pa
yr

ol
l S

er
vi

ce
C

re
at

ed
 b

y 
Pa

yr
ol

l S
er

vi
ce

 o
n 

04
/2

6/
20

19
√

Pa
yr

ol
l

9,
87

5.
03

1,
56

1,
63

5.
48

C
he

ck
04

/2
9/

20
19

99
01

Yo
rk

 R
is

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

Pr
ef

un
di

ng
: H

ar
ris

on
 D

O
L:

 0
9/

25
/8

1 
(O

D
R

 P
ay

m
en

t)
√

W
or

ke
rs

' C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

la
im

s
15

,0
00

.0
0

1,
54

6,
63

5.
48

C
he

ck
04

/2
9/

20
19

99
02

Ba
nk

 o
f t

he
 W

es
t /

 M
as

te
rC

ar
d

M
. D

ua
rte

 - 
St

at
em

en
t 0

3/
15

/1
8 

- 0
4/

14
/1

9
√

Ba
nk

 o
f t

he
 W

es
t C

C
 - 

M
at

t
1,

20
8.

42
1,

54
5,

42
7.

06

C
he

ck
04

/2
9/

20
19

99
03

Se
ar

ch
Pr

os
Bi

lli
ng

 - 
04

/1
4/

19
 - 

04
/2

0/
19

 (C
oy

le
)

√
Pa

rt-
Ti

m
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

33
9.

30
1,

54
5,

08
7.

76

C
he

ck
04

/2
9/

20
19

99
04

SM
U

D
Ac

ct
. 1

20
95

85
 B

ill
in

g 
03

/2
1/

19
 - 

04
/1

8/
19

√
U

til
iti

es
21

8.
29

1,
54

4,
86

9.
47

C
he

ck
04

/2
9/

20
19

99
05

M
at

th
ew

 B
 D

ua
rte

R
ei

m
bu

rs
e 

- T
ra

ve
l &

 s
up

pl
ie

s
√

R
ei

m
bu

rs
e 

- T
ra

ve
l &

 s
up

pl
ie

s
15

4.
03

1,
54

4,
71

5.
44

C
he

ck
04

/2
9/

20
19

99
06

Sm
ile

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pr

od
uc

ts
In

v#
73

62
49

 - 
Bi

lli
ng

 0
3/

14
/1

9 
- 0

5/
13

/1
9

√
C

op
ie

r S
er

vi
ce

/R
ep

ai
r

24
0.

84
1,

54
4,

47
4.

60

C
he

ck
04

/2
9/

20
19

99
07

M
U

FG
 U

ni
on

 B
an

k,
 N

.A
.

Ac
ct

# 
67

36
30

49
80

 - 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

9
√

Ba
nk

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
ha

rg
es

85
4.

00
1,

54
3,

62
0.

60

C
he

ck
04

/2
9/

20
19

99
08

C
on

so
lid

at
ed

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

Ac
ct

#9
16

-7
22

-5
55

0/
0 

03
/1

5/
19

 - 
05

/1
4/

19
√

Te
le

ph
on

e
88

7.
19

1,
54

2,
73

3.
41

C
he

ck
04

/2
9/

20
19

99
09

Al
ha

m
br

a
In

v#
15

27
52

69
-0

41
21

9 
(C

oo
le

r)
√

Bu
ild

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

/R
ep

ai
rs

4.
99

1,
54

2,
72

8.
42

C
he

ck
04

/2
9/

20
19

99
10

St
re

am
lin

e
M

on
th

ly
 s

er
vi

ce
 fe

e 
- A

pr
il 

20
19

√
IT

 S
er

vi
ce

s
10

0.
00

1,
54

2,
62

8.
42

C
he

ck
04

/2
9/

20
19

99
11

O
ffi

ce
 D

ep
ot

In
v#

30
11

24
43

60
01

 - 
ha

ng
in

g 
fil

es
 &

 b
ox

√
O

ffi
ce

 S
up

pl
ie

s
32

.3
3

1,
54

2,
59

6.
09

C
he

ck
04

/3
0/

20
19

99
12

C
AP

R
I

Fu
nd

in
g 

R
eq

ue
st

: 0
4/

30
/1

9
√

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 B

an
k 

& 
Tr

us
t

16
4,

40
0.

60
1,

37
8,

19
5.

49

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
05

/0
1/

20
19

ef
t

C
al

PE
R

S 
45

7 
Pl

an
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n

√
PE

R
S 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

40
.0

0
1,

37
8,

15
5.

49

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
05

/0
1/

20
19

ef
t

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t D

ev
el

op
m

en
t D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
93

2-
04

44
-4

√
Pa

yr
ol

l L
ia

bi
lit

ie
s

60
7.

08
1,

37
7,

54
8.

41

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
05

/0
1/

20
19

ef
t

PE
R

S
√

PE
R

S 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
1,

92
6.

77
1,

37
5,

62
1.

64

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
05

/0
1/

20
19

ef
t

U
ni

te
d 

St
at

es
 T

re
as

ur
y

68
-0

08
44

81
√

Pa
yr

ol
l L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s
1,

67
4.

36
1,

37
3,

94
7.

28

D
ep

os
it

05
/0

1/
20

19
D

ep
os

it
√

Ac
co

un
ts

 R
ec

ei
va

bl
e

76
1,

57
4.

00
2,

13
5,

52
1.

28

C
he

ck
05

/0
2/

20
19

99
13

Yo
rk

 R
is

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

W
C

 F
un

di
ng

 R
eq

ue
st

: 0
4/

16
/1

9 
- 0

4/
30

/1
9

√
W

or
ke

rs
' C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

C
la

im
s

63
,9

14
.8

6
2,

07
1,

60
6.

42

C
he

ck
05

/0
3/

20
19

99
15

C
AP

R
I

Pr
ef

un
di

ng
 - 

Be
ck

er
 (S

un
ris

e)
 D

O
L 

10
/2

5/
14

√
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 B
an

k 
& 

Tr
us

t
40

0,
00

0.
00

1,
67

1,
60

6.
42

C
he

ck
05

/0
8/

20
19

99
16

C
AP

R
I

Pr
ef

un
di

ng
 - 

Sc
hu

ltz
 (N

O
R

) D
O

L 
05

/1
7/

18
√

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 B

an
k 

& 
Tr

us
t

24
5,

00
0.

00
1,

42
6,

60
6.

42

C
he

ck
05

/1
0/

20
19

99
17

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 A

m
er

ic
an

 W
at

er
Bi

lli
ng

 P
er

io
d:

 M
ar

 2
2 

- A
pr

 2
2,

 2
01

9
√

U
til

iti
es

11
2.

32
1,

42
6,

49
4.

10

C
he

ck
05

/1
0/

20
19

99
18

PF
M

 A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
LL

C
In

v#
SM

A-
M

03
19

-1
04

87
3 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
9

√
In

ve
st

m
en

t A
dv

is
or

s
2,

55
3.

95
1,

42
3,

94
0.

15

C
he

ck
05

/1
0/

20
19

99
19

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 C

om
pu

te
r S

er
vi

ce
s 

(C
or

p)
In

v#
 8

22
01

 - 
C

C
S 

C
lo

ud
 b

ac
ku

p
√

IT
 S

er
vi

ce
s

1,
20

0.
00

1,
42

2,
74

0.
15

C
he

ck
05

/1
0/

20
19

99
20

R
el

ia
nc

e 
St

an
da

rd
 L

ife
 In

su
ra

nc
e

Bi
ll 

Pe
rio

d:
 M

ay
 2

01
9 

C
as

e#
9-

06
01

5-
00

01
√

Li
fe

 In
su

ra
nc

e
38

.0
0

1,
42

2,
70

2.
15

C
he

ck
05

/1
0/

20
19

99
21

Va
lle

y-
W

id
e 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

an
d 

Pa
rk

 D
is

tri
ct

Bo
ar

d 
M

tg
 0

1/
31

/1
9 

(D
ea

n 
W

et
te

r)
√

Tr
av

el
/M

ee
tin

g
22

8.
76

1,
42

2,
47

3.
39

C
he

ck
05

/1
0/

20
19

99
22

Ja
m

es
 M

ar
ta

 &
 C

om
pa

ny
Au

di
t f

or
 7

/1
/1

7 
-6

/3
0/

18
 - 

In
v#

32
√

Fi
na

nc
ia

l A
ud

it
8,

72
0.

00
1,

41
3,

75
3.

39

C
he

ck
05

/1
0/

20
19

99
23

Pl
ex

us
 G

lo
ba

l, 
LL

C
In

v#
11

57
3 

- C
SA

C
 s

et
-u

p 
fe

e 
fo

r K
irk

√
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s

14
1.

25
1,

41
3,

61
2.

14

C
he

ck
05

/1
0/

20
19

99
24

Ar
ca

de
 C

re
ek

 O
ffi

ce
 P

ar
k 

O
w

ne
rs

' A
ss

n
C

AM
S 

& 
D

ep
 to

 R
es

er
ve

s 
- M

ay
 2

01
9

√
C

AM
 &

 P
ro

ge
ct

 R
es

er
ve

s
71

3.
71

1,
41

2,
89

8.
43

C
he

ck
05

/1
0/

20
19

99
25

Yo
rk

 R
is

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

In
v#

50
00

18
71

8 
- W

C
 C

la
im

 A
dm

in
 fe

es
 (M

ay
)

√
C

la
im

s 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
17

,6
31

.0
8

1,
39

5,
26

7.
35

C
he

ck
05

/1
0/

20
19

99
26

O
cc

um
et

ric
In

v#
20

19
-A

PR
 - 

Te
st

s 
fo

r K
irk

 A
nd

re
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s

11
0.

00
1,

39
5,

15
7.

35

D
ep

os
it

05
/1

0/
20

19
D

ep
os

it
√

Ac
co

un
ts

 R
ec

ei
va

bl
e

18
5,

92
2.

75
1,

58
1,

08
0.

10

Tr
an

sf
er

05
/1

0/
20

19
Fu

nd
s 

Tr
an

sf
er

√
LA

IF
 - 

35
-3

4-
00

7
40

0,
00

0.
00

1,
98

1,
08

0.
10

C
he

ck
05

/1
3/

20
19

99
27

Se
ar

ch
Pr

os
Bi

lli
ng

 - 
04

/2
8/

19
 - 

05
/0

4/
19

 (C
oy

le
)

√
Pa

rt-
Ti

m
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

15
0.

80
1,

98
0,

92
9.

30

C
he

ck
05

/1
3/

20
19

99
28

G
ib

bo
ns

 &
 C

on
le

y
In

v 
#1

9 
Ap

ril
 3

26
√

Le
ga

l F
ee

s
3,

56
7.

00
1,

97
7,

36
2.

30

C
he

ck
05

/1
3/

20
19

99
29

C
ov

er
al

l N
or

th
 A

m
er

ic
a

In
v#

 1
10

02
82

49
1 

(M
ay

 2
01

9)
√

Bu
ild

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

/R
ep

ai
rs

19
9.

00
1,

97
7,

16
3.

30

C
he

ck
05

/1
3/

20
19

99
30

C
ity

 o
f C

itr
us

 H
ei

gh
ts

In
vo

ic
e#

 5
04

93
 - 

R
en

ew
 A

la
rm

 P
er

m
it

√
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s

15
.0

0
1,

97
7,

14
8.

30

C
he

ck
05

/1
3/

20
19

99
31

G
ilb

er
t A

ss
oc

ia
te

s,
 In

c.
22

43
0 

En
g 

In
v 

#3
26

03
7 

(A
pr

il 
20

19
)

√
Fi

na
nc

ia
l A

cc
ou

nt
in

g
6,

25
9.

64
1,

97
0,

88
8.

66

C
he

ck
05

/1
3/

20
19

99
32

G
eo

rg
e 

H
ill

s 
C

om
pa

ny
In

v#
10

15
34

5 
- B

ill
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
 (A

pr
il 

20
19

)
√

C
la

im
s 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

17
,9

66
.0

4
1,

95
2,

92
2.

62

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
05

/1
4/

20
19

Q
ui

ck
Bo

ok
s 

Pa
yr

ol
l S

er
vi

ce
C

re
at

ed
 b

y 
Pa

yr
ol

l S
er

vi
ce

 o
n 

05
/1

0/
20

19
√

Pa
yr

ol
l

12
,4

97
.3

9
1,

94
0,

42
5.

23

C
he

ck
05

/1
4/

20
19

99
33

Yo
rk

 R
is

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

Pr
ef

un
di

ng
 - 

D
ic

ke
rs

on
 (D

O
L 

5/
11

/0
6)

 N
ur

si
ng

 h
om

e
√

W
or

ke
rs

' C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

la
im

s
15

,2
57

.2
6

1,
92

5,
16

7.
97

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
05

/1
5/

20
19

EF
T

C
al

PE
R

S 
45

7 
Pl

an
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n

√
PE

R
S 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

40
.0

0
1,

92
5,

12
7.

97

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
05

/1
5/

20
19

EF
T

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t D

ev
el

op
m

en
t D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
93

2-
04

44
-4

√
Pa

yr
ol

l L
ia

bi
lit

ie
s

74
4.

41
1,

92
4,

38
3.

56

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
05

/1
5/

20
19

EF
T

PE
R

S
√

PE
R

S 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
2,

40
3.

97
1,

92
1,

97
9.

59

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
05

/1
5/

20
19

EF
T

U
ni

te
d 

St
at

es
 T

re
as

ur
y

68
-0

08
44

81
√

Pa
yr

ol
l L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s
2,

12
2.

14
1,

91
9,

85
7.

45

C
he

ck
05

/1
5/

20
19

99
34

C
os

tc
o

Su
pp

lie
s 

fo
r o

ffi
ce

 &
 c

on
fe

re
nc

e
√

O
ffi

ce
 S

up
pl

ie
s

50
0.

29
1,

91
9,

35
7.

16

C
he

ck
05

/1
6/

20
19

99
35

Yo
rk

 R
is

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

Pr
ef

un
di

ng
 - 

H
ar

ris
on

 (D
O

L 
3/

20
/1

9)
 H

os
pi

ta
l p

at
ie

nt
√

W
or

ke
rs

' C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

la
im

s
23

,4
00

.0
0

1,
89

5,
95

7.
16

C
he

ck
05

/2
0/

20
19

EF
T

C
al

PE
R

S
U

nf
un

de
d 

Li
ab

ili
ty

√
PE

R
S 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

4,
40

9.
76

1,
89

1,
54

7.
40

C
he

ck
05

/2
0/

20
19

EF
T

C
al

PE
R

S
U

nf
un

de
d 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 P
ay

m
en

t
√

PE
R

S 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
12

1.
71

1,
89

1,
42

5.
69

C
he

ck
05

/2
0/

20
19

99
36

Yo
rk

 R
is

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

W
C

 F
un

di
ng

 R
eq

ue
st

 - 
05

/0
1/

19
 - 

05
/1

5/
19

√
W

or
ke

rs
' C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

C
la

im
s

13
7,

81
9.

21
1,

75
3,

60
6.

48

C
he

ck
05

/2
0/

20
19

99
37

M
at

th
ew

 B
 D

ua
rte

R
ei

m
bu

rs
e 

- T
ra

ve
l &

 in
su

ra
nc

e 
pr

em
iu

m
√

R
ei

m
bu

rs
e 

- T
ra

ve
l &

 in
su

ra
nc

e 
pr

em
iu

m
1,

81
0.

67
1,

75
1,

79
5.

81

C
he

ck
05

/2
0/

20
19

99
38

Pa
tri

ck
 C

ab
ul

ag
an

R
ei

m
bu

rs
e 

- D
is

tri
ct

 v
is

it 
(S

un
ris

e)
√

Tr
av

el
/M

ee
tin

g
1,

09
7.

78
1,

75
0,

69
8.

03

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
05

/3
0/

20
19

Q
ui

ck
Bo

ok
s 

Pa
yr

ol
l S

er
vi

ce
C

re
at

ed
 b

y 
Pa

yr
ol

l S
er

vi
ce

 o
n 

05
/2

8/
20

19
√

Pa
yr

ol
l

9,
87

3.
85

1,
74

0,
82

4.
18

 P
a
g

e
 2

 o
f 

4

Page 14 of 157



 1
1
:0

9
 A

M

 0
9
/1

0
/1

9

 A
c
c
ru

a
l 

B
a
s
is

 C
a
li

fo
rn

ia
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

P
a
rk

 a
n

d
 R

e
c
re

a
ti

o
n

 I
n

d
e
m

n
it

y

 T
ra

n
s

a
c

ti
o

n
s

 b
y
 A

c
c

o
u

n
t

 A
s
 o

f 
J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 

2
0
1
9

T
y
p

e
D

a
te

N
u

m
A

d
j

N
a
m

e
M

e
m

o
C

la
s
s

C
lr

S
p

li
t

D
e
b

it
C

re
d

it
B

a
la

n
c
e

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

ef
t

C
al

PE
R

S 
45

7 
Pl

an
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n

√
PE

R
S 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

40
.0

0
1,

74
0,

78
4.

18

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

ef
t

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t D

ev
el

op
m

en
t D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
93

2-
04

44
-4

√
Pa

yr
ol

l L
ia

bi
lit

ie
s

69
9.

65
1,

74
0,

08
4.

53

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

ef
t

PE
R

S
√

PE
R

S 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
1,

91
5.

10
1,

73
8,

16
9.

43

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
39

Sa
cr

am
en

to
 C

ou
nt

y 
Se

rif
f's

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

34
-2

01
8-

00
22

76
42

√
W

ag
e 

G
ar

ni
sh

m
en

t -
 B

eb
e

48
9.

27
1,

73
7,

68
0.

16

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

ef
t

U
ni

te
d 

St
at

es
 T

re
as

ur
y

68
-0

08
44

81
√

Pa
yr

ol
l L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s
1,

85
3.

00
1,

73
5,

82
7.

16

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
40

Ba
nk

 o
f t

he
 W

es
t /

 M
as

te
rC

ar
d

M
. D

ua
rte

 - 
St

at
em

en
t 0

4/
15

/1
9 

- 0
5/

14
/1

9
√

Ba
nk

 o
f t

he
 W

es
t C

C
 - 

M
at

t
1,

78
5.

72
1,

73
4,

04
1.

44

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
41

Be
rth

a 
Pe

ar
so

n
R

ei
m

bu
rs

e 
- t

ra
ve

l t
o 

La
ke

 T
ah

oe
√

Tr
av

el
/M

ee
tin

g
14

6.
47

1,
73

3,
89

4.
97

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
42

Lo
re

na
 C

er
va

nt
es

R
ei

m
bu

rs
e 

- B
oa

rd
 M

tg
 5

/2
2/

19
 &

 C
on

fe
re

nc
e

√
Bo

ar
d 

M
ee

tin
g/

Tr
av

el
1,

59
6.

92
1,

73
2,

29
8.

05

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
43

La
rry

 M
az

zu
ca

R
ei

m
bu

rs
e 

- B
oa

rd
 M

tg
 5

/2
2/

19
 &

 C
on

fe
re

nc
e

√
Bo

ar
d 

M
ee

tin
g/

Tr
av

el
44

8.
12

1,
73

1,
84

9.
93

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
44

C
ar

le
e 

M
 W

es
to

n
R

ei
m

bu
rs

e 
- B

oa
rd

 M
tg

 (c
an

dy
)

√
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s

12
.4

3
1,

73
1,

83
7.

50

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
45

Ki
rk

 T
 A

nd
re

R
ei

m
bu

rs
e 

- B
oa

rd
 M

tg
 5

/2
2/

19
 &

 c
on

fe
re

nc
e

√
Tr

av
el

/M
ee

tin
g

12
6.

36
1,

73
1,

71
1.

14

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
46

C
AR

PD
Bo

ar
d 

M
tg

 0
5/

22
/1

9 
@

 L
ak

e 
Ta

ho
e 

R
es

or
t

√
C

AR
PD

 E
xp

en
se

s
1,

58
4.

03
1,

73
0,

12
7.

11

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
47

C
AR

PD
R

ei
m

bu
rs

e 
- H

ot
el

 R
oo

m
 fo

r L
or

en
a 

C
er

va
nt

es
√

Bo
ar

d 
M

ee
tin

g/
Tr

av
el

84
4.

06
1,

72
9,

28
3.

05

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
48

Se
ar

ch
Pr

os
Bi

lli
ng

 - 
05

/1
2/

19
 - 

05
/1

8/
19

 (C
oy

le
)

√
Pa

rt-
Ti

m
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

22
6.

20
1,

72
9,

05
6.

85

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
49

W
ils

on
 T

ro
ph

y 
C

om
pa

ny
In

vo
ic

e#
 A

18
-0

82
48

 - 
Sa

fe
ty

 A
w

ar
ds

√
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s

1,
61

0.
27

1,
72

7,
44

6.
58

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
50

G
eo

rg
e 

H
ill

s 
C

om
pa

ny
In

v#
10

15
48

7 
- S

ub
ro

 R
ec

ov
er

y 
Se

rv
ic

es
√

Su
br

o 
R

ec
ov

er
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

5,
57

4.
90

1,
72

1,
87

1.
68

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
51

St
re

am
lin

e
Se

rv
ic

e 
Fe

e 
- M

ay
 2

01
9 

(In
v#

10
04

37
)

√
IT

 S
er

vi
ce

s
10

0.
00

1,
72

1,
77

1.
68

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
52

M
U

FG
 U

ni
on

 B
an

k,
 N

.A
.

Ac
ct

# 
67

36
30

49
80

 - 
Ap

ril
 2

01
9

√
Ba

nk
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

ha
rg

es
83

7.
00

1,
72

0,
93

4.
68

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
53

Sm
ile

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pr

od
uc

ts
In

v#
74

67
35

 - 
Bi

lli
ng

 0
5/

14
/1

9 
- 0

6/
13

/1
9

√
C

op
ie

r S
er

vi
ce

/R
ep

ai
r

24
9.

16
1,

72
0,

68
5.

52

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
54

C
on

so
lid

at
ed

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

Ac
ct

#9
16

-7
22

-5
55

0/
0 

05
/1

5/
19

 - 
06

/1
4/

19
√

Te
le

ph
on

e
44

9.
55

1,
72

0,
23

5.
97

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
55

PF
M

 A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
LL

C
In

v#
M

04
19

-1
00

26
 A

pr
il 

20
19

√
In

ve
st

m
en

t A
dv

is
or

s
2,

48
0.

81
1,

71
7,

75
5.

16

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
56

SM
U

D
Ac

ct
. 1

20
95

85
 B

ill
in

g 
04

/1
9/

19
 - 

05
/1

7/
19

√
U

til
iti

es
19

2.
20

1,
71

7,
56

2.
96

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
57

R
el

ia
nc

e 
St

an
da

rd
 L

ife
 In

su
ra

nc
e

Bi
ll 

Pe
rio

d:
 J

un
e 

20
19

 C
as

e#
9-

06
01

5-
00

01
√

Li
fe

 In
su

ra
nc

e
62

.5
0

1,
71

7,
50

0.
46

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
58

Sa
cr

am
en

to
 C

ou
nt

y 
U

til
iti

es
Ac

ct
#5

00
02

36
89

32
 B

ill
 C

yc
le

: 0
4/

15
/1

9 
- 0

6/
14

/1
9

√
U

til
iti

es
11

3.
70

1,
71

7,
38

6.
76

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
59

O
ffi

ce
 D

ep
ot

In
v#

31
57

07
41

90
01

 - 
cl

ea
r l

it.
 h

ol
de

r &
 p

ap
er

√
O

ffi
ce

 S
up

pl
ie

s
55

.9
7

1,
71

7,
33

0.
79

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
60

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 C

om
pu

te
r S

er
vi

ce
s 

(C
or

p)
In

v#
 8

23
08

 - 
La

pt
op

 s
er

vi
ce

d 
(C

AP
R

I)
√

IT
 S

er
vi

ce
s

13
7.

50
1,

71
7,

19
3.

29

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
61

Ta
rg

et
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

 L
ea

rn
in

g,
 L

LC
.

La
w

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t &
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

C
at

al
og

s
√

Lo
ss

 P
re

ve
nt

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

44
8.

00
1,

71
6,

74
5.

29

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
62

PA
R

M
A

VO
ID

: I
nv

# 
09

56
60

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
ue

s
√

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 D
ue

s
0.

00
1,

71
6,

74
5.

29

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
63

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 A

m
er

ic
an

 W
at

er
Bi

lli
ng

 P
er

io
d:

 A
pr

 2
3 

- M
ay

 2
1,

 2
01

9
√

U
til

iti
es

11
9.

01
1,

71
6,

62
6.

28

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

99
64

C
AR

PD
R

ei
m

bu
rs

e 
- H

ot
el

 R
oo

m
 fo

r C
ol

in
 M

ill
er

√
Bo

ar
d 

M
ee

tin
g/

Tr
av

el
59

2.
62

1,
71

6,
03

3.
66

D
ep

os
it

05
/3

1/
20

19
D

ep
os

it
√

Ac
co

un
ts

 R
ec

ei
va

bl
e

12
1,

00
8.

01
1,

83
7,

04
1.

67

C
he

ck
05

/3
1/

20
19

AC
H

G
eo

rg
e 

H
ill

s 
C

om
pa

ny
Li

ab
ili

ty
 F

un
di

ng
 R

eq
ue

st
 - 

5/
21

/1
9 

C
K 

#3
09

4-
31

26
√

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 B

an
k 

& 
Tr

us
t

82
,9

72
.5

5
1,

75
4,

06
9.

12

D
ep

os
it

06
/0

4/
20

19
D

ep
os

it
√

Ac
co

un
ts

 R
ec

ei
va

bl
e

26
5,

20
8.

25
2,

01
9,

27
7.

37

C
he

ck
06

/0
5/

20
19

AC
H

C
AP

R
I

Fu
nd

in
g 

R
eq

 0
6/

04
/1

9 
ck

#3
12

7-
31

29
√

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 B

an
k 

& 
Tr

us
t

18
,9

13
.4

8
2,

00
0,

36
3.

89

C
he

ck
06

/1
1/

20
19

99
65

Ar
ca

de
 C

re
ek

 O
ffi

ce
 P

ar
k 

O
w

ne
rs

' A
ss

n
C

AM
S 

& 
D

ep
 to

 R
es

er
ve

s 
- J

un
e 

20
19

√
C

AM
 &

 P
ro

ge
ct

 R
es

er
ve

s
71

3.
71

1,
99

9,
65

0.
18

C
he

ck
06

/1
1/

20
19

99
66

C
ar

le
e 

M
 W

es
to

n
R

ei
m

bu
rs

e 
- M

ile
ag

e 
(p

-u
p 

si
gn

ag
e 

& 
pl

aq
ue

s)
√

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s
14

.5
0

1,
99

9,
63

5.
68

C
he

ck
06

/1
1/

20
19

99
67

Ji
m

 F
rie

dl
R

ei
m

bu
rs

e 
- B

oa
rd

 M
tg

 0
5/

22
/1

9
√

Bo
ar

d 
M

ee
tin

g/
Tr

av
el

51
1.

50
1,

99
9,

12
4.

18

C
he

ck
06

/1
1/

20
19

99
68

H
es

pe
ria

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

an
d 

Pa
rk

 D
is

tri
ct

R
ei

m
bu

rs
e 

- B
oa

rd
 M

tg
 0

5/
22

/1
9

√
Bo

ar
d 

M
ee

tin
g/

Tr
av

el
19

9.
82

1,
99

8,
92

4.
36

C
he

ck
06

/1
1/

20
19

99
69

C
ov

er
al

l N
or

th
 A

m
er

ic
a

In
v#

 1
10

02
83

49
3 

(J
un

e 
20

19
)

√
Bu

ild
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
/R

ep
ai

rs
19

9.
00

1,
99

8,
72

5.
36

C
he

ck
06

/1
1/

20
19

99
70

C
ol

in
 M

ill
er

R
ei

m
bu

rs
e 

- B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

g 
05

/2
2/

19
Bo

ar
d 

M
ee

tin
g/

Tr
av

el
12

6.
35

1,
99

8,
59

9.
01

C
he

ck
06

/1
1/

20
19

99
71

G
ib

bo
ns

 &
 C

on
le

y
In

v 
#1

9 
M

ay
 3

61
√

Le
ga

l F
ee

s
5,

00
2.

00
1,

99
3,

59
7.

01

C
he

ck
06

/1
1/

20
19

99
72

G
ol

de
n 

St
at

e 
R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t A

ut
ho

rit
y

In
v#

EB
06

15
19

-0
5 

G
ro

up
 H

ea
lth

 P
la

n
√

M
ed

ic
al

7,
29

4.
00

1,
98

6,
30

3.
01

C
he

ck
06

/1
1/

20
19

99
73

G
ol

de
n 

St
at

e 
R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t A

ut
ho

rit
y

In
v#

AN
C

06
15

19
-0

4 
G

ro
up

 D
en

ta
l P

la
n

√
M

ed
ic

al
88

4.
98

1,
98

5,
41

8.
03

C
he

ck
06

/1
1/

20
19

99
74

D
ea

n 
W

et
te

r
VO

ID
: R

ei
m

bu
rs

e 
- B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g 

05
/2

2/
19

√
Bo

ar
d 

M
ee

tin
g/

Tr
av

el
0.

00
1,

98
5,

41
8.

03

C
he

ck
06

/1
1/

20
19

99
75

M
at

th
ew

 B
 D

ua
rte

R
ei

m
bu

rs
e 

- o
ffi

ce
 s

up
pl

ie
s

√
O

ffi
ce

 S
up

pl
ie

s
63

.4
4

1,
98

5,
35

4.
59

C
he

ck
06

/1
1/

20
19

99
76

O
ffi

ce
 D

ep
ot

(2
) I

nv
oi

ce
s 

- s
ee

 b
el

ow
√

O
ffi

ce
 S

up
pl

ie
s

18
3.

36
1,

98
5,

17
1.

23

C
he

ck
06

/1
1/

20
19

99
77

Al
l S

ta
r P

rin
tin

g
VO

ID
: I

nv
#7

52
15

 - 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 C

ar
ds

 (K
irk

)
√

Pr
in

tin
g 

an
d 

R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n
0.

00
1,

98
5,

17
1.

23

C
he

ck
06

/1
1/

20
19

99
78

Va
lle

y-
W

id
e 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

an
d 

Pa
rk

 D
is

tri
ct

Bo
ar

d 
M

tg
 0

5/
22

/1
9 

(D
ea

n 
W

et
te

r)
√

Tr
av

el
/M

ee
tin

g
31

6.
96

1,
98

4,
85

4.
27

C
he

ck
06

/1
1/

20
19

99
79

Al
l S

ta
r P

rin
tin

g
In

v#
75

21
5 

- B
us

in
es

s 
C

ar
ds

 (K
irk

)
√

Pr
in

tin
g 

an
d 

R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n
74

.3
5

1,
98

4,
77

9.
92

C
he

ck
06

/1
2/

20
19

99
88

La
ke

 C
uy

am
ac

a 
R

ec
re

at
io

n 
& 

Pa
rk

 D
is

tri
ct

R
ef

un
d 

fo
r o

ve
rp

ay
m

en
ts

Ac
co

un
ts

 R
ec

ei
va

bl
e

60
.0

0
1,

98
4,

71
9.

92

D
ep

os
it

06
/1

2/
20

19
D

ep
os

it
√

Ac
co

un
ts

 R
ec

ei
va

bl
e

23
,7

91
.7

6
2,

00
8,

51
1.

68

C
he

ck
06

/1
2/

20
19

AC
H

Yo
rk

 R
is

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

W
C

 F
un

di
ng

 R
eq

ue
st

 - 
05

/1
6/

19
 - 

05
/3

1/
19

√
W

or
ke

rs
' C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

C
la

im
s

99
,4

47
.0

0
1,

90
9,

06
4.

68

Pa
yc

he
ck

06
/1

4/
20

19
99

81
C

ar
le

e 
M

 W
es

to
n

O
pe

ra
tin

g
√

Pa
yr

ol
l

1,
09

0.
62

1,
90

7,
97

4.
06

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
06

/1
4/

20
19

99
84

Sa
cr

am
en

to
 C

ou
nt

y 
Se

rif
f's

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

34
-2

01
8-

00
22

76
42

√
W

ag
e 

G
ar

ni
sh

m
en

t -
 B

eb
e

48
9.

27
1,

90
7,

48
4.

79

 P
a
g

e
 3

 o
f 

4

Page 15 of 157



 1
1
:0

9
 A

M

 0
9
/1

0
/1

9

 A
c
c
ru

a
l 

B
a
s
is

 C
a
li

fo
rn

ia
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

P
a
rk

 a
n

d
 R

e
c
re

a
ti

o
n

 I
n

d
e
m

n
it

y

 T
ra

n
s

a
c

ti
o

n
s

 b
y
 A

c
c

o
u

n
t

 A
s
 o

f 
J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 

2
0
1
9

T
y
p

e
D

a
te

N
u

m
A

d
j

N
a
m

e
M

e
m

o
C

la
s
s

C
lr

S
p

li
t

D
e
b

it
C

re
d

it
B

a
la

n
c
e

Pa
yc

he
ck

06
/1

4/
20

19
99

85
Be

rth
a 

Pe
ar

so
n

O
pe

ra
tin

g
√

Pa
yr

ol
l

1,
44

3.
50

1,
90

6,
04

1.
29

Pa
yc

he
ck

06
/1

4/
20

19
99

86
Ki

rk
 T

 A
nd

re
O

pe
ra

tin
g

√
Pa

yr
ol

l
2,

09
4.

80
1,

90
3,

94
6.

49

Pa
yc

he
ck

06
/1

4/
20

19
99

87
M

at
th

ew
 B

 D
ua

rte
O

pe
ra

tin
g

√
Pa

yr
ol

l
4,

87
9.

47
1,

89
9,

06
7.

02

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
06

/1
4/

20
19

ef
t

C
al

PE
R

S 
45

7 
Pl

an
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n

√
PE

R
S 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

40
.0

0
1,

89
9,

02
7.

02

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
06

/1
4/

20
19

ef
t

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t D

ev
el

op
m

en
t D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
93

2-
04

44
-4

√
Pa

yr
ol

l L
ia

bi
lit

ie
s

67
7.

89
1,

89
8,

34
9.

13

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
06

/1
4/

20
19

ef
t

PE
R

S
√

PE
R

S 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
1,

87
4.

26
1,

89
6,

47
4.

87

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
06

/1
4/

20
19

ef
t

U
ni

te
d 

St
at

es
 T

re
as

ur
y

68
-0

08
44

81
√

Pa
yr

ol
l L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s
1,

77
1.

24
1,

89
4,

70
3.

63

C
he

ck
06

/1
7/

20
19

EF
T

C
al

PE
R

S
U

nf
un

de
d 

Li
ab

ili
ty

√
PE

R
S 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

4,
40

9.
76

1,
89

0,
29

3.
87

C
he

ck
06

/1
7/

20
19

EF
T

C
al

PE
R

S
U

nf
un

de
d 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 P
ay

m
en

t
√

PE
R

S 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
12

1.
71

1,
89

0,
17

2.
16

C
he

ck
06

/1
8/

20
19

AC
H

Yo
rk

 R
is

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

Pr
ef

un
di

ng
: D

ic
ke

rs
on

 D
O

L 
05

/1
1/

19
 (M

ed
ic

al
)

√
W

or
ke

rs
' C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

C
la

im
s

15
,6

24
.0

0
1,

87
4,

54
8.

16

C
he

ck
06

/2
1/

20
19

99
89

St
re

am
lin

e
Se

rv
ic

e 
Fe

e 
- J

un
e 

20
19

 (I
nv

#1
00

74
7)

IT
 S

er
vi

ce
s

10
0.

00
1,

87
4,

44
8.

16

C
he

ck
06

/2
1/

20
19

99
90

Ki
rk

 T
 A

nd
re

R
ei

m
bu

rs
e 

- D
is

tri
ct

 V
is

its
√

R
ei

m
bu

rs
e 

- D
is

tri
ct

 V
is

its
26

6.
80

1,
87

4,
18

1.
36

D
ep

os
it

06
/2

1/
20

19
D

ep
os

it
√

Ac
co

un
ts

 R
ec

ei
va

bl
e

20
4,

25
5.

48
2,

07
8,

43
6.

84

C
he

ck
06

/2
4/

20
19

AC
H

Yo
rk

 R
is

k 
Se

rv
ic

es
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

W
C

 F
un

di
ng

 R
eq

ue
st

: 0
6/

01
/1

9 
- 0

6/
15

/1
9

√
W

or
ke

rs
' C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

C
la

im
s

96
,2

41
.3

5
1,

98
2,

19
5.

49

C
he

ck
06

/2
7/

20
19

99
91

Ba
nk

 o
f t

he
 W

es
t /

 M
as

te
rC

ar
d

M
. D

ua
rte

 - 
St

at
em

en
t 0

5/
15

/1
9 

- 0
6/

14
/1

9
√

Ba
nk

 o
f t

he
 W

es
t C

C
 - 

M
at

t
8,

27
6.

79
1,

97
3,

91
8.

70

D
ep

os
it

06
/2

7/
20

19
D

ep
os

it
√

Ac
co

un
ts

 R
ec

ei
va

bl
e

10
,9

57
.1

2
1,

98
4,

87
5.

82

Pa
yc

he
ck

06
/2

8/
20

19
99

93
C

ar
le

e 
M

 W
es

to
n

O
pe

ra
tin

g
√

Pa
yr

ol
l

1,
13

1.
46

1,
98

3,
74

4.
36

Pa
yc

he
ck

06
/2

8/
20

19
99

92
Be

rth
a 

Pe
ar

so
n

O
pe

ra
tin

g
√

Pa
yr

ol
l

1,
44

3.
50

1,
98

2,
30

0.
86

Pa
yc

he
ck

06
/2

8/
20

19
99

94
Ki

rk
 T

 A
nd

re
O

pe
ra

tin
g

√
Pa

yr
ol

l
2,

09
4.

81
1,

98
0,

20
6.

05

Pa
yc

he
ck

06
/2

8/
20

19
99

95
M

at
th

ew
 B

 D
ua

rte
O

pe
ra

tin
g

√
Pa

yr
ol

l
4,

87
9.

47
1,

97
5,

32
6.

58

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
06

/2
8/

20
19

ef
t

C
al

PE
R

S 
45

7 
Pl

an
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n

PE
R

S 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
40

.0
0

1,
97

5,
28

6.
58

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
06

/2
8/

20
19

ef
t

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t D

ev
el

op
m

en
t D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
93

2-
04

44
-4

Pa
yr

ol
l L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s
67

9.
04

1,
97

4,
60

7.
54

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
06

/2
8/

20
19

ef
t

PE
R

S
PE

R
S 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

1,
88

1.
07

1,
97

2,
72

6.
47

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
06

/2
8/

20
19

99
96

Sa
cr

am
en

to
 C

ou
nt

y 
Se

rif
f's

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

34
-2

01
8-

00
22

76
42

W
ag

e 
G

ar
ni

sh
m

en
t -

 B
eb

e
48

9.
27

1,
97

2,
23

7.
20

Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
he

ck
06

/2
8/

20
19

ef
t

U
ni

te
d 

St
at

es
 T

re
as

ur
y

68
-0

08
44

81
√

Pa
yr

ol
l L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s
1,

77
8.

72
1,

97
0,

45
8.

48

C
he

ck
06

/2
8/

20
19

10
01

6
Se

ar
ch

Pr
os

Bi
lli

ng
 - 

05
/0

5/
19

 - 
05

/1
1/

19
 (C

oy
le

)
Pa

rt-
Ti

m
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

15
0.

80
1,

97
0,

30
7.

68

C
he

ck
06

/2
8/

20
19

10
01

7
PF

M
 A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

LL
C

In
v#

M
05

19
-1

05
77

 M
ay

 2
01

9
In

ve
st

m
en

t A
dv

is
or

s
2,

54
5.

03
1,

96
7,

76
2.

65

C
he

ck
06

/2
8/

20
19

10
01

8
M

U
FG

 U
ni

on
 B

an
k,

 N
.A

.
Ac

ct
# 

67
36

30
49

80
 - 

M
ay

 2
01

9
Ba

nk
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

ha
rg

es
86

8.
00

1,
96

6,
89

4.
65

C
he

ck
06

/2
8/

20
19

10
01

9
M

at
th

ew
 B

 D
ua

rte
R

ei
m

bu
rs

e 
- T

ra
ve

l t
o 

Au
bu

rn
 P

ar
k 

& 
R

ec
Tr

av
el

/M
ee

tin
g

37
.2

8
1,

96
6,

85
7.

37

C
he

ck
06

/2
8/

20
19

10
02

0
G

eo
rg

e 
H

ill
s 

C
om

pa
ny

In
v#

10
15

54
8 

- B
ill

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 (M
ay

 2
01

9)
C

la
im

s 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
14

,1
91

.6
4

1,
95

2,
66

5.
73

C
he

ck
06

/2
8/

20
19

10
02

1
G

ilb
er

t A
ss

oc
ia

te
s,

 In
c.

22
43

0 
En

g 
In

v 
#3

26
41

1 
(M

ay
 2

01
9)

Fi
na

nc
ia

l A
cc

ou
nt

in
g

5,
44

4.
25

1,
94

7,
22

1.
48

C
he

ck
06

/2
8/

20
19

10
02

2
Yo

rk
 R

is
k 

Se
rv

ic
es

 G
ro

up
, I

nc
In

v#
50

00
18

78
3 

- W
C

 C
la

im
 A

dm
in

 fe
es

 (J
un

e 
20

19
)

W
or

ke
rs

' C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

la
im

s
17

,6
31

.0
8

1,
92

9,
59

0.
40

C
he

ck
06

/2
8/

20
19

10
02

3
SM

U
D

Ac
ct

. 1
20

95
85

 B
ill

in
g 

05
/1

8/
19

 - 
06

/1
8/

19
U

til
iti

es
27

9.
34

1,
92

9,
31

1.
06

To
ta

l B
an

k 
of

 W
es

t -
 M

as
te

r R
eg

is
te

r
3,

91
2,

54
9.

61
4,

39
8,

07
5.

45
1,

92
9,

31
1.

06
3
,9

1
2
,5

4
9
.6

1
4
,3

9
8
,0

7
5
.4

5
1
,9

2
9
,3

1
1
.0

6

 P
a
g

e
 4

 o
f 

4

Page 16 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

       Agenda Item 8.1 

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
 
SUBJECT: Liability Claims Management Review 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Staff, together with Charles Torretta from George Hills Company, will provide a 
presentation regarding the Liability Claims Management policies and procedures and 
discuss current trends and performance of CAPRI’s Liability program. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• Liability Claims Handling Presentation 
• Excerpt from CAPRI Policies and Procedures: Claims Management Policy 
 

 

Page 17 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
la

im
s 

H
an

dl
in

g 
Re

vi
ew

Se
pt

em
be

r 1
8,

 2
01

9

Page 18 of 157



O
bj

ec
tiv

es
Pr

ov
id

e 
an

 
ov

er
vi

ew
 o

f 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 C

ov
er

ag
es

 
of

fe
re

d 
by

 C
A

PR
I

1
Re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 D
is

cu
ss

 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 fo
r 

H
an

dl
in

g 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

Cl
ai

m
s

2
Sh

ow
 C

la
im

s 
Ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

ov
er

 
la

st
 5

-1
0 

ye
ar

s 
an

d 
hi

gh
lig

ht
 tr

en
ds

3

Page 19 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 
Pr

og
ra

m

Page 20 of 157



Co
ve

ra
ge

 
Su

m
m

ar
y

W
ho

is
 c

ov
er

ed
?

•B
oa

rd
 o

f D
ire

ct
or

s
•E

m
pl

oy
ee

s
•V

ol
un

te
er

s
•T

ho
se

 y
ou

 c
on

tr
ac

t 
w

ith
 th

at
 re

qu
ire

 y
ou

 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 c
ov

er
ag

e

Page 21 of 157



Co
ve

ra
ge

 
Su

m
m

ar
y

W
ha

ti
s 

co
ve

re
d?

G
en

er
al

 L
ia

bi
lit

y

A
ut

o 
Li

ab
ili

ty

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t P

ra
ct

ic
es

 L
ia

bi
lit

y

Pu
bl

ic
 O

ff
ic

ia
ls

 E
rr

or
s 

an
d 

O
m

is
si

on
s

*S
ub

je
ct

 to
 e

xc
lu

si
on

s o
ut

lin
ed

 in
 M

O
C

Page 22 of 157



Co
ve

ra
ge

 S
um

m
ar

y

W
ha

t i
s 

ex
cl

ud
ed

?*


Br
ea

ch
 o

f C
on

tr
ac

t


Po
llu

tio
n


A

sb
es

to
s


Fu

ll 
Co

nt
ac

t B
ox

in
g/

M
ar

tia
l A

rt
s


H

an
g 

G
lid

in
g


Tr

am
po

lin
es

 


Ta
ck

le
 F

oo
tb

al
l


Ve

hi
cl

es
 se

at
in

g 
20

 o
r m

or
e 

–
a n

d 
Fi

xe
d 

Ro
ut

e 
Tr

an
si

t


Lo
co

m
ot

iv
es

, S
pe

ed
er

, R
ai

lro
ad

 C
ar

 o
n 

tr
ac

ks
 m

or
e 

t h
an

 2
4”

 w
id

e


Ra
ci

ng
 o

f m
ot

or
 v

eh
ic

le
s,

 w
at

er
cr

af
t,

 s
no

w
m

ob
ile

, 
et

c.

*N
ot

 e
xh

au
st

iv
e 

–
Se

e 
M

O
C 

fo
r m

or
e

Page 23 of 157



Co
ve

ra
ge

 S
um

m
ar

y

W
ha

t i
s 

ex
cl

ud
ed

?*
 (C

on
tin

ue
d)


Li

ab
ili

ty
 a

ris
in

g 
ou

t o
f c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n,

 a
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
, 

or
 e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

or
 to

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

fo
r t

he
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

of
 g

oo
ds


Li

ab
ili

ty
 a

ris
in

g 
ou

t o
f t

ax
es

, f
ee

s,
 b

en
ef

it 
a s

se
ss

m
en

t


Li
ab

ili
ty

 a
ris

in
g 

ou
t o

f t
he

 fa
ilu

re
 o

f i
nv

es
tm

en
ts

 
i n

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
t n

ot
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 b
on

ds
, s

to
ck

s,
 m

ut
ua

l 
fu

nd
s,

 e
tc

.


Em
in

en
t D

om
ai

n,
 C

on
de

m
na

tio
n 

Pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s o

r 
i n

ve
rs

e 
co

nd
em

na
tio

n


Li
ab

ili
ty

 a
ris

in
g 

ou
t o

f s
ub

si
de

nc
e 

or
 la

nd
 

m
o v

em
en

t


Po
llu

tio
n,

 C
on

ta
m

in
at

io
n,

 e
tc

.


W
ill

fu
l v

io
la

tio
n 

of
 p

en
al

 s
ta

tu
te

, l
aw

, c
od

e 
or

 
o r

di
na

nc
e

*N
ot

 e
xh

au
st

iv
e 

–
Se

e 
M

O
C 

fo
r m

or
e

Page 24 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

Pr
og

ra
m

:

D
ED

U
CT

IB
LE

S

$0
$1

0,
00

0

$2
5,

00
0

$5
0,

00
0

$1
00

,0
00

Page 25 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

Pr
og

ra
m

:

D
ED

U
CT

IB
LE

S

$0
$1

0,
00

0

$2
5,

00
0

$5
0,

00
0

$1
00

,0
00

M
EM

BE
R 

SI
R 

O
PT

IO
N

S

Page 26 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

Pr
og

ra
m

:

D
ED

U
CT

IB
LE

S
$5

,0
00

$2
0,

00
0

Page 27 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

Pr
og

ra
m

:

D
ED

U
CT

IB
LE

S
$5

,0
00

$2
0,

00
0

M
em

be
r E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

Pr
ac

tic
es

 S
IR

•
Fo

r E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t P
ra

ct
ic

es
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

th
e 

de
du

ct
ib

le
 is

 
$5

,0
00

 b
ut

 if
 y

ou
 d

o 
no

t r
ep

or
t t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l c

la
im

 a
nd

 
do

 n
ot

 c
on

su
lt/

se
ek

 th
e 

ad
vi

ce
 o

f a
 p

er
so

nn
el

/la
bo

r 
at

to
rn

ey
 th

en
 th

e 
de

du
ct

ib
le

 in
cr

ea
se

s 
to

  $
20

,0
00

Page 28 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

Pr
og

ra
m

:

D
ED

U
CT

IB
LE

S
$7

50
,0

00

CA
PR

I S
IR

•
CA

PR
I c

ov
er

ag
e 

st
ar

ts
 a

ft
er

 m
em

be
r’s

 la
ye

r e
xh

au
st

ed

Page 29 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 P
ro

gr
am

:

Co
ve

ra
ge

 L
im

its

CA
PR

I p
ar

tic
ip

at
es

 in
 C

SA
C-

EI
A

 fo
r e

xc
es

s 
co

ve
ra

ge
 b

ey
on

d 
its

 S
IR

 u
p 

to
:

$
25

,0
00

,0
00


In

cl
us

iv
e 

of
 C

A
PR

I’s
 S

el
f-

In
su

re
d 

Re
te

nt
io

n 
fo

r G
en

er
al

 L
ia

bi
lit

y,
 A

ut
o 

Li
ab

ili
ty

, P
ub

lic
 

O
ff

ic
ia

ls
 E

&
O

, a
nd

 E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t P
ra

ct
ic

es
 

Li
ab

ili
ty

Page 30 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 
Pr

og
ra

m
:

Co
ve

ra
ge

 
Su

m
m

ar
y

CS
A

C-
EI

A

CA
PR

I

M
em

be
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t
$0

-1
00

K

$0
-7

50
K

$7
50

K
-2

5M

Page 31 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
la

im
s 

H
an

dl
in

g 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
es

5 
St

ep
s

Page 32 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
la

im
 R

ev
ie

w

N
ot

ify
 C

A
P

R
I

Im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 n
ot

ify
 C

A
PR

I  
of

 a
ll 

cl
ai

m
s 

or
 a

tt
em

pt
s t

o 
m

ak
e 

a 
cl

ai
m

.

R
ev

ie
w

 T
im

el
in

es
s

D
id

 th
e 

ev
en

t h
ap

pe
n 

le
ss

 
th

an
 s

ix
 m

on
th

s
be

fo
re

 
th

e 
da

te
 o

f t
he

 c
la

im
 w

as
 

se
rv

ed
?

R
ev

ie
w

 S
uf

fic
ie

nc
y

D
oe

s 
th

e 
cl

ai
m

 p
ro

vi
de

 
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

as
 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t C
od

e?
 

In
ve

st
ig

at
e

In
ve

st
ig

at
e 

th
e 

m
er

its
 o

f 
th

e 
cl

ai
m

.

Ta
ke

 A
ct

io
n

Ei
th

er
 A

cc
ep

t o
r R

ej
ec

t t
he

 
Cl

ai
m

 a
nd

 s
en

d 
N

ot
ic

e 
to

 
th

e 
Cl

ai
m

an
t.

Page 33 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
la

im
 R

ev
ie

w
:

1.
 N

ot
ify

 C
A

PR
I

Page 34 of 157



Liability
Claim

 Review

Three M
ost Im

portant R
ules in 

Liability Claim
s H

andling

1. N
otify CA

PRI im
m

ediately.

2. N
otify CA

PRI im
m

ediately.

3. N
otify CA

PRI im
m

ediately.

Page 35 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 
Cl

ai
m

 R
ev

ie
w

1.
 N

ot
ify

 C
A

PR
I


It’

s 
im

po
rt

an
t t

ha
t t

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t i

m
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 n
ot

ify
 C

A
PR

I i
n 

or
de

r 
to

 p
re

se
rv

e 
th

ei
r c

ov
er

ag
e 

un
de

r t
he

 M
em

or
an

du
m

 o
f C

ov
er

ag
e


Co

nd
iti

on
s o

f C
ov

er
ag

e 
–

D
u t

ie
s 

in
 E

ve
nt

 o
f a

n 
O

cc
ur

re
nc

e,
 

W
ro

ng
fu

l A
ct

, C
la

im
 o

r S
ui

t (
Pa

ge
 1

0 
of

 M
O

C)


“M

em
be

r d
is

tr
ic

t o
r o

th
er

 c
ov

er
ed

 p
ar

ty
m

us
t s

ee
 to

 it
 th

at
 

Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
fo

r P
ar

k 
an

d 
Re

cr
ea

tio
n 

In
de

m
ni

ty
 (C

A
PR

I) 
is

 
no

tif
ie

d 
as

 s
oo

n 
as

 p
ra

ct
ic

al
 o

f a
n 

oc
cu

rr
en

ce
or

 w
ro

ng
fu

l a
ct

w
hi

ch
 

ap
pe

ar
s 

lik
el

y 
to

 in
vo

lv
e 

in
de

m
ni

fic
at

io
n 

or
 re

su
lt 

in
 a

 c
la

im
or

 s
ui

t 
un

de
r t

hi
s 

M
em

or
an

du
m

 o
f C

ov
er

ag
e.

”


Se
nd

 In
ci

de
nt

 R
ep

or
t w

ith
in

 2
4 

ho
ur

s


Ac
ci

de
nt

 R
ep

or
t


Ac

ci
de

nt
 In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

Re
po

rt


Ve
hi

cl
e 

Ac
ci

de
nt

 In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
Re

po
rt

Page 36 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

Cl
ai

m
 R

ev
ie

w

1.
 N

ot
ify

 C
A

PR
I


Pe

r t
he

 M
O

C,
 th

e 
m

em
be

r d
is

tr
ic

t o
r a

ny
 o

th
er

 c
ov

er
ed

 p
ar

ty
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 s
uc

h 
cl

ai
m

or
 s

ui
t m

us
t:

 

a.
Im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 s

en
d 

CA
PR

I c
op

ie
s o

f a
ny

 d
em

an
ds

, n
ot

ic
es

, 
su

m
m

on
s,

 o
r l

eg
al

 p
ap

er
s r

ec
ei

ve
d 

in
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
cl

ai
m

or
 

su
it;

 
b.

A
ut

ho
riz

e 
CA

PR
I t

o 
ob

ta
in

 re
co

rd
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

n;
 

c.
Co

op
er

at
e 

w
ith

 C
A

PR
I i

n 
th

e 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n,

 s
et

tle
m

en
t o

r d
ef

en
se

 
of

 th
e 

cl
ai

m
or

 s
ui

t;
d.

A
ss

is
t,

 u
po

n 
CA

PR
I’s

 re
qu

es
t,

 in
 th

e 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t o
f a

ny
 ri

gh
t 

ag
ai

ns
t a

ny
 p

er
so

n 
or

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 b
e 

lia
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

m
em

be
r d

is
tr

ic
t o

r o
th

er
 c

ov
er

ed
 p

ar
t b

ec
au

se
 o

f i
nj

ur
y 

or
 d

am
ag

e 
to

 w
hi

ch
 th

is
 M

em
or

an
du

m
 o

f C
ov

er
ag

e 
m

ay
 a

ls
o 

ap
pl

y;
 a

nd
e.

In
 n

o 
w

ay
 je

op
ar

di
ze

 C
A

PR
I’s

 ri
gh

ts
 a

ft
er

 a
n 

oc
cu

rr
en

ce
 o

r 
w

ro
ng

fu
l a

ct
.

Page 37 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
la

im
 R

ev
ie

w

N
ot

ify
 C

A
P

R
I

Im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 n
ot

ify
 C

A
PR

I  
of

 a
ll 

cl
ai

m
s 

or
 a

tt
em

pt
s t

o 
m

ak
e 

a 
cl

ai
m

.

R
ev

ie
w

 T
im

el
in

es
s

D
id

 th
e 

ev
en

t h
ap

pe
n 

le
ss

 
th

an
 s

ix
 m

on
th

s
be

fo
re

 
th

e 
da

te
 o

f t
he

 c
la

im
 w

as
 

se
rv

ed
?

R
ev

ie
w

 S
uf

fic
ie

nc
y

D
oe

s 
th

e 
cl

ai
m

 p
ro

vi
de

 
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

as
 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t C
od

e?
 

In
ve

st
ig

at
e

In
ve

st
ig

at
e 

th
e 

m
er

its
 o

f 
th

e 
cl

ai
m

.

Ta
ke

 A
ct

io
n

Ei
th

er
 A

cc
ep

t o
r R

ej
ec

t t
he

 
Cl

ai
m

 a
nd

 s
en

d 
N

ot
ic

e 
to

 
th

e 
Cl

ai
m

an
t.

Page 38 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
la

im
 R

ev
ie

w
:

2.
 R

ev
ie

w
 T

im
el

in
es

s

Page 39 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
la

im
 

Re
vi

ew
:

2.
 R

ev
ie

w
 

Ti
m

el
in

es
s


Is

 it
 ti

m
el

y?


Ti

m
e 

Li
m

its
 F

or
 P

re
se

nt
in

g 
Ve

rif
ie

d 
Cl

ai
m

s 
(G

ov
. C

od
e 

§
91

1.
2)


Cl

ai
m

 fo
r d

ea
th

 o
r f

or
 in

ju
ry

 to
 p

er
so

n 
or

 to
 p

er
so

na
l 

pr
op

er
ty

 o
r g

ro
w

in
g 

cr
op

s 
no

t l
at

er
 th

an
 6

 m
on

th
s

af
te

r 
ac

cr
ua

l o
f c

au
se

 o
f a

ct
io

n


A
ny

 o
th

er
 c

au
se

 o
f a

ct
io

n 
no

t l
at

er
 th

an
 1

 y
ea

r


N
o 

cl
ai

m
 h

as
 to

 b
e 

fil
ed

 in
 a

n 
ac

tio
n 

of
 o

ne
 p

ub
lic

 e
nt

ity
 

ag
ai

ns
t a

no
th

er
 p

ub
lic

 e
nt

ity


N
o 

cl
ai

m
 n

ee
d 

be
 fi

le
d 

fo
r a

ct
io

ns
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

U
SC

 1
98

3 
Ci

vi
l 

Ri
gh

ts
 A

ct
io

ns
, F

EH
A

 o
r E

EO
C 

cl
ai

m
s(

w
hi

ch
 m

us
t b

e 
fil

ed
 

w
ith

 F
EH

A
 o

r E
EO

C)


Cl
ai

m
 T

im
el

in
es

s 
ap

pl
ie

s 
to

 m
in

or
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

of
 m

ol
es

ta
tio

n 
w

he
re

 re
pr

es
se

d 
m

em
or

y 
is

 
al

le
ge

d

Page 40 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 
Cl

ai
m

 R
ev

ie
w

2.
 R

ev
ie

w
 

Ti
m

el
in

es
s


Is

 th
er

e 
an

 a
cc

om
pa

ny
in

g 
A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
fo

r L
ea

ve
 to

 P
re

se
nt

 a
 L

at
e 

Cl
ai

m
?


If 

a 
la

te
 c

la
im

 is
 n

ot
ac

co
m

pa
ni

ed
 b

y 
an

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r L

ea
ve

 to
 

Pr
es

en
t a

 L
at

e 
Cl

ai
m

, r
et

ur
n 

th
e 

Cl
ai

m
 w

ith
 a

 R
et

ur
n 

of
 L

at
e 

Cl
ai

m
le

tt
er

. 


If 
it 

ha
s 

no
t b

ee
n 

pr
es

en
te

d 
in

 a
 ti

m
el

y 
m

an
ne

r, 
it 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

tu
rn

ed
, 

no
t r

ej
ec

te
d.

 D
o 

no
t r

ej
ec

t a
 la

te
 c

la
im

.


Cl
ai

m
an

t i
s 

ad
vi

se
d 

to
 a

pp
ly

 fo
r l

ea
ve

 to
 p

re
se

nt
 a

 la
te

 c
la

im
.


If 

a 
la

te
 c

la
im

 is
ac

co
m

pa
ni

ed
 b

y 
an

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r L

ea
ve

 to
 P

re
se

nt
 

a 
La

te
 C

la
im

, w
he

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

, d
en

y 
th

e 
A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
us

in
g 

th
e 

D
en

ia
l o

f L
at

e 
Cl

ai
m

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n

le
tt

er
. 


Th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

m
ay

 c
ho

os
e 

in
 a

dv
an

ce
 o

f a
 c

la
im

 to
 d

el
eg

at
e 

to
 s

ta
ff

 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

tim
el

in
es

s.
 O

th
er

w
is

e,
 s

pe
ci

fic
 a

ct
io

n 
by

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 re
tu

rn
 th

e 
cl

ai
m

 a
s 

un
tim

el
y 

or
 to

 
de

ny
 a

n 
A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
fo

r L
ea

ve
 to

 P
re

se
nt

 a
 L

at
e 

Cl
ai

m
. 

Page 41 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
la

im
 R

ev
ie

w

N
ot

ify
 C

A
P

R
I

Im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 n
ot

ify
 C

A
PR

I  
of

 a
ll 

cl
ai

m
s 

or
 a

tt
em

pt
s t

o 
m

ak
e 

a 
cl

ai
m

.

R
ev

ie
w

 T
im

el
in

es
s

D
id

 th
e 

ev
en

t h
ap

pe
n 

le
ss

 
th

an
 s

ix
 m

on
th

s
be

fo
re

 
th

e 
da

te
 o

f t
he

 c
la

im
 w

as
 

se
rv

ed
?

R
ev

ie
w

 S
uf

fic
ie

nc
y

D
oe

s 
th

e 
cl

ai
m

 p
ro

vi
de

 
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

as
 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t C
od

e?
 

In
ve

st
ig

at
e

In
ve

st
ig

at
e 

th
e 

m
er

its
 o

f 
th

e 
cl

ai
m

.

Ta
ke

 A
ct

io
n

Ei
th

er
 A

cc
ep

t o
r R

ej
ec

t t
he

 
Cl

ai
m

 a
nd

 s
en

d 
N

ot
ic

e 
to

 
th

e 
Cl

ai
m

an
t.

Page 42 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
la

im
 R

ev
ie

w
:

3.
 R

ev
ie

w
 S

uf
fic

ie
nc

y

Page 43 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 
Cl

ai
m

 R
ev

ie
w

:

3.
 R

ev
ie

w
 

Su
ff

ic
ie

nc
y


W

he
n 

a 
tim

el
y 

cl
ai

m
 is

 re
ce

iv
ed

, t
he

 n
ex

t s
te

p 
is

 to
 re

vi
ew

 th
e 

su
ff

ic
ie

nc
y 

of
 th

e 
cl

ai
m

.


Is

 it
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

?


Re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t C
od

e 
(G

ov
. C

od
e 

§
91

1.
2)


N

am
e 

an
d 

A
dd

re
ss

 o
f c

la
im

an
t


A

dd
re

ss
 o

f p
er

so
n 

pr
es

en
tin

g 
th

e 
cl

ai
m


D

at
e,

 p
la

ce
 a

nd
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

of
 o

cc
ur

re
nc

e


G
en

er
al

 d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 in

de
bt

ed
ne

ss
, o

bl
ig

at
io

n,
 in

ju
ry

 o
r l

os
s


N

am
e(

s)
 o

f p
ub

lic
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 c
au

si
ng

 in
ju

ry


A
m

ou
nt

 c
la

im
ed

 (n
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

if 
ov

er
 $

10
,0

00
, b

ut
 m

us
t s

ta
te

 w
he

th
er

 
it 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
a 

lim
ite

d 
or

 u
nl

im
ite

d 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
ca

se
)


Si

gn
at

ur
e 

of
 c

la
im

an
t o

r a
no

th
er

 p
er

so
n 

in
 th

ei
r b

eh
al

f


Th

en
 s

en
d 

a 
Cl

ai
m

s R
ec

ei
pt

 L
et

te
rc

on
fir

m
in

g 
re

ce
ip

t.

Page 44 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

Cl
ai

m
 R

ev
ie

w
:

3.
 R

ev
ie

w
 

Su
ff

ic
ie

nc
y


If 

it 
is

 in
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

, t
he

re
 a

re
 v

er
y 

st
ric

t d
ea

dl
in

es
 fo

r o
ur

 
re

sp
on

se
.


A

 N
ot

ic
e 

of
 In

su
ff

ic
ie

nc
y

m
us

t b
e 

se
nt

 w
ith

in
 2

0 
da

ys
of

 th
e 

da
te

 
th

e 
cl

ai
m

 w
as

 re
ce

iv
ed

 o
r f

ile
d 

(s
ee

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t C

od
e 

§
91

0.
8)

; o
r


Ta

ke
 a

ct
io

n
on

 it
s 

m
er

its
 n

ot
w

ith
st

an
di

ng
 th

e 
in

su
ff

ic
ie

nc
y 

(S
ee

 s
ec

tio
n 

5)
.


N

ot
e

I n
 s

om
e 

ca
se

s,
 it

 m
ay

 b
e 

ta
ct

ic
al

ly
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

to
 re

je
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

m
er

its
 ra

th
er

 th
an

 g
iv

e 
th

e 
cl

ai
m

an
t a

 
ch

an
ce

 to
 a

m
en

d.

Page 45 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
la

im
 R

ev
ie

w

N
ot

ify
 C

A
P

R
I

Im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 n
ot

ify
 C

A
PR

I  
of

 a
ll 

cl
ai

m
s 

or
 a

tt
em

pt
s t

o 
m

ak
e 

a 
cl

ai
m

.

R
ev

ie
w

 T
im

el
in

es
s

D
id

 th
e 

ev
en

t h
ap

pe
n 

le
ss

 
th

an
 s

ix
 m

on
th

s
be

fo
re

 
th

e 
da

te
 o

f t
he

 c
la

im
 w

as
 

se
rv

ed
?

R
ev

ie
w

 S
uf

fic
ie

nc
y

D
oe

s 
th

e 
cl

ai
m

 p
ro

vi
de

 
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

as
 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t C
od

e?
 

In
ve

st
ig

at
e

In
ve

st
ig

at
e 

th
e 

m
er

its
 o

f 
th

e 
cl

ai
m

.

Ta
ke

 A
ct

io
n

Ei
th

er
 A

cc
ep

t o
r R

ej
ec

t t
he

 
Cl

ai
m

 a
nd

 s
en

d 
N

ot
ic

e 
to

 
th

e 
Cl

ai
m

an
t.

Page 46 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
la

im
 R

ev
ie

w
:

4.
 In

ve
st

ig
at

e

Page 47 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 
Cl

ai
m

 R
ev

ie
w

:

4.
 In

ve
st

ig
at

e


Th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t s

ho
ul

d 
se

cu
re

 a
ll 

in
ci

de
nt

 re
po

rt
s,

 p
ho

to
gr

ap
hs

, 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

re
po

rt
s,

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 re
co

rd
s,

 p
rio

r n
ot

ic
es

 a
nd

 a
ny

 
ot

he
r p

er
tin

en
t d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n.


Im

m
ed

ia
te

 e
ff

or
ts

 to
 p

re
se

rv
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 a
re

 im
pe

ra
tiv

e.


It 
is

 g
en

er
al

ly
 b

es
t t

o 
ta

ke
 to

o 
m

an
y 

pi
ct

ur
es

 si
nc

e 
it 

is
 o

ft
en

 d
iff

ic
ul

t 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

w
ha

t e
ac

h 
on

e 
w

ill
 sh

ow
. 


Ph

ot
og

ra
ph

s 
of

 o
bj

ec
ts

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
ac

ci
de

nt
 m

ay
 n

ee
d 

s o
m

et
hi

ng
 to

 s
ho

w
 th

e 
pr

op
er

 s
ca

le
. A

 ru
le

r o
r c

oi
n,

 p
ho

to
gr

ap
he

d 
al

on
gs

id
e 

of
 th

e 
ob

je
ct

, i
s 

of
te

n 
he

lp
fu

l. 


D
ia

gr
am

s 
an

d 
no

te
s 

ar
e 

al
so

 u
se

fu
l t

o 
as

si
st

 u
s 

in
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 th
e 

n a
tu

re
 o

f t
he

 o
cc

ur
re

nc
e.

 


Th
er

e 
is

 a
 d

ia
gr

am
 o

n 
th

e 
ba

ck
 s

id
e 

of
 th

e 
“D

riv
er

's
 R

ep
or

t o
f A

cc
id

en
t”

 


W

itn
es

se
s,

 if
 fo

un
d 

an
d 

in
te

rv
ie

w
ed

 p
ro

m
pt

ly
, m

ay
 b

e 
th

e 
m

os
t 

im
po

rt
an

t s
ou

rc
e 

of
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

 a
ny

 in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n.
 R

ec
or

d 
th

ei
r 

na
m

es
, a

dd
re

ss
es

, h
om

e 
an

d 
w

or
k 

ph
on

e 
nu

m
be

rs
, i

f a
t a

ll 
po

ss
ib

le
.

Page 48 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
la

im
 R

ev
ie

w

N
ot

ify
 C

A
P

R
I

Im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 n
ot

ify
 C

A
PR

I  
of

 a
ll 

cl
ai

m
s 

or
 a

tt
em

pt
s t

o 
m

ak
e 

a 
cl

ai
m

.

R
ev

ie
w

 T
im

el
in

es
s

D
id

 th
e 

ev
en

t h
ap

pe
n 

le
ss

 
th

an
 s

ix
 m

on
th

s
be

fo
re

 
th

e 
da

te
 o

f t
he

 c
la

im
 w

as
 

se
rv

ed
?

R
ev

ie
w

 S
uf

fic
ie

nc
y

D
oe

s 
th

e 
cl

ai
m

 p
ro

vi
de

 
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

as
 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t C
od

e?
 

In
ve

st
ig

at
e

In
ve

st
ig

at
e 

th
e 

m
er

its
 o

f 
th

e 
cl

ai
m

.

Ta
ke

 A
ct

io
n

Ei
th

er
 A

cc
ep

t o
r R

ej
ec

t t
he

 
Cl

ai
m

 a
nd

 s
en

d 
N

ot
ic

e 
to

 
th

e 
Cl

ai
m

an
t.

Page 49 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
la

im
 R

ev
ie

w
:

5.
 Ta

ke
 A

ct
io

n

Page 50 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 
Cl

ai
m

 R
ev

ie
w

:

5.
 Ta

ke
 A

ct
io

n


Fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n,
 th

e 
cl

ai
m

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

or
 

re
je

ct
ed

 w
ith

in
 4

5 
da

ys
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

.


A
ge

nd
iz

e
th

e 
cl

ai
m

 fo
r c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 D

is
tr

ic
t’s

 B
oa

rd
 o

f D
ire

ct
or

s


CA
PR

I s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

on
su

lte
d 

on
 a

ll 
co

ve
re

d 
cl

ai
m

s 
be

fo
re

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
Bo

a r
d


CA

PR
I s

ho
ul

d 
be

 n
ot

ifi
ed

 o
f a

ny
 a

ct
io

n 
ta

ke
n 

by
 D

is
tr

ic
t B

oa
rd

 w
ith

 
r e

sp
ec

t t
o 

co
ve

re
d 

cl
ai

m
s


If 

no
t r

ej
ec

te
d 

w
ith

in
 4

5 
da

ys
, c

la
im

 is
 d

ee
m

ed
 re

je
ct

ed
 b

y 
“O

pe
ra

tio
n 

of
 la

w
.”


Se

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t C
od

e 
§

91
2.

4,
 9

12
.6

, 9
13

Page 51 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 
Cl

ai
m

 R
ev

ie
w

:

5.
 Ta

ke
 A

ct
io

n

W
he

n 
th

e 
cl

ai
m

 is
 re

je
ct

ed
:


U

til
iz

e 
th

e 
N

ot
ic

e 
of

 R
ej

ec
tio

n
le

tt
er

 w
ith

 a
 P

ro
of

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
an

d 
m

ai
l 

to
 e

ith
er

 th
e 

cl
ai

m
an

t’s
 a

tt
or

ne
y 

or
 d

ire
ct

ly
 to

 th
e 

cl
ai

m
an

t.


O

nc
e 

a 
cl

ai
m

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

je
ct

ed
, a

 la
w

su
it 

ha
s 

to
 b

e 
fil

ed
 w

ith
in

 6
 

m
on

th
s 

of
 th

e 
da

te
 o

f t
he

 re
je

ct
io

n 
no

tic
e.

  S
ee

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t C

od
e 

§
94

5.
6.


W

he
n 

th
e 

cl
ai

m
 is

 re
je

ct
ed

, r
em

em
be

r t
o 

no
tif

y 
CA

PR
I o

f B
oa

rd
 

ac
tio

n.


If 

no
 re

je
ct

io
n 

le
tt

er
 is

 s
en

t a
ft

er
 th

e 
fil

in
g 

of
 th

e 
cl

ai
m

, t
he

 s
ta

tu
te

 
of

 li
m

ita
tio

n 
to

 fi
le

 a
 la

w
su

it 
is

 2
 y

ea
rs

.


Th
us

, v
er

y 
im

po
rt

an
t t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
no

tic
e 

of
 re

je
ct

io
n.

Page 52 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 
Cl

ai
m

 R
ev

ie
w

:

5.
 Ta

ke
 A

ct
io

n

W
he

n 
th

e 
cl

ai
m

 is
 a

cc
ep

te
d:


D

o 
no

t a
cc

ep
t a

 c
la

im
 w

ith
ou

t a
pp

ro
va

l f
ro

m
 C

A
PR

I!!
!


O

nc
e 

a 
cl

ai
m

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 o

r o
th

er
w

is
e 

se
tt

le
d,

 C
A

PR
I w

ill
 

pr
oc

es
s 

an
d 

ob
ta

in
 th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 re
le

as
es

 fr
om

 th
e 

cl
ai

m
an

t.

Page 53 of 157



Li
ab

ili
ty

 C
la

im
 R

ev
ie

w

N
ot

ify
 C

A
P

R
I

Im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 n
ot

ify
 C

A
PR

I  
of

 a
ll 

cl
ai

m
s 

or
 a

tt
em

pt
s t

o 
m

ak
e 

a 
cl

ai
m

.

R
ev

ie
w

 T
im

el
in

es
s

D
id

 th
e 

ev
en

t h
ap

pe
n 

le
ss

 
th

an
 s

ix
 m

on
th

s
be

fo
re

 
th

e 
da

te
 o

f t
he

 c
la

im
 w

as
 

se
rv

ed
?

R
ev

ie
w

 S
uf

fic
ie

nc
y

D
oe

s 
th

e 
cl

ai
m

 p
ro

vi
de

 
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

as
 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t C
od

e?
 

In
ve

st
ig

at
e

In
ve

st
ig

at
e 

th
e 

m
er

its
 o

f 
th

e 
cl

ai
m

.

Ta
ke

 A
ct

io
n

Ei
th

er
 A

cc
ep

t o
r R

ej
ec

t t
he

 
Cl

ai
m

 a
nd

 s
en

d 
N

ot
ic

e 
to

 
th

e 
Cl

ai
m

an
t.

Page 54 of 157



Th
en

 w
ha

t?

D
at

e 
of

 R
ej

ec
tio

n 
is

 lo
gg

ed
 a

nd
 c

la
im

 is
 m

on
ito

re
d 

fo
r 7

 m
on

th
s.

If 
no

 li
tig

at
io

n 
fil

ed
, t

he
n 

CA
PR

I w
ill

 c
lo

se
 th

e 
cl

ai
m

.
M

on
ito

r

If 
se

rv
ed

 w
ith

 a
 C

om
pl

ai
nt

, i
m

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 n

ot
ify

 C
A

PR
I. 

CA
PR

I w
ill

 th
en

 s
el

ec
t 

an
d 

re
ta

in
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 a

tt
or

ne
ys

 to
 d

ef
en

d 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t.

D
is

tr
ic

t a
nd

 it
s 

st
af

f m
ay

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 a

ss
is

t i
n 

th
e 

lit
ig

at
io

n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

co
m

pi
lin

g 
re

co
rd

s,
 v

er
ifi

ed
 d

is
co

ve
ry

 re
sp

on
se

s,
 a

pp
ea

rin
g 

at
 d

ep
os

iti
on

s 
an

d/
or

 tr
ia

l.

Li
tig

at
e

Th
e 

CA
PR

I B
oa

rd
 re

gu
la

rly
 re

vi
ew

s 
se

le
ct

 p
en

di
ng

 la
w

su
its

 d
ur

in
g 

its
 C

lo
se

d 
Se

ss
io

n.
Re

po
rt

 to
 

CA
PR

I B
oa

rd

W
he

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 a
nd

 a
ft

er
 th

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 in
pu

t o
f t

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t,

 C
A

PR
I m

ay
 

ch
oo

se
 to

 re
so

lv
e 

(o
r n

ot
 to

 re
so

lv
e)

 th
e 

la
w

su
it 

w
ith

 th
e 

op
po

si
ng

 p
ar

ty
.  

Se
tt

le
m

en
t m

ay
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

D
is

tr
ic

t B
oa

rd
’s

 ra
tif

ic
at

io
n.

Re
so

lv
e 

(w
he

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

)

Page 55 of 157



Ro
le

 o
f t

he
 

TP
A

:

G
EO

RG
E 

H
IL

LS
 

CO
M

PA
N

Y


Th

e 
ro

le
 o

f C
A

PR
I’s

 T
PA

, G
eo

rg
e 

H
ill

s C
om

pa
ny

, v
ar

ie
s f

ro
m

 c
la

im
 to

 
cl

ai
m

:


So
m

e 
D

is
tr

ic
ts

 h
av

e 
a 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

w
ith

 C
hu

ck
 T

or
re

tt
a 

an
d 

no
tif

y 
hi

m
 

di
re

ct
ly

 u
po

n 
re

ce
ip

t o
f a

 c
la

im
.


G

H
C 

as
si

st
s 

in
 e

va
lu

at
in

g 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 c

la
im

 
i n

 o
rd

er
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

pr
op

er
 h

an
dl

in
g 

by
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t


G

H
C 

ac
tiv

el
y 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
es

 in
 a

ll 
of

 th
e 

pe
nd

in
g 

lit
ig

at
io

n


Se
ts

 re
se

rv
es

 a
nd

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
es

 in
 a

ss
ig

ni
ng

 c
ou

ns
el


Re

ce
iv

es
 a

nd
 re

vi
ew

s 
up

da
te

s f
ro

m
 a

tt
or

ne
ys


Pa

rt
ic

ip
at

es
 in

 c
as

e 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

an
d 

de
fe

ns
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 


A
tt

en
ds

 m
ed

ia
tio

ns
 a

nd
 m

an
da

to
ry

 se
tt

le
m

en
t c

on
fe

re
nc

es


Pr
oc

es
se

s 
at

to
rn

ey
 in

vo
ic

es
, e

xp
er

t f
ee

s,
 a

nd
 s

et
tle

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 s

ub
m

its
 

t o
 C

A
PR

I f
or

 p
ay

m
en

t


Pa
rt

ic
ip

at
es

 in
 C

lo
se

d 
Se

ss
io

n 
w

ith
 C

A
PR

I B
oa

rd


Pr
ov

id
es

 u
pd

at
es

 to
 e

xc
es

s 
in

su
ra

nc
e,

 w
he

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te


M

ee
ts

 q
ua

rt
er

ly
 w

ith
 C

A
PR

I s
ta

ff
 to

 m
on

ito
r p

en
di

ng
 a

nd
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

lit
ig

at
io

n 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

p 
de

fe
ns

e 
st

ra
te

gy


G
en

er
at

es
 lo

ss
 re

po
rt

s 
on

 m
on

th
ly

 b
as

is

Page 56 of 157



Se
tt

le
m

en
t 

A
ut

ho
rit

y
Pe

r C
A

PR
I p

ol
ic

y,
 se

tt
le

m
en

t a
ut

ho
rit

y 
fo

r L
ia

bi
lit

y 
Cl

ai
m

s 
is

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:


G

H
C 


U
p  

to
 $

5,
00

0


Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 
U

p 
to

 $
10

0,
00

0*


CA

PR
I B

oa
rd

 
U

p 
to

 $
1,

00
0,

00
0

Page 57 of 157



Tr
en

ds
 in

 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 C

la
im

s

Page 58 of 157



Tr
en

ds
 in

 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

Cl
ai

m
s:

Th
e 

D
at

a


Tr

en
di

ng
 D

at
a 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
t t

he
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

Page 59 of 157



Excerpt from CAPRI Policies and Procedures Manual; Section V 
 
A.    Claims Administration: 
 
      Liability claims of participating member districts are managed by a claims management 
firm employed by the California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity pursuant to the 
terms of a written agreement. 
 
 Decisions regarding the disposition of claims shall be based on the merits of each claim, 
as determined by examining the nature and extent of damage, the legal liability, and the coverage 
afforded by the California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity.  
  
 The claims management firm is authorized to settle any claim for up to and including 
$5000.  The CAPRI Administrator is authorized to settle any claim for up to and including $50,000.  
The CAPRI Administrator, with the consent of the Board President, is authorized to settle any 
claim for up to and including $100,000, if in their judgment the opportunity to settle and/or to 
avoid unnecessary defense costs would be lost by waiting for the next regularly scheduled Board 
meeting; any such settlement will be reported to the Board at the next regular meeting.   Settlements 
in excess of $100,000 require Board approval.  A lawsuit including multiple plaintiffs will be 
treated as a single claim for purposes of these limits.   
 
 The claims management firm is directed to advise the California Association for Park and 
Recreation Indemnity Administrator on the opening of new claim files and to acknowledge receipt 
of a claim to district and what procedures will be taken.  The district is to be advised when a claim 
has been paid and/or closed. The present claims management firm is described in Exhibit D.  
 
 

Page 60 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

       Agenda Item 8.2 

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
 
SUBJECT: Property Claims Management Review 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Staff, together with Charles Torretta from George Hills Company, will provide a 
presentation regarding the Property Claims Management procedures and discuss current 
trends and performance of CAPRI’s Property program. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• Property Loss Claims Handling Presentation 
• Excerpt from CAPRI Policies and Procedures: Property Claims Management Policy 
 
 

 

Page 61 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

 L
os

s 
Cl

ai
m

s H
an

dl
in

g 
Re

vi
ew

Se
pt

em
be

r 1
8,

 2
01

9

Page 62 of 157



O
bj

ec
tiv

es
Pr

ov
id

e 
an

 o
ve

rv
ie

w
 

of
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

Co
ve

ra
ge

s 
of

fe
re

d 
by

 C
A

PR
I1

Re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 D

is
cu

ss
 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 fo

r 
H

an
dl

in
g 

Pr
op

er
ty

 
Cl

ai
m

s

2
Sh

ow
 C

la
im

s 
Ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

ov
er

 la
st

 
5-

10
 y

ea
rs

 a
nd

 
hi

gh
lig

ht
 tr

en
ds

3

Page 63 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

 
Pr

og
ra

m

Page 64 of 157



Co
ve

ra
ge

 
Su

m
m

ar
y

W
ha

ti
s 

co
ve

re
d?

•
Th

os
e 

B
ui

ld
in

gs
/S

tr
uc

tu
re

s 
th

at
 

ar
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
on

 y
ou

r P
ro

pe
rt

y 
Sc

he
du

le
•

Th
os

e 
Ve

hi
cl

es
th

at
 a

re
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

on
 y

ou
r V

eh
ic

le
 S

ch
ed

ul
e

•
Ev

er
y 

ye
ar

 C
A

PR
I a

sk
s 

th
e 

m
em

be
rs

 to
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
th

e 
Ra

tin
gs

 Q
ue

st
io

nn
ai

re
 to

 v
er

ify
 

A
LL

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

an
d 

ve
hi

cl
es

 a
re

 li
st

ed
 a

nd
 

th
e 

va
lu

es
 a

re
 a

cc
ur

at
e.

Page 65 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

 C
ov

er
ag

e


CA

PR
I c

om
pi

le
s 

th
e 

sc
he

du
le

s 
an

d 
re

ne
w

s 
its

 c
ov

er
ag

e 
w

ith
 e

xc
es

s


TI
V:

 $
1,

10
4,

21
6,

61
7 

as
 o

f J
un

e 
21

, 2
01

9


M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

A
pp

ra
is

al
 P

la
n 

in
 th

e 
w

or
ks


M

id
-Y

ea
r A

cq
ui

si
tio

ns


U
nd

er
w

rit
in

g 
A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

on
 C

A
PR

I w
eb

si
te


N

o 
m

id
-y

ea
r p

re
m

iu
m

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t

Page 66 of 157



Ve
hi

cl
e 

Co
ve

ra
ge


CA

PR
I a

nn
ua

lly
 is

su
es

 V
eh

ic
le

 In
su

ra
nc

e 
Ca

rd
s 

to
 a

ll 
ve

hi
cl

es
 in

 th
e 

m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

fle
et

 


A
cc

id
en

t R
ep

or
t B

ro
ch

ur
es

 a
ls

o 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 m
em

be
rs

 a
s 

ne
ed

ed


M

id
-Y

ea
r A

cq
ui

si
tio

ns


Ve
hi

cl
e 

A
dd

/D
el

et
e 

Fo
rm

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
on

 C
A

PR
I w

eb
si

te

Page 67 of 157



Co
ve

ra
ge

 
Su

m
m

ar
y

*S
ub

je
ct

 to
 e

xc
lu

si
on

s 
ou

tli
ne

d 
in

 M
O

C

W
ha

ti
s 

co
ve

re
d?

A
ll 

Ri
sk

A
ut

o 
Ph

ys
ic

al
 D

am
ag

e

Bo
ile

r &
 M

ac
hi

ne
ry

Fl
oo

d

W
ild

fir
e

Ea
rt

hq
ua

ke

M
ol

d

Page 68 of 157



Co
ve

ra
ge

 
Su

m
m

ar
y

•
A

n 
al

l-r
is

k 
po

lic
y 

co
ve

rs
 lo

ss
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 a

ll 
bu

t e
xc

lu
de

d 
pe

ril
s.

 

A
ll 

Ri
sk

•
$1

,0
00

,0
00

,0
00

 –
pe

r o
cc

ur
re

nc
e 

al
l p

er
ils

, c
ov

er
ag

es
 (s

ub
je

ct
 to

 p
ol

ic
y 

ex
cl

us
io

ns
)

•
$5

,0
00

,0
00

 fo
r e

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
pe

r o
cc

ur
re

nc
e/

an
nu

al
 a

gg
re

ga
te

•
$1

0,
00

0,
00

0 
flo

od
 li

m
it 

pe
r o

cc
ur

re
nc

e/
an

nu
al

 a
gg

re
ga

te
•

$1
00

,0
00

 li
m

it 
fo

r m
ol

d 
pe

r o
cc

ur
re

nc
e

•
$1

00
,0

00
,0

00
 c

om
bi

ne
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

 in
te

rr
up

tio
n,

 re
nt

al
 in

co
m

e
•

$2
5,

00
0,

00
0 

fo
r u

nn
am

ed
 lo

ca
tio

ns
•

$1
,0

00
,0

00
 –

un
sc

he
du

le
d 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g,

 te
es

, s
an

d 
tr

ap
s,

 g
re

en
s a

nd
 

at
hl

et
ic

 fi
el

ds
•

$5
,0

00
,0

00
 fo

r s
ch

ed
ul

ed
 la

nd
sc

ap
in

g,
 te

es
, s

an
d 

tr
ap

s,
 g

re
en

s a
nd

 
at

hl
et

ic
 fi

el
ds

•
$2

5,
00

0,
00

0 
Co

ur
se

 o
f C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

Co
ve

ra
ge

s &
 L

im
its

*S
ub

je
ct

 to
 e

xc
lu

si
on

s 
ou

tli
ne

d 
in

 M
O

C

Page 69 of 157



Co
ve

ra
ge

 
Su

m
m

ar
y

A
ut

o 
Ph

ys
ic

al
 D

am
ag

e
A

ny
 p

hy
si

ca
l 

da
m

ag
e 

to
 a

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
ve

hi
cl

e

W
ho

 w
as

 d
am

ag
ed

? 
D

am
ag

e 
to

 3
rd

pa
rt

y 
ve

hi
cl

es
 fa

lls
 u

nd
er

 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 C

ov
er

ag
e 

–
no

t P
ro

pe
rt

y

Page 70 of 157



Co
ve

ra
ge

 
Su

m
m

ar
y

W
ha

t i
s 

no
t c

ov
er

ed
?


W

ea
r, 

te
ar

, g
ra

du
al

 d
et

er
io

ra
tio

n,
 in

se
ct

s,
 v

er
m

in
, i

nh
er

en
t v

ic
e 

(h
id

de
n 

de
fe

ct
), 

or
 d

am
ag

e 
su

st
ai

ne
d 

du
e 

to
 a

nd
 re

su
lti

ng
 fr

om
 a

ny
 

re
pa

irs
, r

es
to

ra
tio

n 
or

 re
to

uc
hi

ng


W
ar

, h
os

til
e 

ac
tio

n


In
su

rr
ec

tio
n,

 re
be

lli
on

, r
ev

ol
ut

io
n,

 c
iv

il 
w

ar
, e

tc
.


N

uc
le

ar
 re

ac
tio

n,
 ra

di
at

io
n,

 e
tc

.


D
is

ho
ne

st
, f

ra
ud

ul
en

t,
 o

r c
rim

in
al

 a
ct


A

irc
ra

ft
, w

at
er

cr
af

t o
ve

r 2
7 

fe
et

 in
 le

ng
th

 (o
th

er
 th

an
 w

at
er

cr
af

t h
el

d 
fo

r s
al

e 
by

 th
e 

in
su

re
d)

, a
nd

 ro
lli

ng
 st

oc
k,

 e
xc

ep
t s

ch
ed

ul
ed

 w
at

er
cr

af
t,

 
an

d 
ro

lli
ng

 st
oc

k,
 li

gh
t r

ai
l v

eh
ic

le
s,

 su
bw

ay
 tr

ai
ns

 a
nd

 re
la

te
d 

tr
ac

k 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

fo
r l

ig
ht

 ra
il 

an
d 

su
bw

ay
 li

ne
s.

 


St
an

di
ng

 ti
m

be
r, 

bo
di

es
 o

f w
at

er
, g

ro
w

in
g 

cr
op

s.
 


La

nd
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 la
nd

 o
n 

w
hi

ch
 c

ov
er

ed
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

is
 lo

ca
te

d)
, a

nd
 la

nd
 

v a
lu

es
 (e

xc
ep

t a
th

le
tic

 fi
el

ds
, l

an
ds

ca
pi

ng
, s

an
d 

tr
ap

s,
 te

es
 a

nd
 

gr
ee

ns
). 


Sh

ip
m

en
t b

y 
m

ai
l a

ft
er

 d
el

iv
er

y 
in

to
 th

e 
cu

st
od

y 
of

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

St
at

es
 

P o
st

 O
ff

ic
e.

 


Po
w

er
 tr

an
sm

is
si

on
 li

ne
s,

 fe
ed

er
 li

ne
s a

nd
 u

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 p

ip
es

 m
or

e 
t h

an
 1

,0
00

 fe
et

 fr
om

 th
e 

pr
em

is
es

 o
f t

he
 In

su
re

d 
un

le
ss

 s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Co

m
pa

ny
. 

Page 71 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

Pr
og

ra
m

:

D
ED

U
CT

IB
LE

S
$1

50
,0

00

CA
PR

I A
LL

 R
IS

K
 D

ED
U

CT
IB

LE
•

CA
PR

I c
ov

er
ag

e 
st

ar
ts

 a
ft

er
 m

em
be

r’s
 la

ye
r e

xh
au

st
ed

Page 72 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

Pr
og

ra
m

:

D
ED

U
CT

IB
LE

S
$5

0,
00

0*

CA
PR

I F
LO

O
D

 D
ED

U
CT

IB
LE

•
CA

PR
I c

ov
er

ag
e 

st
ar

ts
 a

ft
er

 m
em

be
r’s

 la
ye

r e
xh

au
st

ed
•

*5
%

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 m

in
im

um
 o

f $
50

,0
0 

pe
r o

cc
ur

re
nc

e

Page 73 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

Pr
og

ra
m

:

D
ED

U
CT

IB
LE

S
$5

0,
00

0*

CA
PR

I E
A

RT
H

Q
U

A
K

E 
D

ED
U

CT
IB

LE
•

CA
PR

I c
ov

er
ag

e 
st

ar
ts

 a
ft

er
 m

em
be

r’s
 la

ye
r e

xh
au

st
ed

•
*5

%
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 m
in

im
um

 o
f $

50
,0

0 
Ea

rt
hq

ua
ke

 S
ho

ck

Page 74 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

Pr
og

ra
m

:

D
ED

U
CT

IB
LE

S
$1

,0
00

,0
00

CA
PR

I W
IL

D
FI

RE
 D

ED
U

CT
IB

LE
•

CA
PR

I c
ov

er
ag

e 
st

ar
ts

 a
ft

er
 m

em
be

r’s
 la

ye
r e

xh
au

st
ed

•
N

ew
 fo

r F
Y1

9-
20

Page 75 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

 P
ro

gr
am

:

Co
ve

ra
ge

 L
im

its

CA
PR

I p
ar

tic
ip

at
es

 in
 A

PI
P 

fo
r e

xc
es

s 
co

ve
ra

ge
 b

ey
on

d 
its

 S
IR

 u
p 

to
:

$
1,

00
0,

00
0,

00
0


In

cl
us

iv
e 

of
 C

A
PR

I’s
 S

el
f-

In
su

re
d 

Re
te

nt
io

n

Page 76 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

Pr
og

ra
m

:

M
EM

BE
R 

D
ED

U
CT

IB
LE

S

$2
,0

00
$5

0,
00

0

Page 77 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

 
Pr

og
ra

m

M
EM

BE
R 

D
ED

U
CT

IB
LE

S

Ea
rt

hq
ua

ke
$5

0,
00

0

Fl
oo

d

W
ild

fir
e

$5
0,

00
0

$5
0,

00
0

Page 78 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

 L
os

s
Cl

ai
m

s H
an

dl
in

g 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
es

3 S
te

ps

Page 79 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

 L
os

s C
la

im
 R

ev
ie

w

N
ot

ify
 C

A
P

R
I

Im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 n
ot

ify
 C

A
PR

I  
of

 a
ll 

cl
ai

m
s o

r a
tt

em
pt

s t
o 

m
ak

e 
a 

cl
ai

m
.

A
dj

us
t C

la
im

In
ve

st
ig

at
e 

cl
ai

m
 a

nd
 v

er
ify

 lo
ss

Is
su

e 
P

ay
m

en
t

Pr
oc

es
s r

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

t o
r, 

in
 c

er
ta

in
 

si
tu

at
io

ns
, a

dv
an

ce
 o

f s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 fu

nd
s 

to
 c

ov
er

 lo
ss

Page 80 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

 C
la

im
 R

ev
ie

w
:

1.
 N

ot
ify

 C
A

PR
I

Page 81 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

 L
os

s
Cl

ai
m

 R
ev

ie
w

Th
re

e 
M

os
t I

m
po

rt
an

t R
ul

es
 in

 

Pr
op

er
ty

 L
os

s C
la

im
s 

H
an

dl
in

g

1.
 N

ot
ify

 C
A

PR
I i

m
m

ed
ia

te
ly

.

2.
 N

ot
ify

 C
A

PR
I i

m
m

ed
ia

te
ly

.

3.
 N

ot
ify

 C
A

PR
I i

m
m

ed
ia

te
ly

.

Page 82 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

 L
os

s
Cl

ai
m

 R
ev

ie
w

1.
 N

ot
ify

 C
A

PR
I


It’

s 
im

po
rt

an
t t

ha
t t

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t i

m
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 n
ot

ify
 C

A
PR

I i
n 

or
de

r 
to

 p
re

se
rv

e 
th

ei
r c

ov
er

ag
e 

un
de

r t
he

 M
em

or
an

du
m

 o
f C

ov
er

ag
e


Co

nd
iti

on
s o

f C
ov

er
ag

e 
–

G
en

er
al

 C
on

di
tio

ns
, N

o.
 1

1 
N

ot
ic

e 
of

 
Lo

ss
 (P

ag
e 

6 
of

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
M

O
C)


“T

he
 m

em
be

r d
is

tr
ic

t s
ha

ll 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 n

ot
ify

 C
A

PR
I b

y 
w

rit
te

n 
no

tic
e 

of
 a

ny
 o

cc
ur

re
nc

e,
 th

e 
co

st
 o

f w
hi

ch
 is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 re
su

lt 
in

 
pa

ym
en

t b
y 

CA
PR

I u
nd

er
 th

is
 M

em
or

an
du

m
 o

f C
ov

er
ag

e.
”


Se

nd
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

Lo
ss

 N
ot

ic
e 

A
SA

P


In
ci

de
nt

 R
ep

or
t?


Ac

ci
de

nt
 R

ep
or

t?

Page 83 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

 L
os

s
Cl

ai
m

 R
ev

ie
w

1.
 N

ot
ify

 C
A

PR
I


CA

PR
I i

s 
ob

lig
at

ed
 p

er
 it

s 
Ex

ce
ss

 In
su

ra
nc

e 
po

lic
y 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 n

ot
ic

e 
to

 E
xc

es
s C

ar
rie

r w
he

n 
th

er
e 

ex
is

ts
 a

 p
ot

en
tia

l e
xc

es
s 

cl
ai

m


N

ot
ic

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 M
cL

ar
en

s G
lo

ba
l C

la
im

s S
er

vi
ce

s a
nd

 A
lli

an
t 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e

Page 84 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

 L
os

s C
la

im
 R

ev
ie

w

N
ot

ify
 C

A
P

R
I

Im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 n
ot

ify
 C

A
PR

I  
of

 a
ll 

cl
ai

m
s o

r a
tt

em
pt

s t
o 

m
ak

e 
a 

cl
ai

m
.

A
dj

us
t C

la
im

D
id

 th
e 

ev
en

t h
ap

pe
n 

le
ss

 th
an

 s
ix

 
m

on
th

s
be

fo
re

 th
e 

da
te

 o
f t

he
 c

la
im

 
w

as
 s

er
ve

d?

Is
su

e 
P

ay
m

en
t

D
oe

s 
th

e 
cl

ai
m

 p
ro

vi
de

 su
ff

ic
ie

nt
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

as
 re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t C

od
e?

Page 85 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

 L
os

s 
Cl

ai
m

 R
ev

ie
w

:

2.
 A

dj
us

t C
la

im

Page 86 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

 L
os

s 
Cl

ai
m

 R
ev

ie
w

:

2.
 A

dj
us

t C
la

im


W

ha
t i

s 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f t

he
 lo

ss
?


Le

ss
 th

an
 $

2,
00

0


D
is

tr
ic

t h
an

dl
es

 a
nd

 n
o 

cl
ai

m
 is

 m
ad

e


$2

,0
00

-$
15

0,
00

0


CA
PR

I s
ta

ff
, i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 C
A

PR
I p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 a

nd
 

th
e 

M
O

C,
 a

dj
us

ts
 th

e 
lo

ss
 o

n 
a 

re
pa

ir/
re

pl
ac

em
en

t b
as

is
.


$1

50
,0

00


M
cL

ar
en

s 
ad

ju
st

s 
an

yt
hi

ng
 in

 e
xc

es
s 

le
ve

l a
nd

 re
po

rt
s 

to
 C

A
PR

I a
s 

th
e 

“i
ns

ur
ed

.”

Page 87 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

 L
os

s 
Cl

ai
m

 R
ev

ie
w

:

2.
 A

dj
us

t C
la

im


Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f t
he

 lo
ss

?


Ph
ot

og
ra

ph
s


W

or
k 

O
rd

er
s


In

vo
ic

es


Es
tim

at
es


U

nd
er

 th
e 

M
O

C,
 C

A
PR

I i
s 

pe
rm

itt
ed

, b
ut

 n
ot

 o
bl

ig
at

ed
 to

 in
sp

ec
t 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t’s
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

an
d 

op
er

at
io

ns
.


In

 m
os

t i
ns

ta
nc

es
, C

A
PR

I’s
 a

dj
us

te
r d

ut
ie

s 
ar

e 
as

si
gn

ed
 to

 C
A

PR
I’s

 
T P

A
, G

eo
rg

e 
H

ill
s C

om
pa

ny
, t

o 
re

vi
ew

 th
e 

cl
ai

m
, v

er
ify

 th
e 

da
m

ag
es

, a
nd

 d
oc

um
en

t t
he

 lo
ss

.


M
em

be
rs

 m
ay

 re
ce

iv
e 

fo
llo

w
 u

p 
fr

om
 G

H
C

Page 88 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

 L
os

s C
la

im
 R

ev
ie

w

N
ot

ify
 C

A
P

R
I

Im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 n
ot

ify
 C

A
PR

I  
of

 a
ll 

cl
ai

m
s o

r a
tt

em
pt

s t
o 

m
ak

e 
a 

cl
ai

m
.

A
dj

us
t C

la
im

D
id

 th
e 

ev
en

t h
ap

pe
n 

le
ss

 th
an

 s
ix

 
m

on
th

s
be

fo
re

 th
e 

da
te

 o
f t

he
 c

la
im

 
w

as
 s

er
ve

d?

Is
su

e 
P

ay
m

en
t

D
oe

s 
th

e 
cl

ai
m

 p
ro

vi
de

 su
ff

ic
ie

nt
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

as
 re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t C

od
e?

Page 89 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

 L
os

s 
Cl

ai
m

 R
ev

ie
w

:

3.
 Is

su
e 

Pa
ym

en
t

Page 90 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

 L
os

s 
Cl

ai
m

 R
ev

ie
w

:

3.
 Is

su
e 

Pa
ym

en
t

Pa
ym

en
t:

 W
he

n 
an

d 
H

ow
?


Re

im
bu

rs
em

en
t


G

en
er

al
ly

, C
A

PR
I m

em
be

r d
is

tr
ic

ts
 d

oc
um

en
t t

he
 c

os
t o

f 
re

pa
ir/

re
pl

ac
em

en
t,

 s
ig

n 
a 

Pr
oo

f o
f L

os
s 

at
te

st
in

g 
th

e 
lo

ss
 a

nd
 

th
e 

ac
cu

ra
cy

 o
f t

he
 fi

gu
re

s,
 a

nd
 th

en
 s

ub
m

it 
to

 C
A

PR
I f

or
 

re
im

bu
rs

em
en

t.

Page 91 of 157



Pr
op

er
ty

 L
os

s 
Cl

ai
m

 R
ev

ie
w

:

3.
 Is

su
e 

Pa
ym

en
t

Pa
ym

en
t:

 W
he

n 
an

d 
H

ow
?


A

dv
an

ce
 P

ay
m

en
t


In

 s
om

e 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s,

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t m
ay

 re
qu

es
t a

dv
an

ce
 

pa
ym

en
t r

at
he

r t
ha

n 
re

im
bu

rs
em

en
t.

  T
he

 C
A

PR
I E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 is
 a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 to
 m

ak
e 

an
 a

dv
an

ce
 p

ay
m

en
t o

n 
an

y 
co

ve
re

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 c

la
im

 a
t t

he
 re

qu
es

t o
f a

 C
A

PR
I m

em
be

r 
di

st
ric

t f
or

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 re

pl
ac

em
en

t o
f s

uc
h 

pr
op

er
ty

.  


W
rit

te
n 

re
qu

es
ts

 a
nd

 m
us

t s
pe

ci
fy

 th
at

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t i

nt
en

ds
 to

 
re

pa
ir/

re
pl

ac
e 

al
l l

os
t p

ro
pe

rt
y 

or
 w

he
th

er
 th

e 
ad

va
nc

e 
is

 in
 fu

ll 
se

tt
le

m
en

t o
f a

 c
la

im
.


If 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t i
nt

en
ds

 to
 re

pa
ir/

re
pl

ac
e 

th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

, p
ai

d 
in

vo
ic

es
 

m
us

t b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
ad

va
nc

e 
pa

ym
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

to
ta

l 
lo

ss
 to

 b
e 

pa
id

 w
ith

in
 1

80
 d

ay
s 

fr
om

 th
e 

ad
va

nc
e 

pa
ym

en
t.


A

dv
an

ce
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 s
ha

ll 
be

 fo
r n

o 
m

or
e 

th
an

 h
al

f t
he

 to
ta

l l
os

s 
le

ss
 

th
e 

di
st

ric
t d

ed
uc

tib
le

, u
p 

to
 $

73
,0

00
.

Page 92 of 157



Tr
en

ds
 in

 
Pr

op
er

ty
 L

os
s 

Cl
ai

m
s

Page 93 of 157



Tr
en

ds
 in

 
Pr

op
er

ty
 

Lo
ss

 C
la

im
s:

Th
e 

D
at

a


Tr

en
di

ng
 D

at
a 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
t t

he
 B

oa
rd

 M
ee

tin
g

Page 94 of 157



Excerpt from CAPRI Policies and Procedures Manual; Section V 
 
F. Property Claims: 
 
 All property claims greater than $150,000 shall be adjusted by an adjusting agency 
designated by the property reinsurer in accordance with the Property Memorandum of Coverage 
terms. 
 
 Claims less than $150,000 shall be adjusted by the CAPRI staff in accordance with the 
memorandum of coverage terms, but only on a repair/replacement basis.  Should a district choose 
not to repair/replace the property, the district will receive only the cash advance payment in full 
settlement of the claim according to the Property Memorandum of Coverage terms . 
 
 The CAPRI Administrator shall be authorized to make an advance payment on any covered 
property claim at the request of a CAPRI member district for the actual replacement of such 
property.  The request shall be in writing and must specify that the district intends to repair/replace 
all lost property or whether the advance is in full settlement of the claim.  If the district intends to 
repair/replace the property, paid invoices must be provided to support the advance payment and 
the total loss to be paid within 180 days from the advance payment.  The advance payment shall 
be for no more than half the total loss less the district deductible, up to $73,000. 
 

Page 95 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

       Agenda Item 8.3 

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
 
SUBJECT: District Visitation Criteria & Scoring System Review 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
The purpose of the District Visitation Program is to provide direct risk management 
support for our member districts.  The CAPRI Visitation Program has been an ongoing 
program for nearly thirty years and serve to provide our office with an opportunity to 
meet individually with our members and provide one-on-one training to discuss District 
strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats with respect to risk management.   
 
The Visitation Criteria is reviewed at the end of each cycle to evaluate the benefits of the 
criteria and make any necessary adjustments before starting the next cycle.  As we now 
approach the end of Cycle XVI, Staff again submits the attached criteria for the Board’s 
review and discussion. 
 
At this time, Staff has no recommended changes with regard to the Visitation Criteria.  
However, Staff has a few minor changes it is recommending for the current scoring 
system. The proposed scoring changes are attached hereto and include: 
 

• Currently, the scoring system provides that 90-100 is Very Good and 80-90 is Good.  
Notably, a 90 qualifies under both categories.  This must be revised. 

• The scoring system is based on raw points accumulated rather than a percentage 
of possible points available.  So, for example, when a District doesn’t have a pool 
or is not required to maintain an IIPP, their raw number goes down and greater 
weight is necessarily given to the other criteria.  Staff proposes that scores be based 
upon percentage of points available rather than a raw score. 

• Staff proposes the highest performers be given a mark of “Excellent” rather than 
“Very Good” in order to avoid confusion and reflect their true performance on the 
visit. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Review the current District Visit Criteria and scoring system and provide direction to Staff 
for any revisions to consider at the November Board Meeting. 

Page 96 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• Current District Visitation Criteria 
• Current District Visit Scoring System 
• Proposed District Visit Scoring System 
 
 

 

Page 97 of 157



 
 
 
 

CAPRI PROPERTY/LIABILITY VISITATION CRITERIA  
 

 
A. Follow-Up Items                  __________    

1. __________ Complied with recommendations from prior visitations.  
                             If no recommendations than fulfilled requirements. 1 pt.   

 
 
 
B. District Safety Committee    __________    

2. __________ Meetings are held at no less than on a quarterly basis and minutes are timely sent to CAPRI within 30 days 
                             of the meeting date. 3 pts.  

3. __________ Membership representative of operations. 1 pt. 
4. __________ Discussions involve a wide-range of training and safety topics. 1 pt. 
5. __________ Facilities inspections reviewed by the committee on a regular basis. 1 pt. 
6. __________ Post-loss analysis of patron and employee accidents. 1 pt. 
7. __________ Evidence of follow-through on suggested action items. 1 pt. 
8. __________  District is actively addressing issues that have resulted in claims occurring. 1 pt. 
9. __________ Minutes accurately reflect discussions of agenda items. 1 pt. 
10. __________ District is currently using the provided safety training.                         

                             (IE Target Solutions, CAPRI Safety Videos and Webinars/Workshops)  3 pt. 
 
 
C. Inspection and Maintenance Program   __________ 

11. __________         Regularly scheduled inspection system. 3 pts. 
12. __________ Inspection forms are site and use specific. 1 pt. 
13. __________ All repairs are documented.  3 pts. 
14. __________ Form signed and dated. 1 pt. 
15. __________ All forms reviewed by a supervisor and signed off. 1 pt. 

 
 
D. Screening and Review    __________   
       16. __________ Information on personal auto insurance current and complete.  3 pts. 

17. __________ MVRs complete and current and reviewed by District management. 1 pt. 
18. __________ Written procedure for unacceptable MVRs or loss of license.  Policy is communicated. 1 pt. 
19. __________ Supervisors have received required sexual harassment training and has completion certificate   

                             on file as required under SB 1343.  3 pts.                                                    
20. __________  PRC 5164 documentation.  Fingerprints and screening questionnaires. 3 pts. 
21. __________ District has current copy of valid California Driver’s License on file if employee drives on District  

                             Business. 1 pt. 
 
E. ADA Implementation    __________   

22. __________ Self-assessment completed within the last five years (transition plan). 3 pts. 
23. __________ Written prioritization and implementation plan. 1 pt. 
24. __________ District is actively taking steps to improve ADA accessibility.  1 pt.                                                    
25. __________ Established procedures for good-faith interactive discussion if reasonable accommodation is                                         

   indicated.  1 pt.    
26. __________ District has evidence of completion of an ADA upgrade completed within the last 24 months based on  

                             self-assessment list and as indicated on their transitional plan. 1 pt.                                               
 
F. IIPP Implementation    __________   

27. __________ Person responsible for implementing program is identified. 1 pt.   
28. __________ Established system for identifying, evaluating, and correcting workplace hazards and unsafe                                        

   conditions. 1 pt. 
29. __________ District has an active safety and training program. 1 pt.   
30. __________ District has a policy for reporting work site hazards without fear of reprisal. 1 pt. 
31. __________ System in place to ensure employee compliance with safe and healthy work practices. 1 pt. 
32. __________ Evidence of annual review. 1 pt.                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

 
G. Participant Waiver and Release Forms  __________   

33. __________ CAPRI-approved Waiver and Release forms for all activities where registration is required.  3 pts.  
34. __________ Form accurately describes name and timeframe of activity. 3 pts. 

Page 98 of 157



 
 
 
 

 
H. Facilities Use Agreement    __________   

35. __________ District’s Facilities Use Agreement contains CAPRI-approved indemnification language.  3 pts.       
36. __________ District has standards when to require agreement and when to require liability insurance. 1 pt.  
37. __________ When insurance required, user provides a certificate. 1 pt. 

 
 
 
I. Parks and Facilities     ___________    

38. __________ Facilities evidence good care and maintenance. 1 pt.                                                        
39. __________ Parks are well maintained and free of trip and fall hazards.  1 pt.                                   
40. __________ Park structures are in good condition.  1 pt.                   
41. __________ Playground equipment is in good working and functioning condition. 1 pt. 
42. __________ Fill material in playground area has been recycled, refilled or turned over in the past 30 days and appear to 

                             meet the standard depth. 1 pt. 
 
 
J. Pools      __________   

43. __________ Pool(s) are adequately staffed. 1 pt. 
44. __________ Lifeguards have received appropriate training and are properly certified. 1 pt. 
45. __________ Pool facility is well-maintained and in good condition. 1 pt. 
46. __________ Water clarity and balance are at appropriate levels. 1 pt. 
47. __________ Daily log of water condition which includes temperature, PH balance, movement and amount of  

chemicals added for that day. 1 pt. 
48. __________ Pool has appropriate and fully stocked First Aid Kit and AED. 1 pt.  
49. __________ Pool has operational ADA lift on deck or near. 1 pt. 

 
K. Entrance Medical Examination   __________   

50. __________ Post-offer Preemployment Medical Examinations are required for all full-time employees. 1 pt. 
51. __________ Candidates are informed that offer is conditional, based upon satisfactory exam. 1 pt.  
52. __________ Medical exam is not initiated until all background checks have been completed. 1 pt. 
53. __________ Results of exams maintained in a manner that protects the employee’s privacy. 1 pt. 

 
 
L. Job Descriptions     __________   

54. __________ Clear, current job descriptions exist for all full-time and regular part-time positions.  3 pts.  
55. __________ Job descriptions clearly identify the essential functions necessary to perform the job. 3 pts. 

 
 
M. Volunteers      __________   

56. __________ Volunteer log is maintained for all volunteers. 3 pts. 
57. __________ When volunteers are used, they are supervised by district personnel. 1 pt. 
58. __________ Volunteers receive appropriate health and safety training. 1 pt. 
59. __________ Volunteers complete an application prior to being accepted. 3 pts. 
60. __________ Volunteers are always supervised by district staff. 1 pt. 

 
 
N. Life Safety      __________   

61. ___________ MSDS are current and readily available at the appropriate job sites. 3 pts. 
62. ___________ Fire extinguishers currently tagged/certified and first aid kit stocked as outlined for minimum requirements 
                                    for Workplace First Aid Kits ANSI Z308.1. 3 pts.  
63. ___________ Emergency exit lights in working order and fire exits are clearly identified. 1 pt. 
64. ___________ Emergency evacuation plans have been developed and are properly displayed. 1 pt. 
65. ___________ Safety drills are conducted at least annually. 1 pt. 

 
O. Legal/Employment                  __________    

66. ___________ District has Employment Counsel or uses CAPRI’s Labor Law/Employment Services.  1pt.  
 
 
 
 

Page 99 of 157



 

Current Scoring: 
 

Districts with Property/Liability/Workers’ Comp and with a Pool(s) 

90-100 Very Good 

80-90 Good 

70-79 Needs Improvement 

69 or less Unsatisfactory 

 

Districts with Property/Liability/Workers’ Comp without a Pool 

84-93 Very Good 

74-83 Good 

65-73 Needs Improvement 

64 or less Unsatisfactory 

 

Districts with Workers’ Comp Only 

No Scoring Method has been established 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 100 of 157



Proposal for District Visitation Criteria Scoring 

 

Proposed Scoring: 

 

Since not all Districts have Pool(s), Volunteers, IIPP (due to the number of employees), or 
Facilities Use Agreement(s), the proposal is to go with a percentage (%) rather than a number.   

 

Also, the proposal includes a change in what qualifies for a Safety Award from Very Good to 
Excellent. 

 

Districts with Property/Liability/Workers’ Comp  

90-100%:  Excellent 

80-89%:   Very Good 

70-79%:   Good 

69% or less:  Needs Improvement 

 

Districts with Workers’ Comp Only 

90-100%:  Excellent 

80-89%:   Very Good 

70-79%:   Good 

69% or less:  Needs Improvement 

 

 

 

Page 101 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

       Agenda Item 8.4 

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
 
SUBJECT: W/C Program Dividend Distribution Review 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Every year, the CAPRI Board of Directors reviews the overall financial position of each of 
the programs to determine if it is appropriate to declare dividends to the membership.  
As the Board may recall, Bickmore Risk Services conducted an actuarial analysis of the 
Workers’ Compensation program and determined that the program is funded at over the 
90% confidence level.  This exceeds the recommended 80-85% funding level.  At the same 
time, Bickmore estimated outstanding claims to decrease approximately 4% compared to 
last year. 
 
At the June Board of Directors meeting, the Board authorized staff to fund the WC 
program this year at approximately the 70% confidence level representing an increase of 
between 8-10% from prior years.  This again represents a healthy investment in the long-
term health of the pool. 
 
Enclosed is a Workers’ Compensation Program Dividend spreadsheet which shows how 
each year is positioned financially based upon each year’s audited financials and current 
loss runs.  The spreadsheet demonstrates how and when dividends have been declared 
in years past.  Last year, the Board decided not to declare a dividend for the WC Program.  
In fact, the Board has not declared a dividend for the WC program since 2014.  See below.   
 
Fiscal Year   Dividend Issued?   Amount? 
 
2014-2015:   Yes     $300,000 
 
2015-2016:   No     N/A 
 
2016-2017:   No     N/A 
 
2017-2018:   No     N/A 
 
2018-2019:   No     N/A 

Page 102 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

 
Based on the overall confidence level of the program and the recent strong performance 
of the pool members, Staff believes that the issuance of a dividend may be appropriate 
this year. However, Staff instead recommends that the Board consider other alternative 
investments including the development of a multi-program discount to reward Districts’ 
long-time loyalty and to attract prospective members.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
In lieu of declaring dividends in the WC program this fiscal year, direct staff to investigate 
alternative options for rewarding members, including multi-program premium discounts, 
for consideration of the Board at a future meeting. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• CAPRI Workers’ Compensation Program Dividend spreadsheet 

 

Page 103 of 157



C
AP

R
I

W
or

ke
rs

 C
om

p 
D

iv
id

en
d 

Sc
he

du
le

07
/0

1/
16

- 0
6/

30
/1

7

C
AP

R
I

W
or

ke
rs

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
Pr

og
ra

m

O
pe

n 
C

la
im

s 
Ye

ar
s

C
SA

C
C

SA
C

C
SA

C
O

pe
n

O
pe

n
O

pe
n

O
pe

n
O

pe
n

O
pe

n
O

pe
n

O
pe

n
O

pe
n

O
pe

n
O

pe
n

O
pe

n
O

pe
n

O
pe

m
Pr

io
r t

o 
20

01
20

01
/2

00
2

20
02

/2
00

3
20

03
/2

00
4

20
04

/2
00

5
20

05
/2

00
6

20
06

/2
00

7
20

07
/2

00
8

20
08

/2
00

9
20

09
/2

01
0

20
10

/2
01

1
20

11
/2

01
2

20
12

/2
01

3
20

13
/2

01
4

20
14

/2
01

5
20

15
/2

01
6

20
16

/2
01

7
20

17
/2

01
8

20
18

/2
01

9

M
em

be
r C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
3,

42
5,

51
6

   
   

 
5,

34
5,

56
7

   
5,

06
9,

32
9

  
5,

32
2,

78
8

   
4,

95
6,

50
1

   
 

3,
55

5,
94

7
  

2,
99

3,
22

3
   

3,
75

7,
77

2
   

3,
96

9,
76

6
   

 
3,

81
2,

11
1

   
 

3,
68

0,
57

3
   

3,
21

5,
68

3
   

   
  

3,
33

2,
43

9
   

   
 

3,
98

1,
80

8
   

   
 

4,
48

9,
94

6
   

   
 

4,
90

6,
02

3
   

   
 

5,
28

9,
09

0
   

   
 

5,
42

7,
92

7
   

   
 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

re
di

ts
(2

46
,1

29
)

   
   

In
ve

st
m

en
t I

nc
om

e
88

,5
25

   
   

   
   

70
,5

56
   

   
  

63
,4

45
   

   
 

86
,5

98
   

   
  

29
4,

85
8

   
   

 
51

8,
00

2
   

  
44

1,
44

6
   

   
42

2,
04

5
   

   
21

1,
88

3
   

   
 

12
7,

40
6

   
   

 
10

0,
88

8
   

   
2,

35
1

   
   

   
   

   
12

1,
90

0
   

   
   

 
10

8,
74

5
   

   
   

 
11

2,
96

2
   

   
   

 
1,

51
7

   
   

   
   

  
3,

17
1

   
   

   
   

  
38

5,
23

6
   

   
   

 
R

en
ta

l I
nc

om
e

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
04

0
   

   
   

   
  

4,
20

0
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
M

is
c.

 In
co

m
e

1,
20

9
   

   
   

   
  

68
9

   
   

   
   

   
  

26
9

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
AR

PD
 S

er
vi

ce
s

20
,8

00
   

   
   

   
 

21
,6

00
   

   
   

   
22

,4
00

   
   

   
   

24
,8

00
   

   
   

   
25

,6
00

   
   

   
   

19
,8

00
   

   
   

   
26

,8
00

   
   

   
   

Ad
m

is
si

on
 F

ee
1,

20
3

   
   

   
8,

99
0

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l I
nc

om
e

3,
51

4,
04

1
   

   
 

5,
41

6,
12

3
   

5,
13

3,
97

7
  

5,
41

8,
37

6
   

5,
00

5,
23

0
   

 
4,

07
3,

94
9

  
3,

43
4,

66
9

   
4,

17
9,

81
7

   
4,

18
1,

64
9

   
 

3,
93

9,
51

7
   

 
3,

78
1,

46
1

   
3,

23
8,

83
4

   
   

  
3,

47
5,

93
9

   
   

 
4,

11
2,

95
3

   
   

 
4,

62
7,

70
8

   
   

 
4,

93
9,

39
0

   
   

 
5,

31
6,

95
0

   
   

 
5,

84
0,

23
1

   
   

 
79

,6
30

,8
14

   
   

  
(P

er
 A

ud
it 

R
ep

or
t)*

M
gm

t/A
dm

in
/In

su
ra

nc
e 

Ex
pe

ns
es

19
2,

20
1

   
   

   
 

3,
76

8,
46

7
   

4,
85

2,
65

3
  

5,
16

1,
10

9
   

39
1,

42
4

   
   

 
58

0,
57

5
   

  
60

4,
74

1
   

   
76

2,
45

7
   

   
53

7,
87

2
   

   
 

81
3,

83
1

   
   

 
92

7,
49

4
   

   
99

4,
10

1.
00

   
   

1,
14

0,
25

6.
00

  
1,

13
6,

84
1.

00
  

1,
23

0,
63

8.
00

  
1,

29
3,

90
5.

00
  

1,
77

5,
10

6.
53

  
1,

33
5,

89
4.

32
  

(P
er

 A
ud

it 
R

ep
or

t)*

Ac
tu

al
 C

la
im

s 
Ex

pe
ns

es
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

34
3,

14
3

   
 

1,
41

5,
26

2
  

2,
86

4,
19

7
   

2,
35

8,
88

2
   

2,
92

3,
60

2
   

 
2,

71
5,

26
6

   
 

3,
35

2,
87

9
   

3,
25

4,
55

9
   

   
  

2,
39

4,
34

9
   

   
 

2,
33

3,
74

4
   

   
 

3,
61

5,
41

4
   

   
 

2,
52

3,
88

8
   

   
 

1,
65

2,
65

7
   

   
 

1,
75

4,
59

3
   

   
 

Pe
r Y

or
k 

Lo
ss

 R
un

 6
/3

0/
XX

To
ta

l E
xp

en
se

s
19

2,
20

1
   

   
   

 
3,

76
8,

46
7

   
4,

85
2,

65
3

  
5,

16
1,

10
9

   
7,

73
4,

56
7

   
 

1,
99

5,
83

7
  

3,
46

8,
93

8
   

3,
12

1,
33

9
   

3,
46

1,
47

4
   

 
3,

52
9,

09
7

   
 

4,
28

0,
37

3
   

4,
24

8,
66

0
   

   
  

3,
53

4,
60

5
   

   
 

3,
47

0,
58

5
   

   
 

4,
84

6,
05

2
   

   
 

3,
81

7,
79

3
   

   
 

3,
42

7,
76

3
   

   
 

3,
09

0,
48

7
   

   
 

68
,0

01
,9

99
   

   
  

N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

/L
os

s
3,

32
1,

84
0

   
   

 
1,

64
7,

65
6

   
28

1,
32

4
   

  
25

7,
26

7
   

   
(2

,7
29

,3
37

)
   

2,
07

8,
11

3
  

(3
4,

26
9)

   
   

 
1,

05
8,

47
8

   
72

0,
17

5
   

   
 

41
0,

42
0

   
   

 
(4

98
,9

12
)

   
  

(1
,0

09
,8

26
)

   
   

 
(5

8,
66

6)
   

   
   

  
64

2,
36

8
   

   
   

 
(2

18
,3

43
)

   
   

   
1,

12
1,

59
7

   
   

 
1,

88
9,

18
7

   
   

 
2,

74
9,

74
4

   
   

 
11

,6
28

,8
14

   
   

  

D
iv

id
en

ds
 P

ai
d 

/ D
ec

la
re

d
1,

71
2,

75
6

   
   

 
72

1,
65

1
   

   
2,

43
4,

40
7

   
   

   
 

10
/2

5/
20

11
30

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
30

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
 

8/
15

/2
01

2
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
25

0,
00

0
   

   
35

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
 

8/
21

/2
01

3
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

22
5,

00
0

   
   

27
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
8/

1/
20

14
30

0,
00

0
   

   
30

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
 

8/
1/

20
15

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8/

1/
20

16
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

D
iv

id
en

d 
Pa

id
/D

ec
la

re
d

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Fu
tu

re
 D

iv
id

en
d

82
5,

25
5

   
   

   
1,

15
9,

08
4

   
   

 
15

1,
00

5
   

   
28

1,
32

4
   

  
25

7,
26

7
   

   
(2

,7
29

,3
37

)
   

2,
07

8,
11

3
  

(3
4,

26
9)

   
   

 
1,

05
8,

47
8

   
72

0,
17

5
   

   
 

41
0,

42
0

   
   

 
(4

98
,9

12
)

   
  

(1
,0

09
,8

26
)

   
   

 
(5

8,
66

6)
   

   
   

  
64

2,
36

8
   

   
   

 
(2

18
,3

43
)

   
   

   
1,

12
1,

59
7

   
   

 
1,

88
9,

18
7

   
   

 
2,

74
9,

74
4

   
   

 
8,

79
4,

66
2

   
   

   
 

H
el

d 
Fo

r O
pe

n 
Ye

ar
s

82
5,

25
5

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

(2
,7

29
,3

37
)

   
2,

07
8,

11
3

  
(3

4,
26

9)
   

   
 

1,
05

8,
47

8
   

72
0,

17
5

   
   

 
41

0,
42

0
   

   
 

(4
98

,9
12

)
   

  
(1

,0
09

,8
26

)
   

   
 

(5
8,

66
6)

   
   

   
  

64
2,

36
8

   
   

   
 

(2
18

,3
43

)
   

   
   

1,
12

1,
59

7
   

   
 

1,
88

9,
18

7
   

   
 

2,
74

9,
74

4
   

   
 

6,
94

5,
98

2
   

   
   

 

R
ea

dy
 fo

r D
is

tr
ib

iu
tio

n
1,

84
8,

68
0

   
   

   
 

*2
01

6/
20

17
 U

se
d 

Q
B 

P&
L 

Au
di

t r
ep

or
t n

ot
 y

et
 a

va
il

20
17

/2
01

8 
U

se
d 

Q
B 

P&
L 

Au
di

t r
ep

or
t n

ot
 y

et
 a

va
il

1 
of

 1

Page 104 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

       Agenda Item 8.5 

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
 
SUBJECT: Liability & Property Program Dividend Distribution Review 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Every year, the CAPRI Board of Directors reviews the overall financial position of each of 
the programs to determine if it is appropriate to declare dividends to the membership.  
As the Board may recall, Bickmore Risk Services conducted an actuarial analysis of the 
Liability & Property program and determined that the program is well-funded at over the 
90% confidence level.  This exceeds the recommended 80-85% funding level.  At the same 
time, Bickmore estimated outstanding claims to increase approximately 39% compared 
to last year while program assets are expected to decrease approximately 8%. 
 
At the June Board of Directors meeting, the Board authorized staff to fund the Liability & 
Property program this year at approximately the 70% confidence level.  The funding level 
was reflective of a desire to continue to invest in the program notwithstanding the 
significant increases in outstanding claims and excess premiums. 
 
Enclosed is a Liability & Property Program Dividend spreadsheet which shows how each 
year is positioned financially based upon each year’s audited financials and current loss 
runs.  The spreadsheet demonstrates how and when dividends have been declared in 
years past.  Last year, the Board decided to declare a dividend for the program in the 
amount of $200,000.  That marked the fourth consecutive year in which dividends were 
distributed.  See below five-year history of dividends in the program.   
 
Fiscal Year   Dividend Issued?   Amount? 
2014-2015:   No     N/A 
 
2015-2016:   Yes     $325,000 
 
2016-2017:   Yes     $300,000 
 
2017-2018:   Yes     $275,000 
 
2018-2019:   Yes     $250,00 

Page 105 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

 
Based on the program’s recent loss history and the estimated increases in outstanding 
claims, Staff believes that the issuance of a dividend is not appropriate this year.  Staff is 
optimistic that after a year of historic losses the program performance will return to 
normalcy and that CAPRI can continue to consider dividends in the program in the future.  
However, Staff instead recommends that the Board consider other alternative investments 
including the development of a multi-program discount to reward Districts’ long-time 
loyalty and to attract prospective members. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
In lieu of declaring dividends in the Liability & Property program this fiscal year, direct 
staff to investigate alternative options for rewarding members, including multi-program 
premium discounts, for consideration of the Board at a future meeting. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• CAPRI Liability & Property Program Dividend spreadsheet 
 

 

Page 106 of 157



C
AP

R
I

Li
ab

ilit
y 

Pr
op

er
ty

 D
iv

id
en

d 
Sc

he
du

le
07

/0
1/

18
- 0

6/
30

/1
9

C
AP

R
I L

IA
BI

LI
TY

 P
R

O
G

R
AM

C
lo

se
d

C
lo

se
d

C
lo

se
d

C
lo

se
d

C
lo

se
d

C
lo

se
d

C
lo

se
d

C
lo

se
d

C
lo

se
d

C
lo

se
d

C
lo

se
d

C
lo

se
d

C
lo

se
d

 C
lo

se
d 

C
lo

se
d

C
lo

se
d

O
pe

n
O

pe
n

O
pe

n
O

pe
n

O
pe

n
15

 M
on

th
s

19
98

/1
99

9
19

99
/2

00
0

20
00

/2
00

1
20

01
/2

00
2

20
02

/2
00

3
20

03
/2

00
4

20
04

/2
00

5
20

05
/2

00
6

20
06

/2
00

7
20

07
/2

00
8

20
08

/2
00

9
20

09
/2

01
0

20
10

/2
01

1
20

11
/2

01
2

20
12

/2
01

3
20

13
/2

01
4

20
14

/2
01

5
20

15
/2

01
6

20
16

/2
01

7
20

17
/2

01
8

20
18

/2
01

9
C

la
im

 fo
r 1

99
5 

O
pe

ne
d

M
em

be
r C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
1,

99
5,

50
1

   
 

1,
87

4,
37

0
   

 
1,

78
1,

57
8

   
 

1,
78

1,
33

5
   

 
2,

08
1,

14
7

   
   

 
2,

45
8,

49
9

   
 

1,
85

5,
73

7
   

 
2,

09
6,

43
1

   
 

3,
10

2,
99

8
   

 
2,

36
5,

56
2

   
 

2,
72

1,
78

4
   

 
2,

88
6,

90
3

   
2,

72
0,

90
9

   
2,

72
0,

90
9

   
   

 
3,

05
3,

84
5

   
 

3,
05

3,
76

8
   

 
3,

21
9,

90
6

   
   

3,
31

4,
51

1
   

 
3,

38
9,

79
5

   
   

3,
70

1,
11

4
   

   
4,

20
8,

71
7

   
   

PA
R

D
EC

 S
er

vi
ce

s
20

,7
16

   
   

   
21

,2
89

   
   

   
25

,4
62

   
   

   
25

,0
00

   
   

   
   

25
,0

00
   

   
   

25
,0

00
   

   
   

25
,0

00
   

   
   

31
,2

50
   

   
   

25
,0

00
   

   
   

In
ve

st
m

en
t I

nc
om

e
58

5,
55

5
   

   
 

51
8,

62
5

   
   

 
83

1,
88

8
   

   
 

51
2,

70
0

   
   

 
55

7,
71

1
   

   
   

 
25

3,
70

6
   

   
 

45
,8

49
   

   
   

25
6,

02
1

   
   

 
59

3,
63

9
   

   
 

63
7,

23
7

   
   

 
48

2,
74

5
   

   
 

31
7,

82
4

   
   

19
1,

10
8

   
   

15
1,

33
3

   
   

   
 

3,
52

6
   

   
   

  
18

2,
84

9
   

   
 

16
3,

11
7

   
   

   
16

9,
44

3
   

   
 

2,
27

6
   

   
   

   
 

4,
75

7
   

   
   

   
 

57
7,

85
3

   
   

   
M

is
c 

In
co

m
e

20
,6

90
   

   
   

49
8

   
   

   
   

  
82

   
   

   
   

   
 

88
   

   
   

   
   

 
18

2
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

10
7

   
   

   
  

10
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

81
4

   
   

   
   

 
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
40

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
Pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
Fe

e
2,

65
2

   
   

   
  

2,
65

2
   

   
   

  
2,

65
2

   
   

   
   

  
31

,7
10

   
   

   
31

,7
10

   
   

   
31

,7
10

   
   

   
C

AR
PD

 S
er

vi
ce

s
32

,4
00

   
   

   
33

,6
00

   
   

   
  

37
,2

00
   

   
   

38
,4

00
   

   
   

  
46

,2
00

   
   

   
  

40
,2

00
   

   
   

  
R

en
ta

l I
nc

om
e

20
,3

76
   

   
   

13
,0

80
   

   
   

19
,1

87
   

   
   

21
,2

25
   

   
   

22
,6

26
   

   
   

   
23

,1
62

   
   

   
24

,4
89

   
   

   
25

,8
78

   
   

   
33

,7
22

   
   

   
17

,5
00

   
   

   
8,

22
8

   
   

   
   

  
16

,1
03

   
   

   
18

,6
68

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

56
0

   
   

   
   

 
9,

10
0

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
To

ta
l I

nc
om

e
2,

62
2,

12
2

   
 

2,
42

7,
28

9
   

 
2,

65
6,

67
6

   
 

2,
34

3,
46

2
   

 
2,

68
9,

31
8

   
   

 
2,

79
3,

18
4

   
 

1,
98

2,
79

5
   

 
2,

43
5,

04
0

   
 

3,
76

1,
60

9
   

 
3,

04
5,

29
9

   
 

3,
20

4,
52

9
   

 
3,

20
4,

72
7

   
2,

91
2,

01
7

   
2,

88
0,

47
0

   
   

 
3,

07
3,

47
4

   
 

3,
28

7,
68

5
   

 
3,

41
6,

62
3

   
   

3,
52

1,
15

4
   

 
3,

43
9,

84
5

   
   

3,
76

1,
17

7
   

   
4,

82
7,

17
3

   
   

64
,2

85
,6

68
.0

6
   

   
   

   
   

  
(P

er
 A

ud
it 

R
ep

or
t)

M
gm

t/A
dm

in
 E

xp
en

se
s

33
9,

62
2

   
   

 
34

5,
85

5
   

   
 

34
1,

47
8

   
   

 
35

4,
35

8
   

   
 

36
1,

96
1

   
   

   
 

38
1,

42
8

   
   

 
41

3,
88

5
   

   
 

42
2,

06
1

   
   

 
56

5,
36

7
   

   
 

51
5,

08
5

   
   

 
36

8,
62

4
   

   
 

32
9,

21
0

   
   

33
5,

97
6

   
   

37
3,

87
7

   
   

   
 

37
7,

56
1

   
   

 
38

9,
43

0
   

   
 

56
3,

46
9

   
   

   
65

9,
84

4
   

   
 

57
1,

74
1

   
   

   
57

7,
49

2
   

   
   

65
7,

64
1

   
   

   
In

su
ra

nc
e 

Ex
pe

ns
es

59
9,

19
3

   
   

 
48

6,
80

0
   

   
 

38
4,

00
0

   
   

 
38

0,
50

0
   

   
 

57
4,

74
3

   
   

   
 

60
2,

40
6

   
   

 
58

6,
00

0
   

   
 

52
3,

99
1

   
   

 
83

3,
60

4
   

   
 

69
8,

73
3

   
   

 
65

3,
49

8
   

   
 

1,
09

2,
72

0
   

1,
06

1,
83

7
   

1,
11

1,
64

5
   

   
 

1,
20

7,
88

8
   

 
1,

33
2,

07
4

   
 

1,
31

9,
82

5
   

   
1,

37
2,

94
5

   
 

1,
45

9,
17

4
   

   
1,

21
1,

32
7

   
   

1,
91

2,
63

3
   

   
(P

er
 A

ud
it 

R
ep

or
t)*

Pr
op

er
ty

 L
os

se
s 

Pa
id

50
,4

09
   

   
   

34
,9

22
   

   
   

15
6,

43
1

   
   

 
10

0,
64

5
   

   
 

21
0,

84
1

   
   

   
 

25
1,

76
4

   
   

 
37

7,
61

5
   

   
 

54
4,

15
4

   
   

 
36

6,
30

8
   

   
 

98
2,

88
4

   
   

 
24

1,
33

5
   

   
 

25
5,

46
1

   
   

38
7,

94
3

   
   

63
8,

19
3

   
   

   
 

62
6,

37
5

   
   

 
36

8,
29

8
   

   
 

1,
22

5,
46

3
   

   
31

2,
29

4
   

   
 

1,
24

7,
10

5
   

   
40

4,
99

1
   

   
   

1,
13

2,
50

5
   

   
G

L 
Ac

tu
al

 C
la

im
s 

Ex
pe

ns
es

 (N
et

 In
cu

rre
d)

58
1,

68
4

   
   

 
17

5,
05

2
   

   
 

33
2,

93
2

   
   

 
35

5,
08

0
   

   
 

51
5,

58
4

   
   

   
 

24
2,

13
4

   
   

 
42

3,
15

2
   

   
 

37
8,

84
8

   
   

 
64

0,
39

4
   

   
 

1,
23

9,
91

7
   

 
1,

71
8,

71
7

   
 

82
3,

29
1

   
   

1,
42

5,
81

6
   

75
8,

96
4

   
   

   
 

52
7,

62
5

   
   

 
1,

68
3,

36
6

   
 

2,
32

2,
47

1
   

   
1,

37
5,

25
3

   
 

1,
77

0,
77

6
   

   
1,

43
6,

70
9

   
   

17
7,

01
5

   
   

   
Pe

r Y
or

k 
Lo

ss
 R

un
 6

/3
0/

XX
To

ta
l E

xp
en

se
s

1,
57

0,
90

8
   

 
1,

04
2,

62
9

   
 

1,
21

4,
84

1
   

 
1,

19
0,

58
3

   
 

1,
66

3,
12

9
   

   
 

1,
47

7,
73

2
   

 
1,

80
0,

65
2

   
 

1,
86

9,
05

4
   

 
2,

40
5,

67
3

   
 

3,
43

6,
61

9
   

 
2,

98
2,

17
4

   
 

2,
50

0,
68

2
   

3,
21

1,
57

2
   

2,
88

2,
68

0
   

   
 

2,
73

9,
44

9
   

 
3,

77
3,

16
8

   
 

5,
43

1,
22

8
   

   
3,

72
0,

33
6

   
 

5,
04

8,
79

6
   

   
3,

63
0,

51
9

   
   

3,
87

9,
79

4
   

   
57

,4
72

,2
18

.2
6

   
   

   
   

   
  

N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

/L
os

s
1,

05
1,

21
4

   
 

1,
38

4,
66

0
   

 
1,

44
1,

83
5

   
 

1,
15

2,
88

0
   

 
1,

02
6,

18
9

   
   

 
1,

31
5,

45
2

   
 

18
2,

14
3

   
   

 
56

5,
98

6
   

   
 

1,
35

5,
93

6
   

 
(3

91
,3

20
)

   
   

22
2,

35
5

   
   

 
70

4,
04

5
   

   
(2

99
,5

55
)

   
  

(2
,2

10
)

   
   

   
   

 
33

4,
02

6
   

   
 

(4
85

,4
83

)
   

   
(2

,0
14

,6
05

)
   

  
(1

99
,1

81
)

   
   

(1
,6

08
,9

51
)

   
  

13
0,

65
8

   
   

   
94

7,
38

0
   

   
   

6,
81

3,
44

9.
81

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

D
iv

id
en

ds
 P

ai
d 

/ D
ec

la
re

d
1,

11
1,

24
0

   
 

70
7,

51
6

   
   

 
1,

81
8,

75
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

D
iv

id
en

ds
 P

ai
d 

/ D
ec

la
re

d
50

0,
00

0
   

   
 

50
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0,
00

0
   

   
 

35
0,

00
0

   
   

 
45

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

D
iv

id
en

ds
 D

ec
la

re
d 

8/
15

/1
2

20
0,

00
0

   
   

 
20

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

D
iv

id
en

ds
 D

ec
la

re
d 

8/
15

/1
3

30
0,

00
0

   
   

 
30

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

D
iv

id
en

d 
Pa

id
/D

ec
la

re
d 

Au
g 

20
14

22
5,

00
0

   
   

 
10

0,
00

0
   

   
 

75
,0

00
   

   
   

   
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

8/
1/

15
32

5,
00

0
   

   
 

32
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
8/

1/
16

30
0,

00
0

   
   

 
30

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3/
26

/1
8

25
5,

35
2

   
   

 
3/

14
/2

01
9

24
7,

00
0.

00
   

  
24

7,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Fu
tu

re
 D

iv
id

en
d

(6
0,

02
6)

   
   

  
77

,1
44

   
   

   
36

6,
83

5
   

   
 

17
2,

52
8

   
   

 
70

4,
18

9
   

   
   

 
1,

31
5,

45
2

   
 

18
2,

14
3

   
   

 
56

5,
98

6
   

   
 

1,
35

5,
93

6
   

 
(3

91
,3

20
)

   
   

22
2,

35
5

   
   

 
70

4,
04

5
   

   
(2

99
,5

55
)

   
  

(2
,2

10
)

   
   

   
   

 
33

4,
02

6
   

   
 

(4
85

,4
83

)
   

   
(2

,0
14

,6
05

)
   

  
(1

99
,1

81
)

   
   

(1
,6

08
,9

51
)

   
  

13
0,

65
8

   
   

   
94

7,
38

0
   

   
   

2,
01

7,
34

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
To

ta
l F

ut
ur

e 
D

iv
id

en
ds

Pr
op

er
ty

 R
es

er
ve

17
5,

15
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
R

es
er

ve
s 

To
ta

l A
va

ila
bl

e
1,

84
2,

18
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r D
is

tri
bu

tio
ns

H
el

d 
Fo

r O
pe

n 
Ye

ar
s

R
ea

dy
 fo

r D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n

*2
01

6/
20

17
 U

se
d 

Q
B 

P&
L 

Au
di

t r
ep

or
t n

ot
 y

et
 a

va
il

20
17

/2
01

8 
U

se
d 

Q
B 

P&
L 

Au
di

t r
ep

or
t n

ot
 y

et
 a

va
il

20
18

/2
01

9 
U

se
d 

Q
B 

P&
L 

- A
ud

it 
re

po
rt 

no
t y

et
 a

va
il

Page 107 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

       Agenda Item 8.6 

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 3-2019 – Off Duty, Out of State Peace Officer Injury 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
California Labor Code Section 3600.2(a) provides workers’ compensation coverage for 
injuries sustained by peace officers while off duty within the State.  Assembly Bill 1749 
was introduced during the 2018 legislative session to address the concerns of some 
legislators that workers’ compensation claims filed by California peace officers who were 
injured during the October 2017 Las Vegas Route 91 Harvest Festival were being denied.  
In September 2018, Governor Jerry Brown signed the bill into law with an effective date 
of January 1, 2019. 
 
The new addition to Labor Code Section 3600.2(b) provides as follows: 
 

(b) Nothing in this section shall be deemed to: 
 
(4) Preclude an employer, at its discretion or in accordance with written policies 
adopted by resolution of the employer’s governing body, from accepting liability 
for compensation under this division for an injury sustained by a peace officer, as 
defined in Section 50920 of the Government Code, by reason of engaging in the 
apprehension or attempted apprehension of law violators or suspected law 
violators, or protection or preservation of life or property, or the preservation of 
the peace, outside the state of California, but who was not at the time acting under 
the immediate direction of his or her employer, including any claims for injuries 
sustained by peace officers during the October 1, 2017, mass shooting in Las 
Vegas, Nevada, if the employer determines that providing compensation serves 
the public purposes of the employer. For claims filed pursuant to this paragraph 
by peace officers for injuries sustained during the October 1, 2017, mass shooting 
in Las Vegas, Nevada, the date of injury for purposes of subdivision (a) of Section 
5405 shall be deemed the operative date of the act adding this paragraph. 
Acceptance of liability under this subdivision shall not affect the determination of 
whether or not the peace officer acted within the scope of his or her employment 
for any other purpose. 

 

Page 108 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

This amendment allows an entity to decide whether to accept a workers’ compensation 
claim filed by a peace officer who, while out-of-state, is injured while engaging in the 
apprehension or attempted apprehension of law violators or suspected law violators, or 
protection or preservation of life or property, or the preservation of the peace.  An 
employer entity can choose to accept compensability and provide benefits at its 
discretion or in accordance with a resolution, as long as the employer decides that 
providing compensation serves the public purposes of the employer. 
 
At the recommendation of the EIA’s Underwriting and Executive Committees, the CSAC-
EIA Board of Directors adopted Endorsement U-6 at their meeting on March 1, 2019.  The 
Endorsement went into effect on July 1, 2019 for the 2019/20 policy year.  The 
endorsement states that the EWC Memorandum of Coverage (MOC) does not provide 
coverage for injuries that occur to off-duty peace officers while outside the state of 
California when the officer is not acting under the immediate direction of his or her 
employer unless: 
 

1. The peace officer was engaging in the apprehension or attempted apprehension 
of law violators or suspected law violators, or in protection or preservation of life 
or property, or the preservation of the peace; and 

2. Prior to the occurrence, the Governing Board of the member has adopted a 
resolution, as provided for in California Labor Code Section 3600.2, subdivision 
(b)(4), accepting liability for such injury. 

 
In other words, the endorsement provides coverage for such claims only if the member 
has adopted a resolution pursuant to Labor Code Section 3600.2.  The resolution can 
indicate the entity has chosen to accept some or all such claims, limit the types of claims 
that are accepted, or even state that the entity will determine at its discretion whether to 
accept or deny a claim.  Ultimately, a resolution must be in place before the injury 
occurs if the member is to be provided excess coverage by the EIA for the claim.  If 
no resolution is adopted, then there is no coverage.  If the member does not adopt a 
resolution prior to an injury occurring, the entity may still choose to accept the claim and 
provide workers’ compensation benefits, but the member will not have coverage at the 
excess level.   
 
With respect to off duty, out of state peace officers, Staff recommends that CAPRI should 
retain discretion to accept compensability for claims on a case by case basis within certain 
confines, but should CAPRI exercise said discretion and elect to provide benefits it would 
be appropriate to adopt a resolution and confirm excess coverage is available.   
 

Page 109 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

Staff further recommends that, consistent with the intent of AB 1749, any policy change 
under which CAPRI may, at its discretion, provide Workers’ Compensation coverage to 
out of state, off duty peace officers be limited to exclude reserve officers, volunteers, 
officers on suspension, or otherwise lacking in good standing, and apply only to off duty 
peace officers injured as a direct result of engaging in law enforcement activities for the 
protection or preservation of life or property within the United Stated immediately 
following: 
 

• An act of domestic terrorism as defined by Section 2331 of Title 18 of the United 
States Code; or 

• An active shooter situation or other incident likely to cause multiple casualties; or 
• A catastrophic event such as an earthquake or flood requiring law enforcement 

deployment. 
 
Staff welcomes further discussion on this topic from the Board, but has prepared a draft 
resolution consistent with Staff’s recommendation. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Adopt Resolution No. 3-2019 pursuant to Labor Code Section 3600.2 retaining discretion 
to accept a workers’ compensation claim filed by a peace officer who, while out-of-state, 
is injured while engaging in law enforcement activities for the protection or preservation 
of life or property within the United Stated immediately following: 
 

• An act of domestic terrorism as defined by Section 2331 of Title 18 of the United 
States Code; or 

• An active shooter situation or other incident likely to cause multiple casualties; or 
• A catastrophic event such as an earthquake or flood requiring law enforcement 

deployment. 
 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• CSAC-EIA Endorsement No. U-6: Off-Duty, Out-of-State Peace Officer Injury (AB 
1749) Endorsement 

• Draft Resolution No. 3-2019 
 

 

Page 110 of 157



Page 111 of 157



California Association for Park 
 & Recreation Indemnity 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  3-2019 
 
 

RESOLUTION EXPANDING WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COVERAGE 
PURSUANT TO AB 1749 FOR PEACE OFFICERS WHO ARE INJURED WHILE 
OFF DUTY IN CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES WHILE OUT OF THE STATE OF 

CALIFORNIA  
 
WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 1749 (“AB 1749”) was proposed during the 2018-2019 California 
legislative session as a response to the denial of workers’ compensation claims that were filed by 
California peace officers who were injured during the Las Vegas Route 91 Harvest Festival 
shooting, and was signed into law effective January 1, 2019; and, 
 
WHEREAS, California Labor Code Section 3600.2 (b) created by AB 1749, provides that 
CAPRI or the CAPRI Board of Directors may decide whether to accept a workers’ compensation 
claim filed by a peace officer who, while out-of-state, is injured while engaging in the 
apprehension or attempted apprehension of law violators or suspected law violators, or protection 
or preservation of life or property, or the preservation of the peace; and,  
 
WHEREAS, “Peace Officer” for the purposes of the resolution has the definition stated in 
Section 50920 of the California Government Code; and, 
 
WHEREAS, CAPRI desires to expand workers’ compensation coverage as permitted by 
AB1749. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that CAPRI’s Board of Directors effective upon the 
date of adoption of the Resolution, allows that any employee in the classification of peace officer 
who is the victim of a violent physical act that causes bodily harm or occupational disease by 
reason of acting as a Good Samaritan while off-duty and out-of-state while engaging in the 
apprehension or attempted apprehension of law violators or suspected law violators, or protection 
or preservation of life or property, or the preservation of the peace, but who was not at the time 
acting under the immediate direction of his of her employer, may be afforded workers’ 
compensation benefits under the following emergency circumstances: 
 

An act of domestic terrorism as defined by Section 2331 of Title 18 of the United 
States Code; or  
 
An active shooter situation or other incident likely to cause multiple casualties; or  
 
A catastrophic event such as an earthquake or flood requiring local law enforcement 
deployment.  

Page 112 of 157



 
It is the intent of this resolution to specifically exclude psychiatric injuries. It is also the intent of 
this resolution to specifically exclude reserve officers and volunteers. To be covered under this 
resolution, the peace officers must not be under suspension and must have performed the 
qualifying actions in compliance with law enforcement standards applicable to CAPRI. 
 
 

 
Lindsay Woods 

(NAME) 
 
 

President, Board of 
Directors 
(TITLE) 

 
 

(SIGNATURE) 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED, by the Board of Directors of California Association for Park and 
Recreation Indemnity (CAPRI) Joint Powers Authority of State of California on  
 
______________________________________. 

Page 113 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

       Agenda Item 10.1 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS 
 
SUBJECT: District Visits Update 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Below please find the District Visitation Summary for Cycle XVI for the period of July – 
September 2019. 
 
There were eight (8) district visit completed during the months of July, August, and early 
September of 2019. There are five more visits scheduled for September. We are pleased 
to report that Truckee-Donner, Russian River, Monte Rio, Tuolumne, Mendocino Coast, 
Ladera, and La Selva Beach all received “Very Good” reports on their visitation review with 
only a few recommendations needed. Bear River Recreation received a “Good” visitation 
review. 
 
The following is their individual evaluation summary. 
 
Truckee-Donner Recreation and Park District – July 18, 2019 
 
Truckee-Donner received a Very Good evaluation.   
 
Safety Committee – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Inspection Program – Very Good – no recommendation at this time. 
 
Screening and Review – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
ADA Implementation – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP) - Very Good – no recommendations at this 
time. 
 
Waiver and Release – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Facility Use Agreement – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 

Page 114 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

 
Parks and Facilities – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Pools – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 
 
Entrance Medical Exam – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Job Descriptions – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Volunteers – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Life Safety – Very Good -no recommendations at this time. 
 
Russian River Recreation and Parks District – July 31, 2019 
 
Russian River received a Very Good evaluation.   
 
Safety Committee – Very Good – no recommendations at this time.  
 
Inspection Program – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 
 
Screening and Review – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
ADA Implementation – Very Good, no recommendations at this time. 
 
Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP) – N/A: The District has less than 10 employees 
and are not required to have an IIPP at this time. The have three employees. The District 
does have a system for identifying, evaluating, and correcting workplace hazards and 
unsafe conditions. 
 
Waiver and Release – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Facility Use Agreement – N/A: At this time this does not apply. 
 
Parks and Facilities – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Pools – N/A. The District does not have any pools. 
 
Entrance Medical Exam – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 

Page 115 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

 
Job Descriptions – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Volunteers – N/A. The District does not use any volunteers at this time. 
 
Life Safety – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 
 
Monte Rio Recreation and Park District – August 1, 2019 
 
Monte Rio received a Very Good evaluation.   
 
Safety Committee – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 
 
Inspection Program – Very Good – no recommendations at this time.  
 
Screening and Review – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
ADA Implementation – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 
 
Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP) – Very Good – no recommendations at this 
time. 
 
Waiver and Release – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Facility Use Agreement – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Parks and Facilities – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Pools – N/A. The District does not have pools. 
 
Entrance Medical Exam – N/A.  The District has three part time employees. If the District 
decides to hire a full-time employee, they will require post-off, preemployment medical 
examinations for full-time employees. 
 
Job Descriptions –  Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Volunteers – N/A. The District does not have any volunteers.  
 
Life Safety – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 

Page 116 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

 
Tuolumne  Park and Recreation District – August 8, 2019 
 
Tuolumne received a Very Good evaluation.   
 
Safety Committee – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 
 
Inspection Program – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 
 
Screening and Review – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
ADA Implementation – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 
 
Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP) –   N/A. The District has less than ten 
employees and are not required to have an IIPP at this time. The District does have a 
system for identifying, evaluating, and correcting workplace hazards and unsafe 
conditions. 
 
Waiver and Release – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Facility Use Agreement – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Parks and Facilities – Very Good - no recommendations at this time.  
 
Pools – N/A. The District does not have any pools. 
 
Entrance Medical Exam – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 
 
Job Descriptions – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Volunteers – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Life Safety – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 
 
Mendocino Coast Recreation and Park District – August 12, 2019 
 
Mendocino Coast received a Very Good evaluation.   
 

Page 117 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

Safety Committee – Good –  The District Safety Committee did not have a Safety 
Meeting the first quarter of 2019 but did have a meeting in June 2019 and will 
continue to meet at least quarterly with minutes of the meetings being sent to 
CAPRI within 30 days from the date of the meeting.  Membership within the 
Committee is representative of the District’s operations.  The Committee does a 
very good job in discussing a wide range of topics, including safety and training 
issues.  Facility inspection reports are reviewed by the Committee on a regular 
basis.  The Committee conducts a post-loss analysis of patron and employee 
accidents.  The minutes reflect, in detail, discussions of the agenda items. 
 
 
Inspection Program – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 
 
Screening and Review – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
ADA Implementation – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 
 
Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP) – Very Good – no recommendations at this 
time. 
 
Waiver and Release – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Facility Use Agreement – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Parks and Facilities – Very Good - no recommendations at this time.  
 
Pools – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 
 
Entrance Medical Exam – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Job Descriptions – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Volunteers – The district currently does not have any volunteers. 
 
Life Safety – Very Good – No recommendations at this time. 
 
Bear River Recreation and Park District – August 15, 2019 
 
Bear River received a Good evaluation.   

Page 118 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

 
Safety Committee – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 
 
Inspection Program – Very Good – no recommendations at this time.  
 
Screening and Review – Needs Improvement.  The District complies with PRC 5164 in that 
they require all employees and volunteers with direct control or supervision of children to 
undergo a fingerprint background check.  The District maintains a record of the 
employees who have been fingerprinted and has a system in place to verify that a 
background check was completed.  The District will obtain current MVRs along with proof 
of insurance for the employees that drive their own vehicle for District business. The 
District does not own any vehicles.  The District will establish written policies for dealing 
with employees whose driving records become unacceptable.  The District will comply 
with SB1343 by signing up with Target Solutions and have their supervisor and employees 
complete the sexual harassment training. 
 
ADA Implementation – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 
 
Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP) – N/A: The District has three (3) part time 
employees and is exempt from the requirement of having an IIPP. The General Manager 
does have a system for identifying, evaluating, and correcting workplace hazards and 
unsafe conditions.  The District will sign up with Target Solutions to help with active 
training for employee compliance with safe and healthy work practices.  The District has 
a policy in place for reporting hazards without fear of reprisal.    
 
Waiver and Release – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Facility Use Agreement – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Parks and Facilities – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Pools – N/A. The District does not have pools. 
 
Entrance Medical Exam – Very Good.  The District does not have any full-time employees. 
If the District decides to hire a full-time employee, they will require a post-offer, 
preemployment medical examination for full-time employees.  Candidates for a position 
are in-formed that the offer of employment is conditional upon completion of a 
satisfactory medical exam.  The District does not send a candidate for the medical exam 
until all other background checks have been completed.  The District maintains the 

Page 119 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

medical records in a secure location separate from the employees’ personnel files. 
 
Job Descriptions – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Volunteers – N/A. The District does not have any volunteers.  
 
Life Safety – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 
 
Ladera Recreation District – August 20, 2019 
 
Ladera received a Very Good evaluation.   
 
Safety Committee – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 
 
Inspection Program – Very Good – no recommendations at this time.  
 
Screening and Review – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
ADA Implementation – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 
 
Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP) – Very Good – no recommendations at this 
time. 
 
Waiver and Release – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Facility Use Agreement – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Parks and Facilities – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Pools – Very Good – no recommendations at this time 
 
Entrance Medical Exam – Very Good.  The District does not have any full-time employees. 
If the District decides to hire a full-time employee, they will require a post-offer, 
preemployment medical examination for full-time employees.  Candidates for a position 
are in-formed that the offer of employment is conditional upon completion of a 
satisfactory medical exam.  The District does not send a candidate for the medical exam 
until all other background checks have been completed.  The District maintains the 
medical records in a secure location separate from the employees’ personnel files. 
 

Page 120 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

Job Descriptions – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Volunteers – N/A. The District does not have any volunteers.  
 
Life Safety – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 
 
La Selva Beach Recreation District – September 3, 2019 
 
La Selva Beach received a Very Good evaluation.   
 
Safety Committee – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 
 
Inspection Program – Very Good – no recommendations at this time.  
 
Screening and Review – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
ADA Implementation – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 
 
Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP) – Very Good – no recommendations at this 
time. 
 
Waiver and Release – Very Good - At the time of the visit, the District did not have any 
District sponsored programs.  However, should they develop their own programs and 
activities, they have participant waiver and release forms that use CAPRI-approved 
language and designed to accurately describe the name of the activity and identify the 
time frame of the activity.  These forms will be used for all activities where registration is 
required.   
 
Facility Use Agreement – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Parks and Facilities – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 
 
Pools – N/A. The District does not have pools. 
 
Entrance Medical Exam – N/A.  The District has three part time employees. If the District 
decides to hire a full-time employee, they will require post-off, preemployment medical 
examinations for full-time employees. 
 
Job Descriptions – Very Good - no recommendations at this time. 

Page 121 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

 
Volunteers – N/A. The District does not have any volunteers.  
 
Life Safety – Very Good – no recommendations at this time. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 
None. 

 

Page 122 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

       Agenda Item 10.2 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS 
 
SUBJECT: CAPRI Office Update 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Staff has been in discussions with commercial real estate agents concerning the future of 
CAPRI’s office. Discussions have included a potential sale of the office, potential purchase 
or rental of new office space, as well as revisiting the concept of utilizing the neighboring 
unit as a rental following a minor renovation.  Staff will provide a current update as to the 
status at the Board Meeting. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 
None. 

 

Page 123 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

       Agenda Item 10.3 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS 
 
SUBJECT: ADA Compliance Assessment Program Update 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Per the Board’s direction, Staff has moved forward with a membership-wide assessment 
of ADA compliance with Disability Access Consultants (“DAC”). DAC will be completing 
initial assessments each District’s current level of ADA compliance in accordance with Title 
II of the ADA, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and Title 24 of the California 
Building Code.  
 
On August 27, 2019, Staff announced the introduction of the program via email. On 
August 30, select Districts also received an announcement flyer and registration form via 
U.S. mail. 
 
As of the date of this report, we have received registration forms from twenty-one (21) 
Districts. Several more Districts have indicated they have recently completed ADA 
assessments on their own accord.  We are very pleased with the response so far and look 
forward to updating the Board with the results at upcoming meetings.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 
None. 

 

Page 124 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

       Agenda Item 10.4 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS 
 
SUBJECT: Nurse Triage Program Update 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Introduction of the Nurse Triage program through Sedgwick (York) is imminent.  Staff is 
awaiting final authorization from Sedgwick that they are ready for CAPRI members to get 
started.  As of the date of this writing, Sedgwick is estimating a few more weeks before 
the program comes online. 
 
As part of the rollout of this new tool, Staff has prepared the attached informational flyer 
and has tentatively scheduled out several regional trainings with Sedgwick staff.  Staff 
hopes to return in November with further updates on the introduction of this new 
resource for members in the CAPRI Workers’ Comp program. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 
Draft Informational Flyer. 

 

Page 125 of 157



 

TELEPHONIC 
NURSE TRIAGE 

24/7 CARE 
• 

365 DAYS/YEAR 

 
Making Workers’ Comp less painful…. 

CAPRI is excited to announce the introduction 
of its new Telephonic Nurse Triage service! 
 
With the launch of this new program, your District staff 
will now get immediate access to Registered Nurses 
that specialize in workplace injuries.   
 
With medical care just a phone call away, Nurse Triage 
will be able to identify the appropriate level of care 
needed for the injured worker and then facilitate 
referrals to the appropriate provider location all in a 
matter of minutes. 
 
CAPRI’s Telephonic Nurse Triage will assist by: 
 

• Evaluating the Urgency of Situation 
 

• Coordinating Medical Care for the employee 
 

• Distributing Reports both to and from the Provider 
 

 

 

 
 

Questions? 
 

Visit the CAPRI website at 
 

capri-jpa.org 
 

or contact: 
 

Matthew Duarte  
CAPRI 

916-722-5550 
 

Dori Zumwalt  
York Risk Services 

916-960-1017 
 

 

In case of a workplace injury, call: 

1-855-921-9517 
Available 24 hours a day 

Page 126 of 157

https://www.capri-jpa.org/


 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

       Agenda Item 10.5 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS 
 
SUBJECT: MPN Program Update 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
At the March meeting of the CAPRI Board of Directors, the Board moved to mandate 
participation in the CAPRI MPN program.  Since that time, Staff has encouraged members 
to sign up and participation has increased nearly 50%.  Staff is in the process of securing 
compliance from the remaining holdout.  Staff anticipates 100% participation from non-
exempted Districts any day; thereby negating the need for the issuance of any penalty as 
was previously discussed. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 
None. 

 

Page 127 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

       Agenda Item 10.6 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS 
 
SUBJECT: Member Withdrawal Update 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
As the Board may recall, Auburn Area Recreation & Park District (“ARD”) recently 
requested permission to withdraw from the WC program effective November 1, 2019.  The 
Board approved the withdrawal at the July 24, 2019 Board Meeting.  Staff has worked with 
ARD and agreed upon a fair and reasonable figure representing the District’s participation 
in this year’s program which includes a pro rata share of their premium for four months 
of membership as well as the overhead associated with their estimated payroll for the 
entire FY19-20.  ARD has issued payment for these costs and their withdrawal is currently 
being processed. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 
None. 

 

Page 128 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

       Agenda Item 10.7 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS 
 
SUBJECT: CAPRI Member Trainings Update 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
CAPRI is taking its show on the road!  CAPRI Staff is in the final planning stages of at least 
four in-person regional trainings to be conducted over the course of the next six months. 
The half-day trainings will consist of presentations geared toward District administrative 
staff who handle Workers’ Compensation, Liability claims, Property claims, and more.  Staff 
has also reached out to potential guest speakers and looks forward to sharing more in 
the upcoming weeks.  The tentative schedule is as follows: 
 
October 28: Sacramento 
November 21: Southern California (Inland Empire) 
December 9: Southern California (L.A. region) 
February 24: Bay Area 
 
Stay tuned for further announcements! 
 
Additionally, Staff recently conducted a webinar titled, “The Benefits of a Strong Safety 
Committee.” CAPRI Safety Analyst, Kirk Andre, led the lesson and received a lot of positive 
feedback from the members.  Overall, there were twenty-two districts that attended the 
live broadcast, while another six districts watched the video recording bringing the total 
to twenty-eight Districts.  All told, there were forty-five attendees for the webinar.  CAPRI 
is planning a follow webinar supplementing the regional trainings to be conducted later 
this year. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 
None. 

Page 129 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

       Agenda Item 10.8 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS 
 
SUBJECT: CAPRI Ratings Questionnaire Refresh Update 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Following the most recent renewal period, Staff has identified a pressing need to review 
the member Ratings Questionnaire process.  Executive Director Duarte and CAPRI’s 
Administrative Analyst, Bebe Pearson, have had multiple conversations with staff at Alliant 
Insurance Services in an effort to identify areas where the process can be streamlined to 
make it easier for members to report the most accurate information. 
 
To that end, Staff is currently exploring the feasibility of online property schedules made 
available through Alliant Connect.  At the meeting, Staff will present a few representative 
screenshots demonstrating the potential capabilities of such a system.  Staff is continuing 
to explore its options and further information will be provided to the Board as this effort 
progresses. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 
None. 

 

Page 130 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

       Agenda Item 10.9 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS 
 
SUBJECT: CAPRI Website Refresh Update 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Although the Board recently authorized Staff to transition the CAPRI website to 
Streamline, there remains a need to further update and improve website functionality in 
order to best serve the membership.  Staff continues to work diligently toward identifying 
the appropriate structure and content that meets the needs of our Districts.  At the Board 
Meeting, Staff will provide a brief summary of some of the changes made since the switch 
to Streamline. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 
None. 

 

Page 131 of 157



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

September 18, 2019 
 

       Agenda Item 10.10 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS 
 
SUBJECT: News of Note 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Staff regularly collects recent articles, academic papers, District reports, etc. that relate to 
the business of CAPRI and that may be of interest to the Board and/or the membership. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• “Review and Discussion on the Park District’s Use of Rodenticides” – Rancho Simi 
Recreation & Park District Staff Report; July 18, 2019 

•  “California wildfire insurance is in crisis.  And the real estate market is suffering” – 
Sacramento Bee; August 2, 2019 

• “Visitors to urban greenspace have higher sentiment and lower negativity on 
Twitter” People and Nature Journal – British Ecological Society ; July 11, 2019 

• “Conejo Recreation and Park District latest public entity to sue Edison over Woolsey 
Fire” – Ventura County Star; September 6, 2019 

 

Page 132 of 157



8/21/2019 California wildfire insurance is in crisis. And the real estate market is suffering

https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/industrynews/realestate/9860977-181/california-wildfire-insurance-business 1/5

     

Order Article Reprint

From the ashes

Read more about the recovery from the
October 2017 wild�res:
nbbj.news/recovery

        

     

California wild�re insurance is in crisis. And the real estate market is
suffering

DALE KASLER AND RYAN SABALOW
THE SACRAMENTO BEE | August 2, 2019

Vallejo residents Theresa and Daniel Ochs found the perfect place to spend their retirement years: a three-bedroom

home on two acres in Garden Valley, in verdant rolling hills a few miles from the Eldorado National Forest.

“You should go see it,” Theresa Ochs said. “It’s got craftsmanship in there. The woodwork is amazing. It’s got a nice

chef’s kitchen. I could just see myself waking up in this house.”

The couple made an o�er — and then encountered a nasty surprise. One insurance company after another refused to

sell them a homeowners’ policy because of the wild�re risks in El Dorado County. The Ochses reluctantly withdrew their o�er last week.

California’s wild�res have found yet another way of doing serious harm to rural California — by hammering its housing market.

The refusal of insurance companies to cover homes in �re-prone areas is prompting home buyers to cancel purchases and look elsewhere.

That’s depriving struggling rural areas of one of their most reliable sources of economic oxygen — the steady in�ux of well-o� retirees and other transplants

from Sacramento, the Bay Area and other prosperous areas.

“It’s another . hardship that’s hit because of the wild�re issue,” said economist Je� Michael of the University of the Paci�c. “We tend to see lower incomes in those

areas. People are attracted to them by the housing a�ordability and rising insurance costs put a real dent in that.”

Pounded by two straight years of catastrophic wild�res, insurers are raising rates, abandoning long-standing customers and refusing to write new policies. Many

homeowners are forced to purchase from unregulated “surplus” carriers or the California FAIR Plan, a bare-bones policy that acts as the state’s insurer of last

resort. The resulting coverage can cost up to triple what a traditional carrier would charge. Some desperate homeowners are getting quotes of up to $10,000 a

year.

NBBJ Events Construction Wine Industry Cannabis Real Estate Law Manufacturing Financial Services Columns

Fair�eld's iconic "Glass House" was destroyed in the Atlas �re in October 2017.

Napa supervisors
decide to let voters
decide on cannabis
rules

What it would take to
extend SMART to
Solano County

Napa mayor re�ects
on milestones amid
major challenges

Napa, Sonoma
property values hit
record $136B

Health care center
destroyed in Tubbs
Fire is back in
business

Tough road for Napa
wine industry may
lie ahead

Page 133 of 157

https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/reprint?field261=California%20wildfire%20insurance%20is%20in%20crisis.%20And%20the%20real%20estate%20market%20is%20suffering&field262=August%202%2C%202019&field260=https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/industrynews/realestate/9860977-181/california-wildfire-insurance-business
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/recovery/
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/calendar
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/news/construction
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/news/wine
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/news/cannabis
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/news/realestate
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/news/law
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/news/manufacturing
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/news/banking
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/opinion
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/industrynews/cannabis/9929654-181/napa-county-cannabis-business-ballot?ref=TSM
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/northbay/solanocounty/9898771-181/smart-commuter-transit-transportation-solano?ref=TSM
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/industrynews/realestate/9907688-181/napa-mayor-jill-techel-real-estate-construction?ref=TSM
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/industrynews/realestate/9924515-181/napa-sonoma-business-residential-real-estate?ref=TSM
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/home/9898831-181/santa-rosa-health-care-wildfire-rebuild?ref=TSM
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/northbay/napacounty/9907685-181/napa-wine-business-sales-marketing?ref=TSM


8/21/2019 California wildfire insurance is in crisis. And the real estate market is suffering

https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/industrynews/realestate/9860977-181/california-wildfire-insurance-business 2/5

Realtors said this translates into lost business. Home buyers give up on purchases, or their lenders scuttle the deal because the borrowers no longer qualify for

their loan.

There are no o�cial estimates on how the insurance crisis is killing real estate deals during escrow. But Ken Calhoon, a

real estate broker who lives in the Pilot Hill region of El Dorado County, said as many as 10% of the deals in his area

are falling through “because insurance is either unavailable or the premiums are just too high. Buyers just don’t expect

that kind of cost.”

Bay Area transplants, normally a big segment of the purchasers in the El Dorado foothills, are backing o�.

“They’re choosing not to live there; that’s what’s happening,” Calhoon said. “We’re not seeing the sales activity on the

more rural properties, properties that are in the more �re-prone areas.”

Loan o�cer Toni Ryan, who works in the Meadow Vista area of rural Placer County, has watched three home sales fall

out of escrow in the past two months. She said the rising premiums can unexpectedly add hundreds of dollars to potential buyers’ monthly mortgage payments.

“All of a sudden their payment goes up $200,” Ryan said.

She said home buyers are so discouraged, they’ve stopped looking. Restaurants and others in rural areas “are complaining that they’re not seeing the same

tra�c as they used to,” she said. “You’re not seeing people up here looking for homes.”

RURAL AREAS SUFFERING

California’s housing market has softened somewhat in the past year, and the number of homes sold in June fell 5% from a year ago, according to the California

Association of Realtors.

In many cases, the disruption in the housing market is happening in the parts of California that can least a�ord it. The

economic recovery in �re-prone counties has lagged behind the rest of the state. While statewide incomes grew 42%

from 2009 to 2017 — not adjusting for in�ation — they increased just 34% in Shasta County, 31% in Amador County

and 37% in Nevada County, according to the U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis.

Staci Heaton, senior regulatory a�airs advocate with the Rural County Representatives of California, a lobbying

organization, said much of rural California has never fully recovered from the collapse of the timber industry in the

1990s.

Tourism, which helped o�set the losses in the forestry business, has been on the decline.

And now skyrocketing insurance rates are adding another challenge.

Same destinations.
More perks.
Book through United.com.

©
 2

01
9 

U
ni

te
d 

Ai
rli

ne
s,

 In
c.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

Book now

1

Here are this year's Best Places to Work
in the North Bay

2

Tough road for Napa wine industry may
lie ahead

3

Napa supervisors decide to let voters
decide on cannabis rules

4

What it would take to extend SMART to
Solano County

5

Napa mayor re�ects on milestones amid
major challenges

6

Napa, Sonoma property values hit record
$136B

7

Retailers face hard choices after
California recycling center closures

8

'Homes change lives': First 'wild�re
cottages' dedicated in Santa Rosa

MOST POPULAR

Page 134 of 157

https://adclick.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjsuYpTej0zzT8wUcPz1lgSWAM6akhC9weGRuSKdpCbIwZHYGqonplyWQGxfNO44_prEvUfr8i0l2uRdmlltGejW25EExcFhtaoUeh1eeFKJwiHTkOmWIan9Fh64awYp5_ZzqMMg2350GkLnYaU50gFiUM6m4gx-_lCl5PddEkTFCEprZoa5ED8ci4RxJCNEWJHR-6od3oJjQACOWbkboCuSISYgrU-f6EUqbpo24zbcfFoedWIPgtVq2dexTO1_T_aZTEXvUEDJ3SPid0-aJsV1Pk0c_5MHPiPbHkX_WarDSQnbGEb4mu1hzrKIjGtB0RspFTCwrRG3vl0KbNmnM6dMsH-GyEtYNtwP3T8fFMdmMc-MKaCpXu2waRlDHhee8zGIGbZ6k5Qs3tDOQNnBmhwZd3Tnb2U-RBzoKxM7bmfgyIJ5ACMmZiNIxC1i4FReGETcIDj8yZhyYqYzp-B5yWoUJDHZxDeV-bgHJdwGTWmhn7KPKgyNnp6gemSQ8Nle6EKsOVhLMzmo4V2XcBaqE3_FgqID3aqs64vWO_BwW03nfBm8SszFC6SL_dxnUzdYW5RPDUY2lI9sOwQp2WpTjscd3uIbi2L_5vMq7gKeMRngZECy3bahAtGBjEzQ_Agd1bD9hkh6tZjMo_VrxDbfEzxxBTKU--qvbIbqxTzbzgKWmkQxQy9byolHU70byPVq7idJKOpDS1jxxtVac1U4RWeUvk-Y8dZWjDTJg1ihr-RfoKc_8vXEhvDNLst_2PRNcgvMAgJ-41U09BnXmJScQRzb1fMGOLDr6XCHW-9hFvCWa7ZemZEpWL1X4OK7zmn_7xQctPKQcWtgNUnW3IIlCQYC_rKviCn-rMq5LaZCtjAFYfelSYgFA429ADY_00rDOA9IKqXy_z4OThcT7VnYSSm24rJkg4W6heDlD4qQvEHcf4ZdWbrN6VblICjR5CzydTqoMSVhbxCT4zy1HRnOFi9J9FyMBkxX2FCTVQ9o8gMiHJJJetDBfCCOuzJrvIauawvMHt2KJ2PSDb8daXuye8tqthv5HhQd8H5-XcxR3iOn8pVqR7UCgu4TFcqdGh-XKtFsbbwMyi9pNdxjIDfr9__LMbfgt1WgCU2Q4txBtiiJSm5ub6s5k-bKZqQ&sai=AMfl-YSBFrT_kd1eiDEEpsAXwlQIDkkPv6rBm5NyHJ6jRwghO5QAitmGZ6yP2VRDe1W5hrMxoExmUgGBRgP8a928LiSP0Bu3e9cWzVKuc3-NkimDcvuS8Trhv_P5987CHb7efA8CwmDS2rpuOdDfci-Rjj-BeAf4W6blD91BU9rtvNcMKdcb8jz1aJen5smodT3i6vB8ArjQ8aXlpr_KcVDHfBGGH7xmlltuTrmppm-h_sujyAJxJWZzwKCuizunT3otO8WzuDQEs2R35nInH8VsvAF5zCUiLVG7YEuDvBNbcAomtUO6xX8WkJrY6Gebs1K302Do11T1r4PyU1v3aC33WwHxejcHJFWE4kgsjIu6uqsKlu78TlLr&sig=Cg0ArKJSzK0MonTqtNp8&urlfix=1&adurl=https://www.hertz.com/rentacar/reservation/%3Futm_source%3Ddbm%26utm_medium%3Ddisplay%26utm_campaign%3Dhertz_q3dv360_2019%26utm_term%3D249308465%26utm_content%3Dnooffer-branded_bestfleetultimatechoice-bestfleet_booknow_static_300x250%26utm_krxconf%3Ds52tr8dd1%26c3%3DN410601.1972103DOUBLECLICKBIDMAN-249308465%26c3creative%3D117920682%26c3adid%3D445944255%26c3size%3D300x250%26dclid%3D%25edclid!
https://adclick.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjsuQFH84MNimJZAm5DDIYhEaitc-erx-lQQ9wlXlsYfmiip8xMs1hi8g0worbtt6Niq4y3thkYZTrvm3WqqeQETX5hSoT2eYmMMoBtenjpk3XXJki-kRI--kAFVZLqQ1Dvy17z7xLfnfxOqaGPE3foKzHBjjG69sNRkRh4K4S0O-Sxv2j36XAPFw-WmHxAQJ43DWOu87WdVe7E078y5ZZlrNMAlm8t3Dz_GKdZlbEGPn2sNncY_ovlCMP8wkQOh8TZMPeYDO1U20j-uuSP_ng8ObgBCakBvLXAaxJR3uH8VqWJzLe5sJLLUWsUTj9piCH1q14dKSO97I14eElWgtAf9kAX9QatSM0jsW6DGIcbtXK0CwGZxcTHDEmF7W6ZrDKNQezzybcuAUpl3F6cX2lwzAsOAPaOUFGf_3VAzJYM5AA2tko4aWnFBkZx9ssoORj6UuV1wyeTdaCh1iwdIkzzlXmfy5dDs6swr9OIYJCG3CV9aw4x5EqtLKp8cwe6VUpysZzRXHK_jWXVxBfsmwwo31S3CJSfKYBEykgOlit2MEIe711Z_4-qmc4JWM-GjZY9fQXF-KS-mJC8QAvXLEwKp39qF31eR5FcHpQUMVFWRx6DP0PvhIkTb3Jmm4vitF0x-_3S1BfXLPM0rE20TYbfFJkDwHxcATHqKU2KYCzuA-G_tucfbv7GiJ90nFZlVqI_8glUfPV1JhOQc9tSzaSQWrLD1CQ9fuJqWVZ57Jqs9QxlGRzy3xZLbwJK8G5WTCNEXHw1f0VhQJ7pbHfdvQiAA5rMIaTIXqz73sIGGIupF2Z2os0r1LoWwIOCQp7JzJFlKmQ7fwTtcuDSSyemlhIPeJEuwNY8nObpQQ7PdC4qu8twprLVWZ4_1vcx0kSUwzvTVYwdETgEqBCzicvuZGGJRU7DTZ2t7EOasTEk1-msB77tbgRSkeTMc_HncRvqFBabVXjzHs4qgbuBKL2fZwuVYEar6qEE6i1C8F7SywReT76NTv9isjJ_Gwv2YylR8VJuixya9OhW2tQeMsBPaOs293pjVrByB82ntFotbjTkKy2NuLAgB51pKUf0a_i8NLjJdvlLv7EBknwO1xGdMYEgQyiW12yOvA5Wg48DZYHSbSD0DEVf0RkYhpkqhj&sai=AMfl-YSXGaRaE1GkvgI3P72FPa6S4IBVN1sD64CyXoFE1ipmWuKoHtKnH3d9GmxdYLZ-Ph8i2LvWvDgGnBjeTGhMJjtr139lV8U-yjj5mTyY8XfJzKWRGywmPGw5Jp9YCnJPbtBUNBxqe-nKw9_4h0gls44mGyl9Dzj64jvAd03a5XmrMWRp8A2Q0Bok01KCuREw9sGDP8GjOcw0SDaYoGcrhA2BNNxL2fPdMTpSM-pgvfoZvYK5aQ9RblXT5LdM8_ZdslNb6LcM8XytZFbMSS2HEyW2HXywPV24yVXBSRgl_l6n3WTzbQKz71Gq4qyc6lam9KD92DExn0paBkWl1zMeoCtGq-fxOWO-VCuJ2Nio4zO9QFgkqvnX&sig=Cg0ArKJSzMYR-oT_11sL&urlfix=1&adurl=https://www.hertz.com/rentacar/reservation/%3Futm_source%3Ddbm%26utm_medium%3Ddisplay%26utm_campaign%3Dhertz_q3dv360_2019%26utm_term%3D249308465%26utm_content%3Dnooffer-branded_bestfleetultimatechoice-bestfleet_booknow_static_300x250%26utm_krxconf%3Ds52tr8dd1%26c3%3DN410601.1972103DOUBLECLICKBIDMAN-249308465%26c3creative%3D117920682%26c3adid%3D445944255%26c3size%3D300x250%26dclid%3D%25edclid!
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/events/9895871-181/north-bay-best-places-to-work?ref=moststory
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/northbay/napacounty/9907685-181/napa-wine-business-sales-marketing?ref=moststory
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/industrynews/cannabis/9929654-181/napa-county-cannabis-business-ballot?ref=moststory
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/northbay/solanocounty/9898771-181/smart-commuter-transit-transportation-solano?ref=moststory
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/industrynews/realestate/9907688-181/napa-mayor-jill-techel-real-estate-construction?ref=moststory
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/industrynews/realestate/9924515-181/napa-sonoma-business-residential-real-estate?ref=moststory
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/northbay/sonomacounty/9906981-181/sonoma-recycling-manufacturing-business?ref=moststory
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/industrynews/construction/9911833-181/sonoma-housing-construction-wildfires?ref=moststory


8/21/2019 California wildfire insurance is in crisis. And the real estate market is suffering

https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/industrynews/realestate/9860977-181/california-wildfire-insurance-business 3/5

“We’re already struggling to keep our communities and our counties solvent and a�oat and �nd industry and jobs,” she said. “We see this as an additional

stressor that just compounds everything else.”

STRUGGLE FOR NEW BUSINESSES

Andy Lucas has seen the problem �rst hand. As head of the Lake County Economic Development Corp., he’s struggled

to lure businesses and residents to a county where population is stagnant and 20% of its residents live in poverty.

“With what we’re seeing with insurance premiums, that is an absolute barrier to attracting residents and economic

development,” Lucas said. “If a developer or business owner were looking to come into Lake County, they’d have to

look at the insurance cost…. It’s certainly a hindrance.”

The regions such as Lake County that are struggling with the insurance crisis tend to be inside the boundaries of what

California �re o�cials have designated as “very high �re hazard severity zones” — the places most vulnerable to

devastating wild�res.

A McClatchy investigation earlier this year found that more than 350,000 Californians live in towns and cities that exist

almost entirely within those zones.

DESIGNATIONS PROVE PREDICTIVE

The investigation also found that Cal Fire’s designations have proven eerily predictive about of the state’s most

destructive wild�res in recent years.

The Camp Fire in Paradise, the worst in state history, was almost entirely inside such a boundary. Malibu, where the

Woolsey Fire burned more than 400 homes last year, also falls within very high hazard zones. The small Lake County

town of Cobb, much of which was destroyed by the Valley Fire in 2015, was in one of these zones.

The county has burned and burned again in recent years, with hundreds of thousands of acres scorched. About 2,000

homes have been destroyed by �re since 2015. Not surprisingly, real estate agents have learned to make sure buyers

line up their insurance coverage at the front end of any deal.

“It used to be you’d wait until the last minute to get their insurance,” said Christine Scarioni, a Coldwell Banker agent in

Lake County.

RELATED STORIES

Sponsored Content on North Bay Business Journal

Game, Set, Match. Acing Digital Innovation In Tennis. [See What’s
Possible] 
By Deloitte

USTA upped its net play with a complete overhaul of its digital playbook.

Fire survivors race rebuilding
clock set by home insurers

Insurers dropped nearly 350,000
California homeowners with
wild�re risk

Page 135 of 157

javascript:hideDisqus2016()
https://adclick.g.doubleclick.net/pcs/click?xai=AKAOjssa-EBF9A_XbD3TG34rtL_A3MaLqkZ1y8NvBg16ihBUl9T3goREQN8PK6WLc7drsp7G6kI36o_C8cEgaVqF1yniQ_dsXL1CRKctM-8YHnjotuu1vDh7N90rfTDNubGIaDTJFKPJpQcso5bSMe7JVPR1WAZ-VQjE-D02Mv6gp9lEKGh3y95f9AonZimnLlFF6xH9p-2jSmb3rWwNcTLo5IWIIliOpv3MekNHCD86Fht6PZFRkvXrSTwuwQgUn7hOqjwMdZGJlYDHJ0rZc6AEF92T8VP1geekvsYS8WTmw-cibPQwGYq0VintYJLWTUOMa0Toi4j3y_shxbPBNpFQ8WHJGdimURnAjWH17w5aBORRcCFJF1Czy_zTY9RsH4hISMCIJ_BENWyeV_TPShF8hPg5XilnTCUr8JT5GHAFfpxrOyROC3hNrgt9leQz8egCjGGvHX0UDoKql9knDyJ3xA3HNtn3wgwmkhaVVrCGmWBduRiZJcLTM9u34e_oOrsWb7QekMetnN-NYgTE1sH5MDp_1D7ueArdMe7dZqFMZtEwfpji6DMtt-MCfK4aO_-13WMQiiw7bq9bwCqInw9m-ffS3Mz5igI1Qa3mNc6SkR5lrVodsNJ682GpGKZt3vgoocg1H6C7W_RgsYc7BxddwcL-om-W1_2sHiqBRNW3JVk6LQg_tmNCcIv4QI6dXMnIxc3_-le_QHe7cvremKuQDfbeznf351mYciExvT1bRfQtaMEVElZAesGMihFs4T9N71_pSPFbZqja4_fJvLhzeCQi2KvSFc62wSWDzqi90K_rGOsX84bG4gd2GSVlKPP2_P1eAdQjcmUPIswtF7HDjETfK04oBUPzZ6lYewbkpqmchlnI8ujJygTyeLwch055NmQerpZLIc0DNhqcKL6OzkHXq-ldue6r23SQLN6r6De8Qf7J-qzdqtwwTexYrWjXYur-BQ5Ickk4hB1FeI-VKwtI3e14zAb_opfavFz6qv8xI8D0-bjQJYd0sa85nloKCLLX5Luuk5CXQAy3I-A9P0-34jEBPldRm1BRj3xTGAfJKYyA5UZ1CDPc1WVIf58UgO1YDbPCdXFLjcq2nvXMnVrlBVNuwwW4hNhzGp1kpZB3v-nOlY3ZEUvOQv0kPCuHUTHtdvvdKrCO&sai=AMfl-YSTw4YeHPhxmkqgq9lhXKzP23S_xH3NGIzSmhIlMpJBv85pGoySLIVcw5kp_KOQhmSziYuVZDfFbw4v9dMZ2cKFNkJFrGwdoAFDedqOT2U1YQHbWLxv0rtMbe_1Vbx06xzT4eX0l6iKgm-Cmw_bgN2L1JjbwGVrDGYtoFc22k_8CclbPithJxKNP9RQ6zS3njYg5HMrMIx1gZjfQ1tNq4HEdxE9_uaTlBDvmbqp6bZMf3ivrMKw6FNIts9SHKEHGTeznFp1ECc5TOvw_FzSmaLABRyiCa4sGvKk8xqw2-b7mqI8a9UbLQbewt2WP-IT20Th7bnPC9FOSG142EDRaaGnbllyq9A4ACeNwgpkGC4ur1hVadvL&sig=Cg0ArKJSzGg-2f2GTnjR&urlfix=1&adurl=https://www.hoteltonight.com/%3Futm_source%3DDV360%26utm_campaign%3DBR_US_Desktop_Prospect_DV360_DailyDrop_CustomIntent_300x250%26utm_creative%3DDailyDrop_Packed-CTA_300x250
https://bs.serving-sys.com/serving/adServer.bs?cn=trd&mc=click&pli=28777905&PluID=0&ord=-444249019&pcp=$$[pub_token]$$
https://bs.serving-sys.com/serving/adServer.bs?cn=trd&mc=click&pli=28777905&PluID=0&ord=-444249019&pcp=$$[pub_token]$$
https://bs.serving-sys.com/serving/adServer.bs?cn=trd&mc=click&pli=28777905&PluID=0&ord=-444249019&pcp=$$[pub_token]$$
https://bs.serving-sys.com/serving/adServer.bs?cn=trd&mc=click&pli=28777905&PluID=0&ord=-444249019&pcp=$$[pub_token]$$
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/industrynews/construction/9734376-181/sonoma-wildfire-rebuilding-insurance?ref=related
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/home/9929420-181/california-wildfire-home-insurance?ref=related


8/21/2019 California wildfire insurance is in crisis. And the real estate market is suffering

https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/industrynews/realestate/9860977-181/california-wildfire-insurance-business 4/5

Napa supervisors decide to let voters decide on cannabis rules What it would take to extend SMART to Solano County

Lessons from marketing wine on social media can be applied to legal
marijuana — with caution sArtHead = "Lessons from marketing wine …
1 comment • 20 days ago

Wallace Grommit — Calling CBD "non-hallucinogenic" implies that THC -is-
hallucinogenic. It's not.

Sutter announces $158M expansion to its Santa Rosa hospital sArtHead =
"Sutter announces $158M expansion to its Santa Rosa hospital"
3 comments • a month ago

Chance — nope just looked at the pIcTuReS.

Options to extend Sonoma-Marin commuter trains to Solano could cost
as much as $1B
4 comments • a day ago

John Merritt — SMART built a station in Cloverdale two decades ago. There is still
no firm date when that station will be used. One might easily assume that the station
was built to support a fantasy story to get the first SMART tax passed. SMART has

Fed seeks to allow banks more flexibility in investments sArtHead = "Fed
seeks to allow banks more flexibility in investments"
1 comment • a month ago

Mariana — A career must capable of offering you a salary to fulfil all your hopes and
dreams as well as presents you plenty of family valuable time. In the process of
earning we very often neglect our loved ones. When ever we do not receive what we

ALSO ON NORTH BAY BUSINESS JOURNAL

0 Comments North Bay Business Journal Login1

t Tweet f Share Sort by Best

LOG IN WITH OR SIGN UP WITH DISQUS 

Name

Start the discussion…

?

Be the first to comment.

Subscribe✉ Add Disqus to your siteAdd DisqusAddd Disqus' Privacy PolicyPrivacy PolicyPrivacy🔒

 Recommend

RECENT STORIES

Page 136 of 157

https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/industrynews/cannabis/9929654-181/napa-county-cannabis-business-ballot?ref=recent
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/northbay/solanocounty/9898771-181/smart-commuter-transit-transportation-solano?ref=recent
https://disqus.com/
https://disq.us/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.northbaybusinessjournal.com%2Findustrynews%2Fcannabis%2F9801702-181%2Fdigital-marketing-cannabis-wine&key=D2L5BWYSedWNWAJoLnkjAQ
https://disq.us/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.northbaybusinessjournal.com%2Findustrynews%2Fcannabis%2F9801702-181%2Fdigital-marketing-cannabis-wine&key=D2L5BWYSedWNWAJoLnkjAQ
https://disq.us/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.northbaybusinessjournal.com%2Fnorthbay%2Fsonomacounty%2F9837408-181%2Fsutter-hospital-158m-expansion-sonoma-county&key=w2l4MOGj0wklPF10nVQsGw
https://disq.us/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.northbaybusinessjournal.com%2Fnorthbay%2Fsonomacounty%2F9837408-181%2Fsutter-hospital-158m-expansion-sonoma-county&key=w2l4MOGj0wklPF10nVQsGw
https://disq.us/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.northbaybusinessjournal.com%2Fnorthbay%2Fsolanocounty%2F9898771-181%2Fsmart-commuter-transit-transportation-solano&key=c9_2yz-Rdh5s1X9dAzfqAg
https://disq.us/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.northbaybusinessjournal.com%2Fnorthbay%2Fsolanocounty%2F9898771-181%2Fsmart-commuter-transit-transportation-solano&key=c9_2yz-Rdh5s1X9dAzfqAg
https://disq.us/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.northbaybusinessjournal.com%2Findustrynews%2Fbankingandfinance%2F9792738-181%2Ffederal-reserve-volcker-rule-banking&key=wU4qYKvtpcF9nEeBKCWYfA
https://disq.us/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.northbaybusinessjournal.com%2Findustrynews%2Fbankingandfinance%2F9792738-181%2Ffederal-reserve-volcker-rule-banking&key=wU4qYKvtpcF9nEeBKCWYfA
https://disqus.com/home/forums/northbaybiz/
https://disqus.com/home/inbox/
https://publishers.disqus.com/engage?utm_source=northbaybiz&utm_medium=Disqus-Footer
https://help.disqus.com/customer/portal/articles/466259-privacy-policy
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/industrynews


8/21/2019 California wildfire insurance is in crisis. And the real estate market is suffering

https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/industrynews/realestate/9860977-181/california-wildfire-insurance-business 5/5

Napa mayor re�ects on milestones amid major challenges Napa, Sonoma property values hit record $136B

OUR NETWORK

Page 137 of 157

https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/industrynews/realestate/9907688-181/napa-mayor-jill-techel-real-estate-construction?ref=recent
https://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/industrynews/realestate/9924515-181/napa-sonoma-business-residential-real-estate?ref=recent
https://www.pressdemocrat.com/
https://www.sonomanews.com/
https://www.petaluma360.com/
https://www.sonomamag.com/
https://www.sonomamag.com/biteclub/
https://www.laprensasonoma.com/
https://www.emeraldreport.com/
http://www.spiritedbiz.com/
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?sa=L&ai=CjPOcB2tdXdeWOYrd-QPPoaTgA63cvcBX5ebEiPsH74vft_ADEAEg7-v4a2DJ_taGyKP8GqAB7_WO2wPIAQLgAgCoAwHIAwiqBL8CT9CLQ6M5dl0GPsfMXN92r0b_CqScwdtRhJVgmSc1DA_9-Vh1TNLa4iFux8Le2kStbYXxga_hsZ2rSfdaThR0YfA1RZIkVeuNOlfES1jmv7fsiMd8U_uLZSCI_uN8PYd41rzh2wjXL-2xbglPY6gmNzO1rzOb15y2DIY9vOXWIugGKfbiVk8AvrutlaOvWg-EHA76QWHZDteMAD1PwZMjSs6hhAEv4iNJRqied150rvN6ZgLkCrqqcJBZ7OTR-Tkb6dgHOAqDqJaS-tiCouM5UuMHXPSRV8mA57cUp8F943AgE17qKLzOelXYNafpdd9gYkMm0kUdzPA0NxejsFr9xxbQnzJ1-G_zk7MFF5mch_1fZ4eIw2JeMmia4G6EWlLTG81K3Aw9o10KrgGZLh6pVZT_IOw7fyNjciSTOm-erOAEAZAGAaAGAoAHo8POAYgHAZAHAqgHjs4bqAfVyRuoB8HTG6gHhdQbqAeB1BuoB4LUG6gHhtQbqAeE1BuoB5PYG6gH4NMbqAe6BqgH2csbqAfPzBuoB6a-G6gH89EbqAfs1RvYBwHSCAYIABACGA2xCVqr8PURduiZgAoDigq4AWh0dHBzOi8vYWQuZG91YmxlY2xpY2submV0L2RkbS90cmFja2Nsay9ONzkwMzM5LjMxNjcyODVBRFdPUkRTR0ROL0IyMDcxMjU5MC4yMjk4NTc5NTY7ZGNfdHJrX2FpZD00Mjc5Mjc4MjI7ZGNfdHJrX2NpZD0xMDE3Mjk0Njg7ZGNfbGF0PTtkY19yZGlkPTt0YWdfZm9yX2NoaWxkX2RpcmVjdGVkX3RyZWF0bWVudD07dGZ1YT3YEww&ae=1&num=1&cid=CAMSeQClSFh3NhrVU5UV3W58cKXkFaB3zh6ZdkEtkYP_Yiu0iBTMjmsVVLmXmgckiUpSF_nqTiAF9mYLzgRhr7EMoFiJIKT2ij_5zY7bXc0gTnLcTQNRdJ-lgHWVlB3D5-oz7huyO0oAS1O8FiP-PlKLZpPXlEjMnmiUw88&sig=AOD64_0Ds4omsT3fe6IwWR4Z6aE4Uh8PNA&client=ca-pub-5737588794101836&nx=CLICK_X&ny=CLICK_Y&nb=2&adurl=https://www.tableau.com/asset/data-storytelling-using-visualization-share-human-impact-numbers%3Futm_campaign%3DRetargeting-CORE-ALL-ALL-ALL-ALL%26utm_medium%3DDisplay%26utm_source%3DGoogle%2BDisplay%26utm_campaign_id%3D2017049%26utm_language%3DEN%26utm_country%3DUSCA%26kw%3D%26adgroup%3DWEB-All%2BOther%26adused%3D296562909037%26matchtype%3D%26placement%3Dwww.northbaybusinessjournal.com%26creative%3Dc18viz-redline%26gclsrc%3Daw.ds%26%26gclid%3DCjwKCAjw1_PqBRBIEiwA71rmtdgZtAnHaoMsaIU3NQ71Uoum4jhW22usVtvCs4nggQKYjfkW3qbqDBoCRRwQAvD_BwE
https://adssettings.google.com/whythisad?reasons=AB3afGEAAAHJW1tbW251bGwsWzEsOV0sbnVsbCxudWxsLG51bGwsbnVsbCxudWxsLG51bGwsbnVsbCxudWxsLG51bGwsbnVsbCxudWxsLG51bGwsbnVsbCxudWxsLG51bGwsbnVsbCxudWxsLG51bGwsbnVsbCx0cnVlXSxbbnVsbCxudWxsLFtudWxsLG51bGwsbnVsbCwiaHR0cHM6Ly9kaXNwbGF5YWRzLWZvcm1hdHMuZ29vZ2xldXNlcmNvbnRlbnQuY29tL2Fkcy9wcmV2aWV3L2NvbnRlbnQuanM_Y2xpZW50PXd0YVx1MDAyNm9iZnVzY2F0ZWRDdXN0b21lcklkPTI0MDEwODgzOTVcdTAwMjZjcmVhdGl2ZUlkPTI5NjU2MjkwOTAzN1x1MDAyNnZlcnNpb25JZD0wXHUwMDI2YWRHcm91cENyZWF0aXZlSWQ9MjczNTUzNjM0MTQ5XHUwMDI2aHRtbFBhcmVudElkPXByZXYtMFx1MDAyNmhlaWdodD0yNTBcdTAwMjZ3aWR0aD05NzBcdTAwMjZzaWc9QUNpVkJfdzY3UnJ3N2tGREhaXzFTREdQSXNmV0VNUEpFUSJdXV1dLFsyLDFdXTuIu7OlxxD8NuFPXOzMKtYbpFFgfD7lwotaNJyW6UZQBJvJhRxbX9aLm72TPXhH_Nz50fgV8BqL1KzNE1MRGiG7Wl9D7m-SJKsyoqCWsuXFdeNYQcz8Vvkmfa2NrStz75wGZGAdO79wgrDo_YHOatxXzNVEYOpGmW0j3wg8KQNI0j9Q4gAVlDEPtBtzcdt1ATqgzookZ7-rFYsJ28I8E7-eCT_Bq2wyRFEEjH9fsytvms69c0G2Dp_IxWnoC8r4Br3kt3SFWhhkJNedegEqSDKVrQVRpI9M6xKNQAlWBqIXzB4H1nLNfLZJwjQxvFN97UeqbvYDD6F_bGTuAsPnaj0,zm2rs7vhLZDyzbIXBlwRFw&source=display
https://adssettings.google.com/whythisad?reasons=AB3afGEAAAHJW1tbW251bGwsWzEsOV0sbnVsbCxudWxsLG51bGwsbnVsbCxudWxsLG51bGwsbnVsbCxudWxsLG51bGwsbnVsbCxudWxsLG51bGwsbnVsbCxudWxsLG51bGwsbnVsbCxudWxsLG51bGwsbnVsbCx0cnVlXSxbbnVsbCxudWxsLFtudWxsLG51bGwsbnVsbCwiaHR0cHM6Ly9kaXNwbGF5YWRzLWZvcm1hdHMuZ29vZ2xldXNlcmNvbnRlbnQuY29tL2Fkcy9wcmV2aWV3L2NvbnRlbnQuanM_Y2xpZW50PXd0YVx1MDAyNm9iZnVzY2F0ZWRDdXN0b21lcklkPTI0MDEwODgzOTVcdTAwMjZjcmVhdGl2ZUlkPTI5NjU2MjkwOTAzN1x1MDAyNnZlcnNpb25JZD0wXHUwMDI2YWRHcm91cENyZWF0aXZlSWQ9MjczNTUzNjM0MTQ5XHUwMDI2aHRtbFBhcmVudElkPXByZXYtMFx1MDAyNmhlaWdodD0yNTBcdTAwMjZ3aWR0aD05NzBcdTAwMjZzaWc9QUNpVkJfdzY3UnJ3N2tGREhaXzFTREdQSXNmV0VNUEpFUSJdXV1dLFsyLDFdXTuIu7OlxxD8NuFPXOzMKtYbpFFgfD7lwotaNJyW6UZQBJvJhRxbX9aLm72TPXhH_Nz50fgV8BqL1KzNE1MRGiG7Wl9D7m-SJKsyoqCWsuXFdeNYQcz8Vvkmfa2NrStz75wGZGAdO79wgrDo_YHOatxXzNVEYOpGmW0j3wg8KQNI0j9Q4gAVlDEPtBtzcdt1ATqgzookZ7-rFYsJ28I8E7-eCT_Bq2wyRFEEjH9fsytvms69c0G2Dp_IxWnoC8r4Br3kt3SFWhhkJNedegEqSDKVrQVRpI9M6xKNQAlWBqIXzB4H1nLNfLZJwjQxvFN97UeqbvYDD6F_bGTuAsPnaj0,zm2rs7vhLZDyzbIXBlwRFw&source=display


RANCHO SIMI RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

DATE: July 18,2019 

TO: District Manager 

FROM: Director of Planning and Maintenance 

SUBJECT: Review and Discussion on the Park District's Use ofRodenticides 

At the request of Director Dennert, the following is a summary of the Park District's use of 
rodenticides and possible alternatives for the Board's review and consideration. 

Background and Overview: 

Rodenticides are pesticides commonly used for the control and extermination of various types of 
rodents including, but not limited to, rats, mice, gophers and ground squirrels. Although rodents 
play an important role in nature, they often require control as they can damage crops, violate 
health regulations, transmit disease, and in some cases, cause ecological and/or structural 
damage. 

There are many different active ingredients registered as rodenticides in the United States. Five 
of the rodenticides more commonly used by park and recreation agencies throughout the state are 
summarized as follows. 

Anticoagulants: 

Anticoagulant rodenticides are divided into two different classes. Products containing Warfarin, 
Chlorophacinone, and Diphacinone are considered fust generation anticoagulant rodenticides 
and typically require multiple doses before the poison takes effect. Products containing 
Brodifacoum, Bromodialone, Difenacoum, and Difetialone are considered second generation 
anticoagulant rodenticides and usually take effect after ingestion of a single dose. Both types of 
anticoagulant rodenticides work by effectively blocking the recycling of Vitamin K in the body, 
resulting in the body's inability to produce essential blood clotting factors. While the 
mechanism of all anticoagulant rodenticides is similar, second generation products are much 
more toxic and pose a greater threat to non-targeted wildlife. 

Across the nation, there has been a growing concern with anticoagulant rodenticides and their 
harmful effect on domestic animals (pets) and wildlife through secondary exposure. Secondary 
exposure occurs when pets or wildlife consume dead or dying rodents that have eaten the poison. 
Wild animals such as mountain lions, coyotes, owls, and hawks are vulnerable to the secondary 
exposure of anticoagulant rodenticides. Based on a National Park Service report, 88% of the 

174
Page 138 of 157



wild animals undergoing necropsy have tested positive for some form of anticoagulant 
rodenticide. 

In 2015, the City of Simi Valley adopted a resolution discouraging (but not prohibiting) 
businesses and residents in the City from selling and using anticoagulant rodenticides. Other 
communities in urban wildlife interface areas, including Thousand Oaks, Camarillo, Agoura 
Hills, Calabasas, and Moorpark have passed similar resolutions. 

Metal Phosphides: 

Metal phosphides are highly toxic inorganic compounds and are considered a single-dose fast 
acting rodenticide. They are typically used in agriculture for the control of gophers, ground 
squirrels, and field mice. They can be used in their solid form as an oral pesticide or in a gaseous 
state as a fumigant. In its solid form, metal phosphides are typically used in places where 
rodents have become resistant to anticoagulants. As a fumigant, metal phosphides can only be 
used in confined spaces where the structure can be effectively sealed and/or enclosed, thereby 
containing and concentrating the gas. In agriculture, metal phosphide fumigants are extremely 
effective in the control of burrowing rodents. . 

Used in its solid form, metal phosphides (zinc phosphide) react with the acids in the digestive 
system to generate toxic phosphine gas. As a fumigant, metal phosphides tablets (aluminum, 
calcium, or magnesium phosphide) are generally activated by atmospheric moisture or moisture 
in the ground to generate phosphine gas. Supplemental moisture (water) maybe required in drier 
climates. 

The solid form of metal phosphides (zinc phosphide) baits often contain peanut butter, molasses, 
or other flavorings, making them more dangerous to children, pets, and other non-targeted 
species. In addition, accidental exposure to metal phosphides has occurred through inadvertent 
inhalation of crushed, broken and/or powdery baits. The use of phosphine gas avoids this issue 
and results in a faster, more efficient elimination of the targeted pests. Metal phosphides do not 
accumulate in the tissues of the poisoned animal, so the risk of secondary exposure is very low. 

Bromethalin: 

Bromethalin is a rodenticide that has replaced long-acting anticoagulants in many mouse and rat 
poison products sold to the public. It is a potent neurotoxin, with no anticoagulant activity. It 
stops the cells in the central nervous system from producing energy. The nerve cells eventually 
swell, creating intracranial pressure, paralysis, and death. Bromethalin is considered a single
dose rodenticide with a low risk of secondary exposure. Extra precautions must be taken in the 
placement of any product containing bromethalin around pets. There is no test to diagnose 
bromethalin poisoning in pets, and there are no known antidotes for bromethalin poisoning. 

Since little is known about its toxicity in humans and it is known to be harmful to pets, the Park 
District does not use any products containing bromethalin. 

2 

175
Page 139 of 157



- -----------

Cholecalciferol: 

Cholecalciferol is Vitamin D3. Toxic doses of cholecalciferol lead to too much calcium in the 
blood, causing hypercalcemia. Hypercalcemia affects the central nervous system, muscles, 
cardiovascular system, and kidneys. The rodent's ability to maintain proper calcium levels must 
be overwhelmed before cholecalciferol becomes toxic. Therefore, rodents must eat several doses 
of this rodenticide for it to be effective. 

An interesting fact about cholecalcierol toxicology is that it is synergistic with anticoagulants. 
This means that when the two rodenticides interact with each other in a rodent's body, the 
mixture of anticoagulants and cholecalciferol is more toxic than the sum of the individual effects 
of each drug. Therefore, a cholecalciferol hypercalcemic effect can be achieved by a 
substantially lower concentration of cholecalciferol in the presence of anticoagulants, and vice 
versa, a more pronounced anticoagulant hemorrhagic effect is observed in the presence of 
cholecalciferol. 

Although cholecalciferol was introduced in 1984 with claims that it was less toxic to non
targeted species than to rodents, clinical experience has shown that cholecalciferol poses a 
significant health threat to dog and cats. If diagnosed early, there is an antidote for accidental 
cholecalciferol pet poisoning. 

According to the National Pesticide Information Center, cholecalciferol alone has a low risk of 
secondary exposure to animals. 

Acute Toxins: 

Acute toxins include chemical compounds containing Strychnine and Arsenic. These are not 
typically used for routine pest control measures in parks and recreation due to their potential 
exposure and health risks to children. 

Park District Rodent Control Measures: 

The Park District's use of rodenticides to control rodents is divided into two separate categories 
for building maintenance and grounds maintenance activities. Grounds maintenance pest control 
primarily deals with the management of gophers, ground squirrels, and field mice that borrow 
and live within our parks' turf areas and athletic fields. Currently, staff uses a combination of 
mechanical traps and a metal phosphide fumigant listed under the trade name of "Fumitoxin" to 
control the rodent population. 

Fumitoxin comes in a rounded tablet approximately 16mm in size and weighing approximately 3 
grams. One tablet will release 1 gram of phosphine gas. The number of tablets used for each 
application varies, depending on the application area. The active exposure time for Fumitoxin 
also varies, depending on the ambient ground temperature. Since phosphine gas is somewhat 
odorless, the manufacturers of Fumitoxin have added a contaminant to each tablet to produce a 
pungent garlic odor. 

3 

176
Page 140 of 157



Fumitoxin is used in the field only by Park District grounds maintenance personnel who possess 
Qualified Applicators Certificates (QAC) and/or Qualified Applicators Licenses (QAL) as issued 
by the State of California. Currently, twenty-one (21) Park District staff members hold these 
certifications. 

Special precautions are employed by the Park District for each Fumitoxin application. 
Applications must not be within 100' feet of a building where humans or pets reside; including 
nursing homes, schools, day care facilities, hospitals, or other commercial buildings, and special 
warning signs must be conspicuously placed around the perimeter of the application area. These 
signs are typically placed 24 hours prior to each application and must remain in place for two 
days after each application. 

As used by the Park District, Fumitoxin has a very low risk of accidental exposure to children 
and pets. Each application is placed within the rodent's tunnel and covered with a minimum of 
twelve inches of compacted soil. The twelve inches of compacted soil act as a plug to retain the 
phosphine gas. After administering each application, a staff member remains at the site to 
monitor the area for escaping phosphine gas (garlic odor). If a leak is detected, it is quickly 
plugged to contain the phosphine gas. Through careful monitoring of each Fumitoxin 
application, the Park District has not encountered a medical or pet poisoning incident. 

According to the manufacturer's application manual and MSDS/SDS information, incidental 
(mild) exposure to Fumitoxin may cause ringing in the ear, fatigue, nausea, and pressure in the 
chest, which is relieved by moving the individual or pet to fresh air. Moderate and/or frequent 
exposure to Fumitoxin over a period of days or weeks may cause poisoning. Treatments for 
poisoning are symptomatic and require immediate attention by a medical professional. 

It should be noted that the District only uses Fumitoxin when the infestation is too large to be 
controlled through the use of mechanical traps. 

Rodent control at the Park District's buildings and community centers is done through contract 
services provided by Orkin Pest Control. Rodent control methods include the use of stick traps, 
mechanical traps, and bait boxes. According to Orkin, the rodenticide used in their bait boxes at 
Park District locations contains a product listed under the trade name of "Contrac". 

Contrac comes in a blue-colored rectangular shape cube approximately .5" x .5" x .75" in size. 
The cubes are placed in plastic tamper-proof bait boxes to prevent direct accessibility by children 
and pets. The manufacturer states that the product works well in both dry and wet locations. 
According to the MSDS/SDS information sheet, Contrac contains the active ingredient 
bromadiolone, which is classified as a single-dose, anticoagulant rodenticide. According to the 
National Pesticide Information Center, products containing bromadiolone have a moderate risk 
of secondary exposure to birds and mammals. The antidote for accidental pet ingestion is 
Vitamin K, which is readily available. 

Currently, bait boxes are in use in Simi Valley at the Rancho Santa Susana Community Center, 
the Berylwood and Houghton Park Recreation Buildings, Strathearn Historical Park, the Knolls 
Fire Station, the Santa Susana Railroad Depot, Activity Center, and at before and after school 

4 

177
Page 141 of 157



club locations. In Oak Park, bait boxes have been placed at the Oak Park Community Center and 
the Mae Boyar Recreation Building. 

In addition to services provided by Orkin Pest Control, the Park District does retain the services 
of Cragoe Pest Control for insect and emergency pest control on an as-needed basis. 

Safety and Public Health Considerations: 

Gophers and ground squirrels are two of the most destructive rodents to inhabit our parks. More 
often than not their damage goes unnoticed until the tell-tale sign of their access mound appears. 
These access mounds (aka gopher holes) and their shallow, subsurface tunnels are one of the 
leading causes of twisted and broken ankles in park site turf areas and athletic field venues. 

According to research uncovered by staff, locally, administrators for the Simi Valley Unified 
School District have noticed that gopher infestation was so bad that it rendered their athletic 
fields unsafe for sporting activities. While officials debated whether games should continue on 
the infested fields, the gophers continued their rampage by gnawing holes in the wires that 
powered each field's irrigation system. This scenario was encountered by the Park District's 
maintenance staff as part of its routine maintenance of Hillside Middle School's athletic fields. 

Unlike the School District, which is bound by the Health School Act for Integrated Pest 
Management, the Park District can deploy the use of rodenticides (Fumitoxin) to quickly control 
any gopher and ground squirrel infestation. 

Even though the Park District tries to discourage rodent activity by removing trash and cleaning 
its facilities where food and snacks are consumed (kitchens, food storage and picnic areas) on a 
daily basis, rodent activity is still apparent. The discovery of rodent droppings is the first tell
tale sign that a problem exists. 

Rodent droppings and urine can carry diseases and viruses that can become airborne and create 
serious health-related issues. They are known to carry dysentery, salmonella, and gastroenteritis. 
In more recent news, rodents have been determined to be the cause of a small outbreak of 
bubonic plaque in Los Angeles. In addition, rodents are known to be carriers of fleas, lice, ticks, 
and other external parasites, which can be brought into buildings and transferred to humans. 

Currently, the Park District maintains Health Department permits for the use and operation of the 
warming kitchens at both Community Centers. These kitchens are subject to the same inspection 
criteria as restaurants and other food service facilities. If rodent droppings are found, the county 
could shut down the operation of our facility(s) until a complete and through inspection and 
sterilization of the facility is performed. This action may necessitate cancellation of revenue
producing classes, activities, and rentals. 

Since our buildings are used on a daily basis by afterschool programs and educational classes 
where food is often served, the Park District must take a proactive approach to secure the safety 
and wellbeing of our patrons. This includes the use of some form of rodenticide to control the 

5 

178
Page 142 of 157



rodent population. For the past thirty years, the Park District has only received one closure 
notification from the County of Ventura that can be attributed to rodent activity. 

Even though anticoagulant rodenticides have a moderate to very high risk of secondary exposure, 
they are proclaimed to be the safest to use around children and pets. If diagnosed early, an 
accidental ingestion of anticoagulant rodenticides by pets can be overcome by administering 
VitaminK. 

Recommendations and Alternatives: 

Since Fumitoxin is not an anticoagulant rodenticide and has a very low risk of secondary 
exposure, staff is recommending that the Board allow the continued use of Fumitoxin at park 
sites in Simi Valley for rodent control as part of the Park District's routine maintenance 
activities. 

If it is the Board's desire to restrict or eliminate the use of anticoagulant rodenticides throughout 
the Park District, staff recommends using a product containing cholecalciferol as a replacement. 
Cholecalciferol alone has a low risk of secondary exposure but has been determined to pose a 
higher risk to dogs and cats. Even with this higher risk, there is a known antidote for accidental 
cholecalciferol pet poisoning. In addition, since cholecalciferol works synergistically with 
anticoagulants, any rodents already possessing anticoagulants in their body may be overcome by 
a low dose of cholecalciferol. It should be noted that no information could be found in regards to 
the synergistic effect of cholecalciferol and anticoagulants and their relationship to secondary 
exposure. 

The Board may also elect to restrict or eliminate the use of all rodenticides throughout the Park 
District, rendering all rodent control activities to primarily some sort of mechanical devices 
(traps). These devices require daily monitoring and their increased use by the Park District may 
pose a significant safety hazard to children or pets who accidently encounter them. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Since the use of Fumitoxin is on an as-needed basis and is deployed through Park District staff, 
the annual materials cost to the Park District for Fumitoxin is estimated at $650. 

Currently, the Park District's average monthly contract cost through Orkin Pest Control for our 
bait boxes throughout the Park District containing the product "Contrac" averages about $1,100 
per month ($13,200 annually). As part ofthis service, Orkin also performs routine monitoring of 
the bait traps on a bi-monthly basis and checks for rodent droppings and areas of infiltration and 
infestation. 

If the Board elects to restrict or eliminate the use of anticoagulant rodenticides (Contrac) and 
authorizes staff to use a product containing cholecalciferol, there will be a one-time switch-over 
charge and a monthly service cost increase of approximately 20% ($220/month or 
$2,640/annually). This increase is primarily due to the additional service calls required to 
monitor and maintain products containing cholecalciferol. 

6 

179
Page 143 of 157



If it is the Board's desire to eliminate all use of rodenticides at our buildings and community 
centers and/or district-wide, it is likely the District will need to hire additional staff to deploy and 
monitor the placement of mechanical traps on a daily basis. 

As an alternative to hiring staff, the District could also consider contracting for the additional 
daily monitoring. The annual contract service fee for this work is estimated at $36,000. 

This matter was reviewed with the Oak Park Committee on July 11,2019; staff will provide a 
verbal report outlining the comments and suggestions made by the Committee. 

Board Action Requested: 

The following alternatives are available to the Board of Directors: 

1. Allow for the continued use of rodenticides by the Park District's maintenance staff as 
outlined in this report; 

2. Allow for the continued use of the non-anticoagulant rodenticide Fumitoxin for grounds 
maintenance pest control and direct staff to substitute products containing cholecalciferol 
in-lieu of anticoagulant rodenticides at Park District buildings and community centers; 

3. Allow for the continued use of the non-anticoagulant rodenticide Fumitoxin for grounds 
maintenance pest control, eliminate the use of all rodenticides at Park District buildings 
and community centers, and authorize the District Manger to increase staff or contract to 
handle the additional workload; 

4. Eliminate the use of rodenticides throughout the Park District and authorize the District 
Manger to increase staff or contract to handle the additional workload; 

5. Request staff to provide additional information on this topic for consideration at a future 
Board meeting, to include obtaining formal quotations for daily monitoring by contract 
services; 

6. Receive and file this report and take no action. 

Wayne Nakaoka 
Director of Planning and Maintenance 

7 

180
Page 144 of 157



People and Nature. 2019;00:1–10.	 		 	 | 	1wileyonlinelibrary.com/journal/pan3

1  | INTRODUC TION

There is a growing interest in understanding the connection be‐
tween mental health and exposure to biodiversity, due to the si‐
multaneous growth of urban areas globally and rising rates of mood 
disorders (Murray et al., 2012; United Nations, 2014). While cities 
provide access to significant economic and social opportunities, re‐
searchers have identified an urban health penalty that arises from 

the pace of life, exposure to environmental stressors and chemicals, 
and disconnect from diverse natural environments in which human 
evolution occurred (Bettencourt, Lobo, Helbing, Kuhnert, & West, 
2007; McDonald, Beatley, & Elmqvist, 2018). Urban greenspace, and 
specifically urban parks, are a policy instrument that can help reduce 
the impacts of ‘nature deficit disorder’ (Louv, 2011).

Studies on the mental benefits of nature exposure have typ‐
ically taken one of two approaches. First, broad studies based 

 

Received:	26	February	2019  |  Accepted:	11	July	2019
DOI: 10.1002/pan3.10045  

R E S E A R C H  A R T I C L E

Visitors to urban greenspace have higher sentiment and lower 
negativity on Twitter

Aaron J. Schwartz1,2,3  |   Peter Sheridan Dodds1,4  |   Jarlath P. M. O'Neil‐Dunne1,3  |   
Christopher M. Danforth1,2,4 |   Taylor H. Ricketts1,3

This	is	an	open	access	article	under	the	terms	of	the	Creative	Commons	Attribution	License,	which	permits	use,	distribution	and	reproduction	in	any	medium,	
provided the original work is properly cited.
©	2019	The	Authors.	People and Nature	published	by	John	Wiley	&	Sons	Ltd	on	behalf	of	British	Ecological	Society

1Gund Institute for Environment, University 
of	Vermont,	Burlington,	VT,	USA
2Vermont Complex Systems 
Center, University of Vermont, Burlington, 
VT,	USA
3Rubenstein School of Environment and 
Natural Resources, University of Vermont, 
Burlington,	VT,	USA
4Department of Mathematics and 
Statistics, University of Vermont, Burlington, 
VT,	USA

Correspondence
Aaron	J.	Schwartz
Email:	Aaron.J.Schwartz@uvm.edu

Funding information
Medina Fund at University; National 
Science	Foundation,	Grant/Award	Number:	
DGE1451866

Handling Editor: Helen Hoyle

Abstract
1. With more people living in cities, we are witnessing a decline in exposure to  
nature.	A	 growing	 body	of	 research	 has	 demonstrated	 an	 association	 between	
nature contact and improved mood.

2. Here, we used Twitter and the Hedonometer, a world analysis tool, to investigate 
how sentiment, or the estimated happiness of the words people write, varied be‐
fore, during, and after visits to San Francisco's urban park system. We found that 
sentiment was substantially higher during park visits and remained elevated for 
several hours following the visit.

3. Leveraging differences in vegetative cover across park types, we explored how 
different types of outdoor public spaces may contribute to subjective well‐being. 
Tweets during visits to Regional Parks, which are greener and have greater veg‐
etative cover, exhibited larger increases in sentiment than tweets during visits to 
Civic	Plazas	and	Squares.

4.	 Finally,	we	analysed	word	frequencies	to	explore	several	mechanisms	theorized	to	
link nature exposure with mental and cognitive benefits. Negation words such as 
‘no’, ‘not’, and ‘don't’ decreased in frequency during visits to urban parks.

5. These results can be used by urban planners and public health officials to better 
target nature contact recommendations for growing urban populations.

K E Y W O R D S

mental health, nature exposure, NDVI, sentiment analysis, twitter, urban greenspace

Page 145 of 157



2  |    People and Nature SCHWARTZ eT Al.

on surveys and geographic data have established an association 
between proximate natural areas and subjective well‐being (van 
den Berg et al., 2016; Hartig, Mitchell, de Vries, & Frumkin, 2014; 
Maas, Verheij, Groenewegen, de Vries, & Spreeuwenberg, 2006; 
Wheeler	 et	 al.,	 2015).	 The	 Normalized	 Difference	 Vegetation	
Index (NDVI), a proxy for vegetation derived from remotely sensed 
data, has been used as a measure of neighbourhood greenness and 
is	associated	with	lower	levels	of	depression	(Fong,	Hart,	&	James,	
2018). High levels of cumulative childhood greenspace exposure 
were associated with lower risk of developing psychiatric disor‐
ders (Engemann et al., 2019). Broad surveys are unable to capture 
acute exposure events to greenspace and biodiversity, making it 
challenging to identify the types of natural areas most effective at 
delivering mental benefits (Bell, Phoenix, Lovell, & Wheeler, 2014). 
Field experiments address this issue by directly exposing partici‐
pants to natural areas. For example, participants walking through 
natural areas showed improved affect and cognition compared to 
those walking through urban environments (Bratman, Daily, Levy, 
& Gross, 2015). In another experiment, individuals who walked in 
areas with greater biodiversity reported higher levels of subjective 
well‐being (Carrus et al., 2015). Several recent experiments have 
examined landscape preferences, landscape structure, and biodi‐
versity across a gradient of park types with larger experimental 
pools	(Fischer	et	al.,	2018;	Hoyle,	Hitchmough,	&	Jorgensen,	2017;	
Hoyle,	 Jorgensen,	 &	 Hitchmough,	 2019;	 Martens,	 Gutscher,	 &	
Bauer, 2011; Qiu, Lindberg, & Nielsen, 2013). Here, we combined 
the strengths of these approaches by following a large group of 
people making known visits to a range of park types.

Recently, mobile phone applications have been used to con‐
duct ecological momentary assessments, querying users about their 
mood and environment in real time (Bakolis et al., 2018; MacKerron 
& Mourato, 2013; McEwan et al., 2019). In the present study, we 
use location‐enabled data from social media to observe individuals 
at a level of geographical precision that indicates actual contact with 
greenspace and biodiversity. Previous studies analysing tweets in 
urban greenspace have studied comparative well‐being across a city, 
emotional changes across seasons, and different ways of analysing 
the	emotional	content	of	tweets	(Lim	et	al.,	2018;	Plunz	et	al.,	2019;	
Roberts et al., 2018).

We used the Hedonometer, a word analysis tool that quantifies 
the sentiment of text based on the happiness values attributed to 
English words (Dodds & Danforth, 2010; Dodds et al., 2011). The 
Hedonometer has been demonstrated to correlate with traditional 
survey metrics of subjective well‐being at the city and state level, 
including Gallup's well‐being index and United Health Foundation's 
America's	health	ranking	(Mitchell,	Frank,	Harris,	Dodds,	&	Danforth,	
2013). The Hedonometer has also been deployed to analyse the dis‐
course around climate change following hurricanes (Cody, Reagan, 
Mitchell, Dodds, & Danforth, 2015). Using the Hedonometer's senti‐
ment dictionary we asked: (Q1) What is the magnitude and duration of 
the change in sentiment from visiting urban parks?

Using geolocated tweets allowed us to differentiate between 
different doses of nature exposure intensity, defined as the quality 

and quantity of nature itself, as called for in prior work (Shanahan 
et al., 2016). The San Francisco Recreation and Parks Department 
classifies	 their	 facilities	 into	 categories	 based	 on	 park	 size,	 design	
and amenities. Using official park types along with estimates of park 
vegetative cover, we investigated how different types of nature ex‐
posure are associated with changes in happiness as expressed in 
tweets. While we do not measure biodiversity directly, we use NDVI 
and vegetative cover as proxies for the intensity of nature exposure. 
We asked: (Q2) What is the association of park type and vegetative 
cover with the change in sentiment from park visitation?

Complementary theories from psychology and neurobiology 
suggest several mechanisms connecting nature exposure with men‐
tal state (Berto, 2014; Frumkin et al., 2017). The Biophilia hypothesis 
suggests that humans have an innate affinity for natural environments 
similar to those in which we evolved (Kellert & Wilson, 1995). More 
specifically, Stress Reduction Theory (SRT) predicts a decrease in 
physiological stress following nature contact, resulting in a variety 
of positive health outcomes (Ulrich et al., 1991; Ward Thompson, 
Aspinall,	 Roe,	 Robertson,	 &	 Miller,	 2016).	 Attention	 Restoration	
Theory	(ART)	predicts	that	time	in	nature	provides	the	opportunity	to	
restore directed attention capacity, which results in improved cogni‐
tion (Kaplan, 1995; Ohly et al., 2016). Nature exposure has also been 
found to correlate with increased prosocial behaviour through ‘unself‐
ing’, a shift away from self‐interest and towards generosity (Zhang, 
Piff,	Iyer,	Koleva,	&	Keltner,	2014).	A	recent	review	of	the	pathways	
linking greenspace to health called for quasi‐experimental studies and 
the assessment of varying exposure types to better explore the mech‐
anisms underlying the mental benefits of nature contact (Markevych 
et al., 2017). Here, we analysed word frequency patterns around park 
visitation to explore the mechanisms driving mental shifts from park 
visitation. We derived word frequency time series from tweets and 
asked: (Q3) What do word frequency patterns indicate about the mecha‐
nisms driving the change in sentiment from park visitation?

2  | MATERIAL S AND METHODS

2.1 | Study site and data collection

Using	 Twitter's	 streaming	 Application	 Programming	 Interface	
(‘Twitter	Streaming	API,’	2019),	we	collected	all	tweets	explicitly	ge‐
otagged with latitude and longitude originating in the San Francisco, 
USA	 (2016	 Population	 Estimate:	 871,000)	 area	 between	 19	 May	
2016	and	2	August	2016	(roughly	70,000	tweets	per	day).	Although	
Twitter	 places	 a	 rate	 limit	 on	 the	 streaming	API,	 our	 sample	 came	
from a relatively small geographic area leading to insignificant er‐
rors for tweet collection. We selected San Francisco as a study site 
due to its diverse park system, which spans more than 220 sites and 
3,400	acres.	According	 to	 the	Trust	 for	Public	Land,	98.2%	of	San	
Francisco's population live within walking distance of a park and San 
Francisco	has	one	of	the	top	ranked	park	systems	in	the	USA	(Harnik,	
Martin, & Barnhart, 2015). Using the Python (v.2.7) geographic librar‐
ies Fiona (v. 1.5.1) and Shapely (v. 1.6), we determined which tweets 
fell within San Francisco Recreation and Parks Department facility 

Page 146 of 157



     |  3People and NatureSCHWARTZ eT Al.

boundaries (‘Park and Open Space Map,’ 2016). Finding tweets in‐
side parks depends on the accuracy of mobile GPS; some of our user 
pool may have been just outside of parks due to measurement error. 
San	Francisco	Recreation	and	Parks	categorizes	 their	 facilities	 into	
nine	categories,	with	94%	of	Tweets	collected	located	in	the	follow‐
ing	three	categories:	Regional	Parks,	Civic	Plazas	and	Squares,	and	
Neighbourhood Parks and Playgrounds (Figure 1). These parks were 
categorized	by	a	professional	parks	planner	according	to	guidelines	
determined by San Francisco Recreation and Parks Department.

We constructed a list of Twitter users who had visited at least 
one	park	during	the	study	period	and	used	the	Twitter	API	to	down‐
load	their	3,200	most	recent	tweets.	A	month	later,	we	updated	user	
histories with any tweets posted since the park visit. We used sev‐
eral heuristics to remove automated bots and businesses from the 
user sample and additionally removed any individual who made their 
account private in the period following their park tweet. We also 
removed users who did not have a park visit tweet in English. Our 
process resulted in 4,688 user timelines.

2.2 | Tweet binning

We saved the following fields for each tweet within a user's timeline: 
message identification string, timestamp, text, language and loca‐
tion. We used tweet timelines as the raw data for all further analysis. 
We defined a park exposure as the first tweet posted from within a 
park on a given calendar day. We assigned all other tweets as ‘pre’ 
or ‘post’ to the closest park exposure tweet before or after, enabling 

the binning of tweets across users into hourly bins. For example, if 
a user tweeted in a park a 2 p.m., and also tweeted at 10:30 a.m. 
and	4:15	p.m.,	the	user	would	have	tweets	in	the	−4,	0	(in‐park),	and	
+3 bins. If we encountered subsequent tweets that also occurred in 
parks on a given day, we treated them the same as all other post‐park 
tweets. This avoids the bias of including several consecutive park 
tweets in the park exposure bin and simplifies the assignment of out 
of park tweets to the initial exposure. Users had an average of 0.62 
in‐park tweets within 24 hr of their initial park exposure tweets and 
78%	of	users	had	no	secondary	park	tweets.	By	pooling	users	into	
relative time bins, we were able to create large enough word samples 
to apply sentiment analysis.

2.3 | Sentiment analysis

The Hedonometer includes a sentiment dictionary for 10,022 of the 
most commonly used English words, merged from four distinct text 
corpora. The Hedonometer performs favourably compared with 
other sentiment dictionaries, using a continuum scoring of words with 
high coverage (Reagan, Danforth, Tivnan, Williams, & Dodds, 2017). 
Word ratings were calculated by averaging scores from a pool of on‐
line	crowdsourced	workers	at	Amazon's	Mechanical	Turk	(Dodds	et	
al., 2011). The words were rated on a scale from 1 (least happy) to 9 
(most happy). For example, ‘sunshine’ has a score of 7.9 and ‘traffic’ 
has a score of 3.3. Words with scores between 4 and 6 were excluded 
from the analysis either because they are emotionally neutral (e.g., ‘at’ 
[4.9], ‘and’ [5.2]) or because they are context dependent (e.g. ‘church’ 

F I G U R E  1   San Francisco Recreation 
and Parks Facility Map for three park 
categories

Page 147 of 157



4  |    People and Nature SCHWARTZ eT Al.

[5.5], ‘capitalism’ [5.2]). For our study, we also removed any words 
appearing in the names of San Francisco Parks from the analysis (e.g., 
‘golden’	 [7.3],	 ‘gate’	 [5.1],	and	 ‘park’	 [7.1]).	We	recognize	 that	words	
representing natural features such as ‘beach’ [7.9], ‘tree’ [7.1], ‘grass’ 
[6.5]	typically	have	positive	sentiment	and	hypothesize	that	the	pres‐
ence of such words indicates awareness of the surrounding environ‐
ment, which has been connected with a reduction in stress (Ulrich 
et al., 1991). While the Hedonometer does not take word context or 
order into account, prior use of the tool has indicated that with a suf‐
ficiently	large	sample	size	(>1,000	words),	a	reliable	estimate	of	text	
happiness is possible (Reagan et al., 2017). For this reason, we did 
not measure the happiness of individual tweets or users but instead 
implemented the pooling procedure described below.

2.4 | Estimating sentiment

For a set of tweets, we estimated sentiment as the weighted average 
of word scores using their relative frequencies as weights (Equation 1). 
We generated sentiment time curves by applying the Hedonometer to 
hourly bins of tweets before, during, and after park exposure. To pro‐
vide additional statistical support to this approach, we used a boot‐
strapping procedure. For a given hourly bin, we randomly selected 
80%	of	 the	 tweets	without	 replacement	 and	calculated	 the	pooled	
sentiment. Performing this procedure 100 times, we derived a range 
of plausible mean sentiment values for each tweet bin.

where vi is the sentiment score of the nth word and fi is its frequency 
in a given text (set of tweets).

To quantify the change in sentiment from exposure to urban 
greenspace, we compared the sentiment from tweets before park 
visits and during park exposure. First, we defined a set of base‐
line tweets. For a given park, these were tweets occurring more 
than 1 and up to 6 hr prior to tweets posted from that park. We 
subtracted the baseline sentiment from that of the park exposure 
tweets. To estimate a plausible interval for change in sentiment, 
we performed a similar bootstrapping procedure. We selected a 
random	80%	of	 tweets	 from	both	 the	 baseline	 and	 park	 tweets	
and calculated the difference in their sentiment scores. Performing 
this operation 100 times, we were able to estimate a mean, vari‐
ance	and	a	95%	confidence	interval	for	the	mean	change	in	senti‐
ment. Robustness checks were performed to show convergence of 
this range at 100 runs.

2.5 | Duration calculation

To estimate the duration of a change in sentiment from visiting a park 
or set of parks, we defined the baseline set of tweets in the same 
manner as above. We then performed the following bootstrapping 
procedure in an iterative manner. We started with the tweets occur‐
ring 1 hr after park exposure and estimated the change in sentiment 
between the baseline and that hourly bin of tweets. We continued 

to the next bin if we were able to reject the null hypothesis from the 
one sample T‐Test that the mean of the bootstrapped differences 
is	equal	to	0	at	the	95%	confidence	level.	The	duration	of	a	change	
in sentiment was the last hourly bin at which we are able to reject 
this null hypothesis. We performed this analysis with and without 
in‐park tweets that occur after initial park tweets on a given day.

2.6 | Park classifications and NDVI

To understand how park type relates to the benefits of park expo‐
sure, we used the San Francisco Recreation and Parks Department 
classifications for the 160 parks in which we found tweets during the 
study period. The vast majority of park acreage and tweet activity 
occurred	in	three	categories:	Civic	plaza	or	square,	Neighbourhood	
Park or playground, and regional park (Figure 1). We grouped tweets 
posted from each of these park categories to compare the changes 
in sentiment from baseline across categories.

We also calculated NDVI for each of the 160 parks in which 
tweets occurred. We developed an automated method to map veg‐
etation throughout San Francisco using an object‐based approach 
with	1‐m,	 four‐band	National	Agricultural	 Imagery	Program	 (NAIP)	
data acquired in the summer of 2016 (O'Neil‐Dunne, Pelletier, 
MacFaden,	Troy,	&	Grove,	2009).	We	segmented	NAIP	imagery	into	
image	objects	using	a	multiresolution	segmentation	algorithm	(Benz,	
Hofmann, Willhauck, Lingenfelder, & Heynen, 2004). We computed 
NDVI for each image object based on the mean near‐infrared and red 
values	in	the	NAIP	data	(Equation	2).

where NIR stands for near‐infrared; RED stands for visible red.
Using a series of classification and morphology algorithms, we 

assigned objects to one of two classes: vegetation or non‐vegeta‐
tion. We overlaid these objects, along with their NDVI values, onto 
the San Francisco park polygons to calculate the per cent area with 
vegetation and mean NDVI for each park, excluding pixels defined 
as bodies of water from data provided by the SF Department of 
Public Works (data.sfgov.org,	2019).	NDVI	scores	 range	 from	−1	to	
1 with higher scores being greener. We report NDVI and Percent 
Vegetation for the three main park categories in Table 1. The other 
park categories (Community Gardens, Concessions, Family Camp, 
Mini parks, Parkways, and Zoological Gardens) were not large 
enough to accurately estimate mean NDVI or sentiment based on 
the number of tweets posted from those spaces.

3  | RESULTS

3.1 | What is the magnitude and duration of the 
change in sentiment from visiting urban parks?

Tweets posted within parks have a higher sentiment than tweets 
posted before or after park visits. We depict the sentiment time 
curve for all users in Figure 2, with average sentiment fluctuating 

(1)Sentiment=

∑n

i=1
vifi

∑n

i=1
fi

(2)NDVI=

(

NIR−RED
)

(

NIR+RED
)

Page 148 of 157



     |  5People and NatureSCHWARTZ eT Al.

between roughly 6.1 and 6.2 outside of park visits. Sentiment 
reaches 6.43 across all tweets occurring in parks. The immediate 
hours before and after park exposure also elevated from base‐
line. The bootstrapped intervals for mean sentiment are narrower 
around the park exposure because our dataset contains more 
tweets during those hours than in any individual hour preceding or 
following the park exposure.

The mean change in sentiment for all parks is 0.229 
(Bootstrapped	95%	CI	0.220,	0.238;	Figure	3).	As	a	point	of	refer‐
ence, the average day on Twitter in 2016 had a sentiment of 6.04, 
and Christmas Day was the happiest day in 2016 with a sentiment 
of 6.26 (Hedonometer.org, 2019). Thus, across our user pool, tweets 
during visits to urban parks exhibited a similar increase in sentiment 
as the jump on Christmas Day for Twitter as a whole.

Across	 all	 parks,	we	estimate	 the	duration	of	 elevated	 senti‐
ment after initial park tweets. We find that sentiment remains ele‐
vated for 4 hr, compared to a baseline level averaged over the 6 hr 
before park visitation. This analysis included tweets inside parks 
that occurred after the initial exposure to avoid bias of highly 
active users and to clarify assignment of post‐park tweets to an 
initial park exposure (see Section 22). To calculate an even more 
conservative estimate of elevated sentiment, we repeated this 
analysis without those tweets, resulting in an estimated duration 
of 1 hr. We thus expect the duration to fall somewhere between 
1 and 4 hr.

3.2 | What is the association of park type and 
vegetative cover with the change in sentiment from 
park visitation?

Regional Parks exhibit the highest mean change in sentiment of 
0.264 (0.251, 0.276). Neighbourhood parks and playgrounds have 
a moderate mean change in sentiment of 0.219 (0.199, 0.240). Civic 
Plaza	 or	 Squares	 have	 the	 lowest	 change	 in	 sentiment	 of	 0.163	
(0.143, 0.181) (Figure 3). Confidence interval limits do not overlap 
for any pair of park types, indicating significant differences among 
them. The differences in mean sentiment among park types corre‐
spond	to	differences	in	size,	NDVI	and	vegetative	cover	(Table	1).

3.3 | What do word frequency patterns indicate 
about the mechanisms driving the change in 
sentiment from park visitation?

Tweets in parks have higher sentiment than tweets prior to park visi‐
tation due to positive words with higher frequency, such as ‘beach’, 
‘beautiful’, ‘festival’, ‘happy’, ‘young’, ‘fun’, and negative words with 
lower frequency, such as ‘not’, ‘no’, ‘don't’, ‘can't’, and ‘wait’ (Figure 4). 
Of specific interest, negation words such as ‘not’ and ‘don't’ fluctu‐
ate	before	and	after	park	exposure	but	exhibit	a	marked	drop	(45%	
and	47%)	in	and	around	the	park	exposure	(Figure	5a,b).	The	word	
‘beautiful’ exhibits the opposite pattern, fluctuating around a base‐
line and then roughly doubling in frequency during park exposure 
(Figure 5c). Finally, we examine the first person word ‘me’ which 
has a neutral sentiment (and is not included in the sentiment scores 
above).	Use	of	 ‘me’	drops	38%	from	its	mean	use	level	during	park	
visits (Figure 5d).

4  | DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSION

In our study, tweets posted from urban nature were happier by 
roughly 0.23 points on the Hedonometer scale from baseline. This 
increase in sentiment is equivalent to that of Christmas Day for 
Twitter as a whole in the same year (Hedonometer.org, 2019). Our 
analysis of duration suggests that elevated sentiment lasts for be‐
tween 1 and 4 hr following an initial park tweet. The recent Urban 
Mind study found a similar duration for their weeklong study on 
roughly 100 users self‐reporting their happiness in different envi‐
ronments (Bakolis et al., 2018). Interestingly, sentiment begins to 
increase from baseline in the hour preceding the in‐park tweets 
(Figure 2). Possible explanations for this trend are anticipation for 

Category Count
Mean 
acres Mean NDVI

Mean per cent 
vegetated

Regional Park 13 609.37 0.21 79.48

Neighbourhood Park or Playground 112 11.54 0.12 63.44

Civic	Plaza	or	Square 10 8.79 0.06 45.42

Abbreviation:	NDVI,	Normalized	Difference	Vegetation	Index.

TA B L E  1   Primary park category 
characteristics

F I G U R E  2   Sentiment before, during and after park visit. 
Average	sentiment	for	all	user	tweets	(y‐axis), within 24 hr of park 
exposure, binned by relative hour to in‐park tweet (x‐axis). The 
green vertical line represents the tweet in a San Francisco Park, 
with highest sentiment value. The blue range is full sentiment range 
from	100	runs	of	randomly	sampling	80%	of	tweets

Page 149 of 157



6  |    People and Nature SCHWARTZ eT Al.

the park visit, meeting friends on the way, or perhaps relief due 
to leaving work and heading to a more enjoyable location. Recent 
work found that the emotion of anticipation increases in greens‐
paces (Lim et al., 2018); further investigation is merited to better 
understand the temporal dynamics of anticipation and its relation‐
ship with nature contact.

Tweets located in Regional Parks exhibited the strongest in‐
crease in sentiment followed by tweets in Neighbourhood Parks and 
Playgrounds	and	 then	Civic	Plazas	 and	Squares.	There	are	 several	
plausible explanations for the greater sentiment increase occurring 
in Regional and Neighbourhood Parks. Regional Parks have greater 
vegetative cover and may offer more opportunities for nature 

contact	and	exposure	to	biodiversity	compared	to	Civic	Plazas	and	
Squares (Table 1). The greater vegetative and floral diversity found in 
the larger Regional Parks may be playing a role as indicated by ‘flow‐
ers’ appearing in Figure 4, supported by prior research on the most 
salient	features	of	landscapes	(Hoyle	et	al.,	2017).	Alternatively,	the	
large	size	of	Regional	Parks	may	be	providing	greater	restorative	ca‐
pacities through a more distinct separation from the urban environ‐
ment.	Neighbourhood	Parks	and	Civic	Plazas	are	close	in	size	but	also	
exhibit a significant difference in sentiment increase, suggesting that 
park	size	is	not	the	only	factor	at	play.	The	three	park	classes	offer	
different amenities and activity types, which may also be contribut‐
ing	to	the	differences	in	sentiment.	A	recent	review	summarized	the	

F I G U R E  3   Comparing change in 
sentiment between park categories. The 
horizontal	axis	is	estimated	change	in	
sentiment between baseline and in‐park 
tweets.	Ranges	are	95%	confidence	
intervals from 100 runs of bootstrap 
process. Dots are mean change in 
sentiment. Park categories are as defined 
by San Francisco Recreation and Parks 
Department

F I G U R E  4   This figure shows the words driving the difference between park and baseline tweets, in order of decreasing contribution 
to the difference in sentiment. The right side represents the park tweets, with a mean sentiment of 6.43. The left side represents tweets 
1–6	hr	preceding	the	park	tweets,	with	a	mean	sentiment	of	6.20.	Purple	bars	represent	words	≤4	(with	−	symbol)	on	the	Hedonometer	
scale.	Yellow	bars	represent	words	≥6	(with	+	symbol)	on	the	Hedonometer	scale.	Arrows	indicate	whether	a	word	was	more	or	less	frequent	
within that set of tweets compared to the other text. For example, ‘Beach’ is a positive word (purple) with higher frequency in‐park tweets 
that contributes to increased sentiment of that set. ‘Not’ is a negative word (purple) that appears less frequently in that set, resulting in a 
higher relative sentiment score compared to baseline

Page 150 of 157



     |  7People and NatureSCHWARTZ eT Al.

range of scales at which biodiversity can be measured inside of parks 
– from vegetated versus non‐vegetated to genetic diversity – and 
suggested several directions for future research on the people–bio‐
diversity	interface	(Botzat,	Fischer,	&	Kowarik,	2016).

The	roles	of	exercise	and	socialization	can	be	difficult	to	sepa‐
rate from the direct contributions of nature to enhanced subjective 
well‐being	 (Ambrey,	2016).	Regional	Parks	may	be	more	amenable	
to physical activity, although our analysis of words does not suggest 
that physical activity related terms are driving the elevated happi‐
ness of the in‐park tweets (Figure 4). Technologies such as heart‐rate 
monitors may provide new opportunities for distinguishing the ben‐
efits of outdoor exercise from the benefits of nature exposure per 
se. Differences in social interactions across park types may also be 
contributing	 to	 variation	 in	 sentiment.	Civic	Plazas,	which	 tend	 to	
be paved and more centrally located, represent an outdoor, public 
gathering	space	where	people	go	to	socialize	in	their	time	away	from	
work. Our results indicate that Regional and Neighbourhood Parks 
are	more	restorative	spaces	than	Civic	Plazas,	and	that	nature	per	
se is potentially playing a role in delivering mental benefits to park 
visitors. While we are unable to measure how much time is spent in a 
park following a tweet, it is plausible that visits to Regional Parks are 
longer	than	visits	to	the	other	park	classes.	Alternative	approaches	
such	as	Ecological	Momentary	Assessments	or	time	use	surveys	may	
be more effective at capturing the duration of park visits. Recent 

work has suggested that at least 120 min of weekly nature exposure 
lead to enhanced self‐reported health and well‐being (White et al., 
2019). Future analyses should also look to directly compare nature 
contact with indoor activities (e.g., museum visits), but these com‐
parisons are beyond the scope of this paper. Several reviews have 
summarized	 the	 growing	 body	 of	work	 on	 nature	 contact	 and	 set	
a research agenda for building a more nuanced understanding of 
the relationship between nature contact and health (Frumkin et al., 
2017; Hartig et al., 2014).

The mechanisms through which urban nature exposure improves 
mental health are still being investigated. Green Mind Theory, a 
recent synthesis of proposed pathways, suggests that the negativ‐
ity bias of the brain – which may have been evolutionarily advan‐
tageous – is constantly activated by the stressors of modern life 
(Pretty, Rogerson, & Barton, 2017). In our analysis, park visitation 
coincides with a decrease in words such as ‘no’, ‘don't’, and ‘never’ 
(Figure 4). These words, known as negations, are associated with 
focused, analytical thinking (Pennebaker, 2011). The decrease in 
negation	 frequency	may	provide	 support	 for	ART,	which	 links	 na‐
ture exposure with the experience of soft fascination and can result 
in improved cognition (Kaplan & Kaplan, 1989; Ohly et al., 2016). 
Alternatively,	the	increase	in	frequency	of	words	such	as	‘beautiful’,	
‘fun’ and ‘enjoy’ during park exposure suggests that individuals may 
be experiencing an increase in positive emotions and a reduction in 

F I G U R E  5   (a–d) Word frequency patterns before and after park visit. X‐axis depicts hourly tweet bins from 12 hr before to 12 hr after in‐
park tweet, which is represented by green line. Y‐axis ranges are scaled for each word's relative frequency. Relative frequencies (blue lines) 
are smoothed as moving averages over 3 hr. Grey‐dashed line is mean frequency for entire 24‐hr period around park visit

(a)

(c) (d)

(b)

Page 151 of 157



8  |    People and Nature SCHWARTZ eT Al.

stress, as predicted by SRT (Berto, 2014). While the words ‘I’ and 
‘me’ do not have an impact on our quantitative analysis due to their 
neutral sentiment values, there is a distinct decrease in use of these 
first‐person pronouns during park exposure (Figure 5d). This pattern 
supports prior work describing nature exposure as an opportunity to 
shift from an individual to collective mental frame, potentially lead‐
ing to prosocial behaviour (Zhang et al., 2014).

There are also limitations of using Twitter as a platform and we 
acknowledge our sample of users willing to geolocate may differ 
from	the	general	population.	In	2016,	24%	of	online	adults	were	ac‐
tive Twitter users, albeit with a slight overrepresentation by younger 
Americans	(Greenwood,	Perrin,	&	Duggan,	2016).	Due	to	the	diffi‐
culty of extracting this information from Twitter profiles, we were 
unable to look at how age, gender, and education levels interact 
with changes in sentiment from park visitation. There is significant 
variation in how individuals experience and relate to nature; future 
work should attempt to understand how individual traits mediate 
the effects of visiting urban greenspace (Gascon et al., 2015). We 
also	 recognize	 that	 different	 socioeconomic	 groups	 and	 culturally	
diverse populations respond differently to conceptions of nature 
and call for further work teasing apart how varied groups respond to 
nature contact (Fischer et al., 2018; Frumkin et al., 2017; Maas et al., 
2006). Furthermore, cultures in distinct climates will likely demon‐
strate different relationships with nature exposure – responses to 
nature contact will likely manifest very differently in a tropical cli‐
mate compared to San Francisco (Saw, Lim, & Carrasco, 2015).

In this study, we quantified the change in expressed sentiment 
associated with visits to urban nature by thousands of individuals. 
In our sample, individuals tweet happier words while visiting parks, 
and continue to use happier words for several hours following their 
visit. Tweets posted in Regional Parks, which are larger and greener, 
are happier than tweets posted in the smaller and less vegetated 
Civic	Plazas	and	Squares.	Based	on	our	word	frequency	analysis,	im‐
proved Twitter sentiment from park visits is driven in part by a de‐
cline in negative thinking. Our study deepens the evidence base for 
the	mental	benefits	provided	by	nature	contact	 in	urban	areas.	As	
we continue to uncover the psychological mechanisms from nature 
contact, we can better inform public health policy and target park 
planning	and	design	to	maximize	these	benefits.

Urban parks can provide restorative environments for people as 
well as refuge for biodiversity. The benefits of urban nature include 
many ecosystem services beyond the scope of this study such as 
storm‐water retention and air purification (Elmqvist et al., 2015). 
Conserving natural spaces and protecting mental health are not typ‐
ically discussed in the same policy arenas; however, research further 
linking health with urban greenspace and biodiversity protection can 
help planners and public health officials build new strategies that 
support both goals. We suggest building or expanding parks near 
populations with limited access to greenspace and targeting funds 
towards the most effective types of parks for mental benefits. With 
most of the planet's population now living in cities, we must find 
ways to bring nature to them in a way that supports both biodiver‐
sity and human health.

ACKNOWLEDG EMENTS

This material is based upon work supported by the National 
Science Foundation Graduate Research Fellowship under Grant No. 
DGE1451866. The authors would like to thank the Parker family via 
the Medina Fund at University of Vermont for their support.

CONFLIC T OF INTERE S T

We have no conflict of interest to declare.

AUTHORS’  CONTRIBUTIONS

A.J.S.,	C.M.D.,	P.S.D.,	and	T.H.R.	conceived	of	the	project	and	meth‐
odology.	 J.P.M.O.‐D.	provided	assistance	with	 the	geospatial	 anal‐
ysis.	A.J.S.	collected	 the	data,	performed	the	analysis,	and	 led	 the	
writing	of	 the	manuscript.	All	 authors	 contributed	 critically	 to	 the	
drafts and gave final approval for publication.

DATA AVAIL ABILIT Y S TATEMENT

Data from this study are archived on Figshare at: https ://figsh are.
com/proje	cts/2019_Schwa	rtz_Twitt	erPar	ks/60230		(Schwartz,	Dodds,	
O'Neil‐Dunne, Danforth, & Ricketts, 2019).

ORCID

Aaron J. Schwartz  https://orcid.org/0000‐0002‐3371‐5649 

Peter Sheridan Dodds  https://orcid.org/0000‐0003‐1973‐8614 

Jarlath P. M. O'Neil‐Dunne  https://orcid.org/0000‐0002‐5352‐7389 

Taylor H. Ricketts  https://orcid.org/0000‐0001‐9688‐7977 

R E FE R E N C E S

Ambrey,	C.	L.	(2016).	An	investigation	into	the	synergistic	wellbeing	ben‐
efits of greenspace and physical activity: Moving beyond the mean. 
Urban Forestry & Urban Greening, 19, 7–12. https ://doi.org/10.1016/j.
ufug.2016.06.020

Bakolis,	I.,	Hammoud,	R.,	Smythe,	M.,	Gibbons,	J.,	Davidson,	N.,	Tognin,	
S.,	&	Mechelli,	A.	 (2018).	Urban	mind:	Using	smartphone	technolo‐
gies to investigate the impact of nature on mental well‐being in real 
time. BioScience, 68(2), 134–145. https ://doi.org/10.1093/biosc i/
bix149

Bell, S. L., Phoenix, C., Lovell, R., & Wheeler, B. W. (2014). Green 
space, health and wellbeing: Making space for individual agency. 
Health & Place, 30, 287–292. https ://doi.org/10.1016/j.healt 
hplace.2014.10.005

Benz,	 U.	 C.,	 Hofmann,	 P.,	 Willhauck,	 G.,	 Lingenfelder,	 I.,	 &	 Heynen,	
M.	 (2004).	 Multi‐resolution,	 object‐oriented	 fuzzy	 analysis	 of	 re‐
mote sensing data for GIS‐ready information. ISPRS Journal of 
Photogrammetry and Remote Sensing, 58(3–4), 239–258. https ://doi.
org/10.1016/j.isprs jprs.2003.10.002

Berto, R. (2014). The role of nature in coping with psycho‐physiological 
stress:	 A	 literature	 review	 on	 restorativeness.	 Behavioral Sciences, 
4(4), 394–409. https ://doi.org/10.3390/bs404 0394

Bettencourt,	L.	M.	A.,	Lobo,	J.,	Helbing,	D.,	Kuhnert,	C.,	&	West,	G.	B.	
(2007). Growth, innovation, scaling, and the pace of life in cities. 

Page 152 of 157



     |  9People and NatureSCHWARTZ eT Al.

Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences of the United States of 
America, 104(17), 7301–7306. https ://doi.org/10.1073/pnas.06101 
72104 

Botzat,	A.,	Fischer,	L.	K.,	&	Kowarik,	I.	(2016).	Unexploited	opportunities	
in	understanding	 liveable	 and	biodiverse	 cities.	A	 review	on	urban	
biodiversity perception and valuation. Global Environmental Change, 
39, 220–233. https ://doi.org/10.1016/j.gloen vcha.2016.04.008

Bratman,	G.	N.,	Daily,	G.	C.,	Levy,	B.	J.,	&	Gross,	J.	J.	(2015).	The	bene‐
fits of nature experience: Improved affect and cognition. Landscape 
and Urban Planning, 138, 41–50. https ://doi.org/10.1016/j.landu 
rbplan.2015.02.005

Carrus,	 G.,	 Scopelliti,	 M.,	 Lafortezza,	 R.,	 Colangelo,	 G.,	 Ferrini,	 F.,	
Salbitano, F., … Sanesi, G. (2015). Go greener, feel better? The 
positive effects of biodiversity on the well‐being of individu‐
als visiting urban and peri‐urban green areas. Landscape and 
Urban Planning, 134, 221–228. https ://doi.org/10.1016/j.landu 
rbplan.2014.10.022

Cody,	E.	M.,	Reagan,	A.	J.,	Mitchell,	L.,	Dodds,	P.	S.,	&	Danforth,	C.	M.	
(2015).	Climate	change	sentiment	on	Twitter:	An	unsolicited	public	
opinion poll. PLoS ONE, 10(8), e0136092. https ://doi.org/10.1371/
journ al.pone.0136092

Dodds, P. S., & Danforth, C. M. (2010). Measuring the happiness of 
large‐scale written expression: Songs, blogs, and presidents. Journal 
of Happiness Studies, 11(4), 441–456. https ://doi.org/10.1007/
s10902‐009‐9150‐9

Dodds,	 P.	 S.,	 Harris,	 K.	 D.,	 Kloumann,	 I.	M.,	 Bliss,	 C.	 A.,	 Danforth,	 C.	
M., Hedström, P., … Shannon, C. (2011). Temporal patterns of hap‐
piness and information in a global social network: Hedonometrics 
and Twitter. PLoS ONE, 6(12), e26752. https ://doi.org/10.1371/journ 
al.pone.0026752

Elmqvist,	 T.,	 Setälä,	 H.,	 Handel,	 S.	 N.,	 van	 der	 Ploeg,	 S.,	 Aronson,	 J.,	
Blignaut,	J.	N.,	…	de	Groot,	R.	(2015).	Benefits	of	restoring	ecosystem	
services in urban areas. Current Opinion in Environmental Sustainability, 
14, 101–108. https ://doi.org/10.1016/j.cosust.2015.05.001

Engemann,	K.,	Pedersen,	C.	B.,	Arge,	L.,	Tsirogiannis,	C.,	Mortensen,	P.	
B.,	&	Svenning,	J.‐C.	(2019).	Residential	green	space	in	childhood	is	
associated with lower risk of psychiatric disorders from adolescence 
into adulthood. Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences of the 
United States of America, 116, 5188–5193. https ://doi.org/10.1073/
pnas.18075 04116 

Fischer,	 L.	 K.,	 Honold,	 J.,	 Cvejić,	 R.,	 Delshammar,	 T.,	 Hilbert,	 S.,	
Lafortezza,	 R.,	…	Kowarik,	 I.	 (2018).	 Beyond	 green:	Broad	 support	
for biodiversity in multicultural European cities. Global Environmental 
Change, 49(February), 35–45. https ://doi.org/10.1016/j.gloen 
vcha.2018.02.001

Fong,	K.	C.,	Hart,	 J.	 E.,	&	 James,	 P.	 (2018).	A	 review	of	 epidemiologic	
studies on greenness and health: Updated literature through 2017. 
Current Environmental Health Reports, 1–11, https ://doi.org/10.1007/
s40572‐018‐0179‐y

Frumkin,	H.,	Bratman,	G.	N.,	Breslow,	S.	J.,	Cochran,	B.,	Kahn,	P.	H.	Jr,	
Lawler,	J.	J.,	…	Wood,	S.	A.	(2017).	Nature	Contact	and	human	health:	
A	research	agenda.	Environmental Health Perspectives, 125(7), 1–18. 
https ://doi.org/10.1289/EHP1663

Gascon,	 M.,	 Triguero‐Mas,	 M.,	 Martínez,	 D.,	 Dadvand,	 P.,	 Forns,	 J.,	
Plasència,	A.,	&	Nieuwenhuijsen,	M.	(2015).	Mental	health	benefits	of	
long‐term	exposure	 to	 residential	green	and	blue	spaces:	A	system‐
atic review. International Journal of Environmental Research and Public 
Health, 12(4), 4354–4379. https ://doi.org/10.3390/ijerp h1204 04354 

Greenwood,	 S.,	 Perrin,	A.,	&	Duggan,	M.	 (2016).	Demographics	 of	 so‐
cial media users in 2016. Retrieved from http://www.pewin ternet.
org/2016/11/11/social‐media‐update‐2016/

Harnik,	 P.,	 Martin,	 A.,	 &	 Barnhart,	 K.	 (2015).	 2015 City Park facts: 
The trust for public land. Retrieved from https ://www.tpl.
org/2015‐city‐park‐facts 

Hartig, T., Mitchell, R., de Vries, S., & Frumkin, H. (2014). Nature and 
health. Annual Review of Public Health, 35(1), 207–228. https ://doi.
org/10.1146/annur ev‐publh ealth‐032013‐182443

Hedonometer.org. (2019). Hedonometer. Retrieved from http://www.
hedon ometer.org

Hoyle,	H.,	Hitchmough,	 J.,	&	 Jorgensen,	A.	 (2017).	All	 about	 the	 ‘wow	
factor’? The relationships between aesthetics, restorative effect and 
perceived biodiversity in designed urban planting. Landscape and 
Urban Planning, 164(2017), 109–123. https ://doi.org/10.1016/j.landu 
rbplan.2017.03.011

Hoyle,	 H.,	 Jorgensen,	 A.,	 &	 Hitchmough,	 J.	 D.	 (2019).	 What	 deter‐
mines how we see nature? Perceptions of naturalness in designed 
urban green spaces. People and Nature, 1, 167–180. https ://doi.
org/10.1002/pan3.19

Kaplan, R., & Kaplan, S. (1989). The experience of nature: A psychological 
perspective.	CUP	Archive.

Kaplan, S. (1995). The restorative benefits of nature: Toward an integra‐
tive framework. Journal of Environmental Psychology, 15(3), 169–182. 
https ://doi.org/10.1016/0272‐4944(95)90001‐2

Kellert, S. R., & Wilson, E. O. (1995). The biophilia hypothesis. Washington, 
DC: Island Press.

Lim,	K.	H.,	Lee,	K.	E.,	Kendal,	D.,	Rashidi,	 L.,	Naghizade,	E.,	Winter,	S.,	
& Vasardani, M. (2018). The grass is greener on the other side. In 
Companion of the the web conference 2018 on the web conference 2018 
– WWW ’18	 (pp.	275–282).	New	York,	NY:	ACM	Press.	https	://doi.
org/10.1145/31845 58.3186337

Louv, R. (2011). The nature principle: Human restoration and the end of na‐
ture‐deficit disorder.	Chapel	Hill,	NC:	Algonquin	Books.

Maas,	J.,	Verheij,	R.	A.,	Groenewegen,	P.	P.,	de	Vries,	S.,	&	Spreeuwenberg,	
P. (2006). Green space, urbanity, and health: How strong is the rela‐
tion? Journal of Epidemiology and Community Health, 60(7), 587–592. 
https ://doi.org/10.1136/jech.2005.043125

MacKerron, G., & Mourato, S. (2013). Happiness is greater in natural en‐
vironments. Global Environmental Change, 23(5), 992–1000. https ://
doi.org/10.1016/j.gloen vcha.2013.03.010

Markevych,	 I.,	 Schoierer,	 J.,	 Hartig,	 T.,	 Chudnovsky,	 A.,	 Hystad,	 P.,	
Dzhambov,	 A.	 M.,	 …	 Fuertes,	 E.	 (2017).	 Exploring	 pathways	 link‐
ing greenspace to health: Theoretical and methodological guid‐
ance. Environmental Research, 158(June),	 301–317.	 https	://doi.
org/10.1016/j.envres.2017.06.028

Martens, D., Gutscher, H., & Bauer, N. (2011). Walking in “wild” and 
“tended” urban forests: The impact on psychological well‐being. 
Journal of Environmental Psychology, 31(1), 36–44. https ://doi.
org/10.1016/j.jenvp.2010.11.001

McDonald, R. I., Beatley, T., & Elmqvist, T. (2018). The green soul of the 
concrete jungle: The urban century, the urban psychological pen‐
alty, and the role of nature. Sustainable Earth, 1(1), 3. https ://doi.
org/10.1186/s42055‐018‐0002‐5

McEwan,	K.,	Richardson,	M.,	Brindley,	P.,	Sheffield,	D.,	Tait,	C.,	Johnson,	
S.,	…	Ferguson,	F.	 J.	 (2019).	 Shmapped:	Development	of	 an	app	 to	
record and promote the well‐being benefits of noticing urban na‐
ture. Translational Behavioral Medicine, 2019,	 	 ibz027,	 https	://doi.
org/10.1093/tbm/ibz027

Mitchell, L., Frank, M. R., Harris, K. D., Dodds, P. S., & Danforth, C. M. 
(2013). The geography of happiness: Connecting Twitter senti‐
ment and expression, demographics, and objective characteristics 
of place. PLoS ONE, 8(5), e64417. https ://doi.org/10.1371/journ 
al.pone.0064417

Murray,	 C.	 J.	 L.,	 Vos,	 T.,	 Lozano,	 R.,	 Naghavi,	 M.,	 Flaxman,	 A.	 D.,	
Michaud,	C.,	…	Lopez,	A.	D.	 (2012).	Disability‐adjusted	 life	years	
(DALYs)	 for	 291	 diseases	 and	 injuries	 in	 21	 regions,	 1990–2010:	
A	 systematic	 analysis	 for	 the	 Global	 Burden	 of	 Disease	 Study	
2010. The Lancet, 380(9859), 2197–2223. https ://doi.org/10.1016/
S0140‐6736(12)61689‐4

Page 153 of 157



10  |    People and Nature SCHWARTZ eT Al.

Ohly,	H.,	White,	M.	P.,	Wheeler,	B.	W.,	Bethel,	A.,	Ukoumunne,	O.	C.,	
Nikolaou,	V.,	&	Garside,	R.	 (2016).	Attention	 restoration	 theory:	A	
systematic review of the attention restoration potential of exposure 
to natural environments. Journal of Toxicology and Environmental 
Health, Part B, 19(7), 305–343. https ://doi.org/10.1080/10937 
404.2016.1196155

O'Neil‐Dunne,	 J.,	 Pelletier,	 K.,	 MacFaden,	 S.,	 Troy,	 A.,	 &	 Grove,	 J.	
M. (2009). Object‐based high‐resolution land‐cover mapping. 
In 2009 17th International Conference on Geoinformatics (pp. 
1–6).	 Fairfax,	 VA:	 IEEE.	 https	://doi.org/10.1109/GEOIN	FORMA	
TICS.2009.5293435

Park and Open Space Map (2016). Park Lands Map. San Francisco 
Recreation and Parks Department. Retrieved from https ://data.
sfgov.org/Cultu re‐and‐Recre ation/ Park‐Lands‐Recre ation‐and‐
Parks‐Depar tment/ 42rw‐e7xk

Pennebaker,	J.	W.	(2011).	The secret life of pronouns: What our words say 
about us. New York, NY: Bloomsbury Press/Bloomsbury Publishing.

Plunz,	 R.	 A.,	 Zhou,	 Y.,	 Carrasco	 Vintimilla,	M.	 I.,	Mckeown,	 K.,	 Yu,	 T.,	
Uguccioni, L., & Sutto, M. P. (2019). Twitter sentiment in New 
York City parks as measure of well‐being. Landscape and Urban 
Planning, 189(May), 235–246. https ://doi.org/10.1016/j.landu 
rbplan.2019.04.024

Pretty,	J.,	Rogerson,	M.,	&	Barton,	J.	 (2017).	Green	Mind	Theory:	How	
brain‐body‐behaviour links into natural and social environments for 
healthy habits. International Journal of Environmental Research and 
Public Health, 14(7), 706. https ://doi.org/10.3390/ijerp h1407 0706

Qiu,	L.,	Lindberg,	S.,	&	Nielsen,	A.	B.	(2013).	Is	biodiversity	attractive?—
On‐site perception of recreational and biodiversity values in urban 
green space. Landscape and Urban Planning, 119, 136–146. https ://
doi.org/10.1016/j.landu rbplan.2013.07.007

Reagan,	A.	 J.,	Danforth,	C.	M.,	 Tivnan,	B.,	Williams,	 J.	 R.,	&	Dodds,	 P.	
S. (2017). Sentiment analysis methods for understanding large‐scale 
texts:	 A	 case	 for	 using	 continuum‐scored	 words	 and	 word	 shift	
graphs. EPJ Data Science, 6(1), 28. https ://doi.org/10.1140/epjds/ 
s13688‐017‐0121‐9

Roberts,	H.,	Resch,	B.,	Sadler,	J.,	Chapman,	L.,	Petutschnig,	A.,	&	Zimmer,	
S. (2018). Investigating the emotional responses of individuals to 
urban	green	space	using	Twitter	data:	A	critical	comparison	of	three	
different methods of sentiment analysis. Urban Planning, 3(1), 21. 
https ://doi.org/10.17645/ up.v3i1.1231

San Francisco Department of Public Works (2019). Water Bodies. 
Retrieved from https ://data.sfgov.org/Energy‐and‐Envir onmen t/
Water‐bodie s/j829‐i3ix/data

Saw, L. E., Lim, F. K. S., & Carrasco, L. R. (2015). The relationship between 
natural park usage and happiness does not hold in a tropical city‐
state. PLoS ONE, 10(7), e0133781. https ://doi.org/10.1371/journ 
al.pone.0133781

Schwartz,	A.	J.,	Dodds,	P.	S.,	O'Neil‐Dunne,	J.	P.	M.,	Danforth,	C.	M.,	&	
Ricketts, T. H. (2019). Data from: Visitors to urban greenspace have 
higher sentiment and lower negativity on Twitter. figshare, https ://
figsh	are.com/proje	cts/2019_Schwa	rtz_Twitt	erPar	ks/60230	

Shanahan,	D.	F.,	Bush,	R.,	Gaston,	K.	 J.,	 Lin,	B.	B.,	Dean,	 J.,	Barber,	E.,	
&	Fuller,	R.	A.	 (2016).	Health	benefits	from	nature	experiences	de‐
pend on dose. Scientific Reports, 6(February), 28551. https ://doi.
org/10.1038/srep2 8551

Twitter	Developer	(2019).	Twitter	Streaming	API.	Retrieved	from	https	:// 
devel oper.twitt er.com/en/docs

Ulrich,	R.	S.,	Simons,	R.	F.,	Losito,	B.	D.,	Fiorito,	E.,	Miles,	M.	A.,	&	Zelson,	
M. (1991). Stress recovery during exposure to natural and urban 
environments. Journal of Environmental Psychology, 11(3), 201–230. 
https ://doi.org/10.1016/S0272‐4944(05)80184‐7

United Nations. (2014). World urbanization prospects: The 2014 revision‐
highlights. UN. Retrieved from https ://esa.un.org/unpd/wup/

van	 den	 Berg,	 M.,	 van	 Poppel,	 M.,	 van	 Kamp,	 I.,	 Andrusaityte,	 S.,	
Balseviciene,	B.,	Cirach,	M.,	…	Maas,	J.	 (2016).	Visiting	green	space	
is	 associated	 with	 mental	 health	 and	 vitality:	 A	 cross‐sectional	
study in four European cities. Health & Place, 38, 8–15. https ://doi.
org/10.1016/j.healt hplace.2016.01.003

Ward	 Thompson,	 C.,	 Aspinall,	 P.,	 Roe,	 J.,	 Robertson,	 L.,	 &	 Miller,	 D.	
(2016). Mitigating stress and supporting health in deprived urban 
communities: The importance of green space and the social envi‐
ronment. International Journal of Environmental Research and Public 
Health, 13(4), 440. https ://doi.org/10.3390/ijerp h1304 0440

Wheeler,	B.	W.,	Lovell,	R.,	Higgins,	S.	L.,	White,	M.	P.,	Alcock,	I.,	Osborne,	
N.	J.,	…	Depledge,	M.	H.	(2015).	Beyond	greenspace:	An	ecological	
study of population general health and indicators of natural environ‐
ment type and quality. International Journal of Health Geographics, 
14(1), 17. https ://doi.org/10.1186/s12942‐015‐0009‐5

White,	M.	P.,	Alcock,	 I.,	Grellier,	 J.,	Wheeler,	B.	W.,	Hartig,	T.,	Warber,	
S. L., … Fleming, L. E. (2019). Spending at least 120 minutes a week 
in nature is associated with good health and wellbeing. Scientific 
Reports, 9(1), 7730. https ://doi.org/10.1038/s41598‐019‐44097‐3

Zhang,	J.	W.,	Piff,	P.	K.,	Iyer,	R.,	Koleva,	S.,	&	Keltner,	D.	(2014).	An	oc‐
casion for unselfing: Beautiful nature leads to prosociality. Journal 
of Environmental Psychology, 37, 61–72. https ://doi.org/10.1016/j.
jenvp.2013.11.008

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Additional	 supporting	 information	 may	 be	 found	 online	 in	 the	
Supporting Information section at the end of the article.

How to cite this article:	Schwartz	AJ,	Dodds	PS,	O'Neil‐
Dunne	JPM,	Danforth	CM,	Ricketts	TH.	Visitors	to	urban	
greenspace have higher sentiment and lower negativity on 
Twitter. People Nat. 2019;00:1–10. https ://doi.org/10.1002/
pan3.10045 

Page 154 of 157



Conejo Recreation and Park District 
latest public entity to sue Edison over 
Woolsey Fire 
Mike Harris, Ventura County StarPublished 7:00 a.m. PT Sept. 6, 2019 | Updated 10:36 a.m. PT Sept. 6, 2019 

CLOSE  
CONNECTTWEETLINKEDINCOMMENTEMAILMORE 

 
The Conejo Recreation and Park District is the latest public entity to sue Southern California Edison over last year's 

disastrous Woolsey Fire, alleging that negligence by the utility caused the blaze. (Photo: ASSOCIATED PRESS) 

The Conejo Recreation and Park District is the latest public entity to sue Southern 
California Edison over last year's disastrous Woolsey Fire, alleging that negligence by the 
utility caused the blaze.  

"As a result of the Woolsey Fire caused by SCE, the district suffered millions of dollars in 
damages including ... property damages, fire suppression and/or emergency response 
costs, economic losses such as property tax loss and loss of business," the lawsuit, filed 
last week in Ventura County Superior Court, alleges. 

District General Manager Jim Friedl said Wednesday that "thousands of acres of open 
space burned as well as portions of three developed park sites. There was extensive 
damage to what may have been the best oak grove in the entire Conejo Valley behind 
the Chumash Indian Museum. 

Page 155 of 157

http://www.vcstar.com/staff/10052450/mike-harris/
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?url=https%3A//www.vcstar.com/story/news/local/communities/conejo-valley/2019/09/06/conejo-park-district-sues-edison-alleges-utility-caused-woolsey-fire/2197353001/&text=Conejo%20Recreation%20and%20Park%20District%20latest%20public%20entity%20to%20sue%20Edison%20over%20Woolsey%20Fire&via=vcstar
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?url=https%3A//www.vcstar.com/story/news/local/communities/conejo-valley/2019/09/06/conejo-park-district-sues-edison-alleges-utility-caused-woolsey-fire/2197353001/&mini=true


"Many of those trees were hundreds of years old and provided the Chumash people with 
acorns – and now so many of those trees are just gone," he said. 

"Although CRPD has insurance and we anticipate some help from FEMA, they certainly 
won’t cover all of the losses to the public’s parks," Friedl said.  

The fire broke out Nov. 8 on Santa Susana Field Lab property in unincorporated hills just 
southeast of Simi Valley and spread to adjacent Los Angeles County. 

Edison has overhead electrical equipment at the 2,850-acre field lab site, which the suit 
charges the utility did not properly maintain, which in turn allegedly sparked the blaze. 
Edison also has a substation there. 

The fire was "entirely preventable ... but was caused by the intentional, negligent and 
wrongful conduct" of Edison and its agents and/or employees, the suit alleges. 

Fueled by strong winds, the fire went on to kill three people, destroy more than 1,500 
homes and other buildings and burn about 97,000 acres.  

According to the suit, the fire was started by one or more of the following: 

• Sparks from high voltage distribution lines, appurtenances and electrical equipment, 
which was the direct result of failures in design, construction, inspection, operation, 
maintenance and vegetation control by Edison. 

• A tree or other vegetation that had been negligently maintained by Edison struck an 
overhead power line owned by Edison. 

• Conductors that had been negligently designed, operated and maintained by Edison 
came into contact with each other, causing an arcing event. 

• Edison and potentially other defendants failed to properly inspect, maintain and operate 
their equipment. 

The suit alleges that Edison and its agents and employees "knew of the dangerous 
condition of the property that eventually resulted in the Woolsey Fire, but recklessly and 
with careless and conscious disregard to human life and safety, decided to ignore the fire 
risk." 

The Ventura County Fire Department has not yet released its findings on the cause of the 
fire. 

The California Attorney General's office is conducting a criminal investigation into 
the cause, according to court documents filed last week. 

Page 156 of 157



Edison spokesperson Robert Villegas declined Wednesday to comment on the suit, 
which seeks damages to be determined at trial. 

"As is the case with all pending litigation, it is not appropriate to discuss any details," he 
said in a statement. 

But, he said, "the safety of the public, our customers, communities, employees and 
contractors is always our first priority. Our thoughts remain with all those across the state 
who have been affected by these devastating wildfires. We continue to work to help our 
customers and communities recover and rebuild." 

Other public entities that have sued Edison over the Woolsey Fire include Los Angeles 
County and the cities of Malibu and Agoura Hills. 

But about 2,000 more plaintiffs – the vast majority of them homeowners and businesses 
– have sued Edison because of the fire, said Westlake Village-based attorney Alexander 
Robertson, whose firm represents 624 of them. 

Robertson does not represent the Conejo Recreation and Park District in its litigation. 
The district is represented by the Baron & Budd law firm, which did not return calls to the 
Star. 

Mike Harris covers the East County cities of Simi Valley and Thousand Oaks, as well as 

transportation countywide. You can contact him at mike.harris@vcstar.com or 805-437-

0323. 

SUPPORT LOCAL JOURNALISM and get all the latest Conejo Valley news from Star 

reporter Mike Harris. Get a digital subscription.  

 

Page 157 of 157

mailto:mike.harris@vcstar.com
https://checkout.usatodaynetwork.com/vcstar?marketCode=PVCS&PID=2041&gps-source=&utm_source=&utm_medium=&utm_campaign=&utm_content=&utm_term=
https://checkout.usatodaynetwork.com/vcstar?marketCode=PVCS&PID=2041&gps-source=&utm_source=&utm_medium=&utm_campaign=&utm_content=&utm_term=

	CAPRI Agenda_09-18-19 Draft final
	CAPRI Agenda_09-18-19_numbered
	6.1 - July 24 2019 Minutes
	6.2 - LAIF Regular Monthly Statement
	6.3 - Warrant Listing 6.30.19
	Sheet2

	8.1 - Liability Claims Management Review (TOP SHEET)
	Agenda Item 8.1
	DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS
	SUBJECT: Liability Claims Management Review

	8.1(A) - Liability Claims Handling Presentation
	Liability Claims Handling Review
	Objectives
	Liability Program
	Coverage Summary
	Coverage Summary
	Coverage Summary
	Coverage Summary
	Liability�Program:��DEDUCTIBLES
	Liability�Program:��DEDUCTIBLES
	Liability�Program:��DEDUCTIBLES
	Liability�Program:��DEDUCTIBLES
	Liability�Program:��DEDUCTIBLES
	Liability Program:��Coverage Limits
	Liability Program:��Coverage Summary
	Liability Claims Handling Procedures��5 Steps
	Liability Claim Review
	Liability Claim Review:��1. Notify CAPRI
	Liability�Claim Review
	Liability �Claim Review��1. Notify CAPRI
	Liability�Claim Review��1. Notify CAPRI
	Liability Claim Review
	Liability Claim Review:��2. Review Timeliness
	Liability Claim Review:��2. Review Timeliness
	Liability �Claim Review��2. Review Timeliness
	Liability Claim Review
	Liability Claim Review:��3. Review Sufficiency
	Liability �Claim Review:��3. Review Sufficiency
	Liability�Claim Review:��3. Review Sufficiency
	Liability Claim Review
	Liability Claim Review:��4. Investigate
	Liability �Claim Review:��4. Investigate
	Liability Claim Review
	Liability Claim Review:��5. Take Action
	Liability �Claim Review:��5. Take Action
	Liability �Claim Review:��5. Take Action
	Liability �Claim Review:��5. Take Action
	Liability Claim Review
	Then what?
	Role of the TPA:��GEORGE HILLS COMPANY
	Settlement Authority��
	Trends in �Liability Claims
	Trends in Liability Claims:��The Data

	8.1(B) - Liability Claims Management Policy
	8.2 - Property Claims Management Review (TOP SHEET)
	Agenda Item 8.2
	DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS
	SUBJECT: Property Claims Management Review

	8.2(A) - Property Loss Claims Presentation
	Property Loss Claims Handling Review
	Objectives
	Property Program
	Coverage Summary
	Property Coverage
	Vehicle Coverage
	Coverage Summary
	Coverage Summary
	Coverage Summary
	Coverage Summary
	Property�Program:��DEDUCTIBLES
	Property�Program:��DEDUCTIBLES
	Property�Program:��DEDUCTIBLES
	Property�Program:��DEDUCTIBLES
	Property Program:��Coverage Limits
	Property�Program:��MEMBER DEDUCTIBLES
	Property Program��MEMBER DEDUCTIBLES
	Property Loss�Claims Handling Procedures��3 Steps
	Property Loss Claim Review
	Property Claim Review:��1. Notify CAPRI
	Property Loss�Claim Review
	Property Loss�Claim Review��1. Notify CAPRI
	Property Loss�Claim Review��1. Notify CAPRI
	Property Loss Claim Review
	Property Loss �Claim Review:��2. Adjust Claim
	Property Loss Claim Review:��2. Adjust Claim
	Property Loss Claim Review:��2. Adjust Claim
	Property Loss Claim Review
	Property Loss �Claim Review:��3. Issue Payment
	Property Loss �Claim Review:��3. Issue Payment
	Property Loss �Claim Review:��3. Issue Payment
	Trends in �Property Loss Claims
	Trends in Property �Loss Claims:��The Data

	8.2(B) - Property Claims Management Policy
	8.3 - District Visit Criteria Review (TOP SHEET)
	Agenda Item 8.3
	DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS
	SUBJECT: District Visitation Criteria & Scoring System Review

	8.3(A) - Current CAPRI Property Liability Visitation Criteria
	8.3(A) - Proposal for Changing Scoring for District Visitations
	8.4 - WC Program Dividend Allocation Review (TOP SHEET)
	Agenda Item 8.4
	DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS
	SUBJECT: W/C Program Dividend Distribution Review

	8.4(A) - WC Dividends Schedule 2019-2020
	8.5 - Liability Program Dividend Allocation Review (TOP SHEET)
	Agenda Item 8.5
	DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS
	SUBJECT: Liability & Property Program Dividend Distribution Review

	8.5(A) - Liability & Property Dividends Schedule 2019-2020
	8.6 - Resolution 3-2019 – Off Duty OUt of state (TOP SHEET)
	Agenda Item 8.6
	DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS
	SUBJECT: Resolution 3-2019 – Off Duty, Out of State Peace Officer Injury

	8.6(A) - CSAC Endorsement re Off Duty Out of State Peace Officers
	8.6(B) - Draft Resolution 3-2019 - Off-Duty, Out of State Peace Office Injurt
	10.1 - District Visit Update (TOP SHEET)
	Agenda Item 10.1
	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS
	SUBJECT: District Visits Update

	10.2 - CAPRI Office Update (TOP SHEET)
	Agenda Item 10.2
	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS
	SUBJECT: CAPRI Office Update

	10.3 - ADA Compliance Assessment Program Update (TOP SHEET)
	Agenda Item 10.3
	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS
	SUBJECT: ADA Compliance Assessment Program Update

	10.4 - Nurse Triage Program Update (TOP SHEET)
	Agenda Item 10.4
	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS
	SUBJECT: Nurse Triage Program Update

	10.4(A) - Nurse Triage Intro Flyer
	Making Workers’ Comp less painful….
	CAPRI is excited to announce the introduction of its new Telephonic Nurse Triage service!

	/
	Questions?

	10.5 - MPN Program Update (TOP SHEET)
	Agenda Item 10.5
	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS
	SUBJECT: MPN Program Update

	10.6 - Member Withdrawal Update (TOP SHEET)
	Agenda Item 10.6
	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS
	SUBJECT: Member Withdrawal Update

	10.7 - Member Trainings Update (TOP SHEET)
	Agenda Item 10.7
	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS
	SUBJECT: CAPRI Member Trainings Update

	10.8 - CAPRI Ratings Questionnaire Refresh Update (TOP SHEET)
	Agenda Item 10.8
	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS
	SUBJECT: CAPRI Ratings Questionnaire Refresh Update

	10.9 - CAPRI Website Refresh Update (TOP SHEET)
	Agenda Item 10.9
	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS
	SUBJECT: CAPRI Website Refresh Update

	10.10 - News of Note (TOP SHEET)
	Agenda Item 10.10
	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS
	SUBJECT: News of Note

	10.10(A) - California wildfire insurance is in crisis. And the real estate market is suffering
	10.10(B) - RS Rodenticide Item
	10.10(C) - Visitors to urban greenspace have higher sentiment and lower negativity on Twitter
	10.10(D) - Conejo Recreation and Park District latest public entity to sue Edison over Woolsey Fire




